TORRANCE COUNTY

CoMMISSION MEETING
August 25, 2021
9:00 A.M.

For Public View
Do Not Remove



Torrance County
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (BCC)
Ryan Schwebach, Chair, District 2
Kevin McCall, Vice Chair, District 1
LeRoy M. Candelaria, Member, District 3

Janice Y. Barela, County Manager

ADMINISTRATIVE MEETING
AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2021 @ 9:00 AM
205 S. Ninth Street, Estancia, NM 87016

1. Call to Order
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
3. Changes to the Agenda
4. PROCLAMATIONS
5. CERTIFICATES AND AWARDS
A. OPERATIONS: Announcement of Employee Service Year Pin: Stetson Lujan (2).
6. BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS
7. PUBLIC COMMENT and COMMUNICATIONS
8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. COMMISSION: Motion to approve the July 28, 2021, Torrance County Commission
Minutes.

9. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. FINANCE: Motion to approve payables.
10.  ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY CODE
11.  ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION

A. MANAGER: Motion to approve restructuring of the Torrance County Fair Board
membership and a paid administrative support position, Resolution No.

Torrance County Page 1



Administrative Meeting Agenda - August 25, 2021

12. APPROVALS

A. SHERIFF: Motion to approve submission of application for the small Rural Tribal
Body Worn Camera Program Grant.

B. SHERIFF: Motion to approve Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for Law
Enforcement Services between The Town of Estancia and The Torrance County Sheriff’s
Office. '

C. SHERIFF: Motion to approve reorganizaﬁon' of the Torrance County Sheriff’s Office
Transport/Civil Division to Community and Court Services Division (CCS) and additional
Patrol Deputy positions.

D.- MANAGER: Motion to accept the Second Quarter 2021 Restrictive Housing Report
from CoreCivic pursuant to NMSA 1978 § 33-16-5.

E. FIRE: Motion to grant permission to apply for the FY22 Fire Protection Grant for all
districts and granting authorization for County Manager Janice Barela and Fire Chief Don
Dirks to sign. "

F. COUNTY ATTORNEY: Motion to approve restructure of County Attorney’s
Office, eliminating Executive Assistant position and adding Records Custodian duties to
Legal Assistant and setting salary.

G. ROAD: Motion to approve reclassification of Mechanic Position to Operator /
Mechanic and increase pay rate.

H. FINANCE: Motion to approve Professional Services Contract with J ohn Shomaker
& Associates, Inc. for Geohydrologic Consulting Services for the Estancia Basin Water
Planning Committee — RFP TC-FY21-01.

L DWI: Motion to approve CDWI Grant Agreement fosFY2021, between Torrance
County and the New Mexico Department of Transportation and granting County Manager
Janice Barela authority to sign.

J. COMMISSION: Motion to approve amendment to Fire Chief’s employment contract
after Performance Evaluation and granting County Manager Janice Barela authority to sign.

K. MANAGER: Motion to concur with the hiring of Juan Torres as the Torrance County
Deputy County Manager at the terms and conditions set forth in the contract offered by the
County Manager and granting County Manager Janice Barela authority to sign.

13. DISCUSSION

Torrance County Page 2



Administrative Meeting Agenda August 25, 2021

A. PLANNING & ZONING: Revision to TC Ordinance 94-12 (Public Hearing will be
held during the September 8, 2021 Commission Meeting).

B. GRANTS: Presentation and discussion regarding current Infrastructure Capital
Improvement Plan (ICIP) projects and addition of new projects.

C. MANAGER’S REPORT
D. COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS
1) Commissioner McCall, District 1
- 2) Commissioner Schwebach, District 2
3) Commissioner Candelaria, District 3

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. MANAGER: PILT Negotiations for proposed Pattern Energy Wind Farm Project,
closed pursuant to NMSA 1978 § 10-15-1(H)(8).

B. MANAGER: Fire Chief - End of Probation Performance Evaluation, closed pursuant
to NMSA 1978 § 10-15-1(H)(2).

C. MANAGER: Discuss Deputy County Manager position, closed pursuant to NMSA
1978 § 10-15-1(H)(2).

15. Announcement of the next Board of County Commissioners Meeting: September 8, 2021
at 9:00AM.

16.  SIGNING OF OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS

17. ADJOURN

Torrance County Page 3



_qmm!

SO
A

Agenda Item
No. 1



Agenda Item
No. 2



Agenda Item
No.



Agenda Item
No. 4



Agenda Item
No. 5-4



Agenda Item
No. 6



Agenda Item
No. 7



AR

. L
e
st

Ty

SR

Agenda Item
No. 8-4



DRAFT
Torrance County Board of Commissioners
Regular Commission Meeting
July 28, 2021
9:00 AM
Commissioners Present: RYAN SCHWEBACH - CHAIR
KEVIN MCCALL -~ VICE CHAIR, ABSENT
LEROY CANDELARIA - MEMBER

Others Present:
JANICE BARELA — COUNTY MANAGER
JEREMY OLIVER - FINANCE DIRECTOR
JOHN BUTRICK — COUNTY ATTORNEY
YVONNE OTERO - COUNTY CLERK
VALERIE SMITH — ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER:

Chairman Schwebach: Called meeting to order at 9:03 A.M.

2.  PLEDGE:
Chairman Schwebach: Lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

INVOCATION:

Commissioner Candelaria: I.ead the invocation.




3. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA:

Madam County Manager Janice Barela: Requested that item 11-D be
deferred.

Commissioner Schwebach: Granted request for item 11-D to be
deferred.

4. PROCLAMATIONS:

A. COMMISSION: Ratify Proclamation for Robert “Bobby” Chavez’s
90th Birthday.

Madam County Manager Barela: Presented the Proclamation for Robert
“Bobby” Chavez’s 90th birthday, document hereto attached.

Robert “Bobby” Chavez: Spoke to thank the Commission and all of Torrance
County for the Proclamation.

Chairman Schwebach: Thanked Robert “Bobby” Chavez for the hand that he has
played in raising the generations that came after his, and everything he has done
for Torrance County.

Commissioner Candelaria: Thanked Robert “Bobby” Chavez for everything he
has done for the Torrance County Community.

5. CERTIFICATES AND AWARDS:

A. MANAGER: Presentation of Certificates to Summer Interns for
Successful Completion of Program.

Madam County Manager Barela: Presented Certificates of Completion to the
2021 Summer Interns; list hereto attached. She thanked them for a job well done
and expressed how pleased she was with their hard work.

Lawrence Tapia, Estancia Schools: Expressed his gratitude for the opportunity to
give the students real-life work experience, and how proud he is of the students.




Alicia Pope, Estancia Schools: Spoke of her pride for all the students who
participated in the Summer Internship Program. Mrs. Pope also thanked the County
for the opportunity to give the students work experience.

B. MANAGER: Presentation of Torrance County Extension Office 4-H
Shooting Sports Awards from the District Contest.

Debby Maberry, NMSU Extension Office: Presented the Awards for Youth
Shooting Sports; Winner’s List hereto attached.

6. BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT
NOTHING WAS PRESENTED.

7. PUBLIC COMMENT AND COMMUNICATIONS

Chairman Schwebach: Opened the floor to public comment.

Madam County Manager Barela: Introduced Jason Quintana so he could speak
during Public Comment,

Jason Quintana, President, Manzano Land Grant: Wanted to bring to the
attention of the Commission the dire straits that the Land Grant communities are
in. Many of them live below the poverty line, and they need help with their water
and sewer. The Land Grant governmental agencies do not collect taxes directly, so
they are not able to use tax money to help with infrastructure. Mr. Quintana
explained that the Land Grants would like to be part of the discussion on how to
use the Cares Act funds and believes that the Land Grants could greatly benefit
from a portion of the funds.

[ e i a a a S S

Marcie Wallin, Torrance County Fair Board: Update on the Torrance County
Fair and Fairgrounds. The pig pens are partially disassembled, the land for the new
building has been partially leveled, and the insulation of the Steer Barn is expected
to be finished on this day, July 28th, 2021.




July 28th, 2021, from 4:00 to 7:00 PM there was a public cleanup of the Torrance
County Fairgrounds, volunteers were asked to participate.

Ms. Wallin said that all the award buckles for the Fair have been purchased, and
every expense for the awards have been covered by donations.

This year, instead of having two, the Old Timer’s Day and Fair Parades have been
combined into one parade taking place Saturday, July 31, 2021.

Madam County Manager Barela: Asked Ms. Wallin for times and dates for the
fair, Old Timer’s Day, and the Parade.

Marcie Wallin: Listed the dates and times of the Torrance County Fair events,
Old Timer’s Day, and Parade. Full Torrance County Fair schedule hereto attached.
The entire booklet can be found on the Torrance County Website, at:
https://www.torrancecountynm.org/boards-committees/county-fair-board

The FFA & 4-H students are allowed to ride the parade float if they so wish.

Commissioner Candelaria: Thanked Ms. Wallin and the entire County Fair
Board for everything that they do all year long to put on the Torrance County Fair.

I N S S S S N ]

Danielle Johnston, Torrance County Resident: Thanked Fire Chief Don Dirks,
who was not present today. Mrs. Johnston called Dispatch last week because her
husband fell, and she could not pick him up. Within 10 minutes of calling, Fire
Chief Dirks and his employee showed up and helped him up. He was not hurt and
was able to sit down. She said that she wants to make sure that Fire Chief Dirks is
recognized for his dedication in serving Torrance County.

Hanna Sanchez, Torrance County Fire Department: Promised to make sure
that Fire Chief Dirks gets the message from Mrs. Johnston.

e N Y ]

Madam County Manager Barela: Introduced Janet Douglas, who declined to
speak as she accidentally signed up for Public Comment.

Madam County Manager Barela then introduced Tracey Master, Torrance County
DWI Prevention Coordinator.



Tracey Master, Torrance County DWI Prevention Coordinator: Wanted to
inform the County that she got the DWI Prevention Program back up and running,
with new activities for the Torrance County Community to enjoy.

On August 7, 2021, there will be a showing of The Sandlot at the Mustang Drive-
In in Mountainair. It is an alcohol-free, drug-free, family-friendly, free event.

In September 2021 there will be a Dance Under the Stars in Moriarty.

The 4th-Annual Suicide Prevention and Awareness 5k will be held virtually during
the entire month of September. There is also an event tentatively scheduled for
September 19, 2021.

Zoom Bingo is still being held every Wednesday evening. You can call Mrs.
Master to have Bingo cards sent to you in the mail. These are free events with
donated prizes such as jewelry, restaurant gift cards, rubber chickens and stuffed
animals. Bingo begins at 6pm every Wednesday.

8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. COMMISSION: Motion to approve the July 28, 2021, Torrance County
Commission Minutes.

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve the July 28, 2021, Torrance
County Commission Minutes.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the motion.

There was no discussion.
Roll Call Vote:

Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Commissioner McCall: Absent; Chairman
Schwebach: Yes.

MOTION PASSED.

Madam County Manager Barela: Announced that there will be July 14th, 2021,
Commission Meeting Minutes from the last meeting that were taken by the County
Clerk’s Office Summer Interns and were distributed to the Commission.



Chairman Schwebach: Asked if the Minutes needed to be approved and
expressed how pleased he was for the Interns to have taken minutes.

Madam County Manager Barela: The Minutes done by the Interns do not need
to be approved.

9. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA:
A. FINANCE: Motion to approve Payables.
ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve Payables.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the motion.

There was no discussion.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Commissioner McCall:
Absent; Chairman Schwebach: Yes.

MOTION PASSED.

10. ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY CODE:
NOTHING PRESENTED.

11. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION:

A. FINANCE: Motion to Approve Resolution No 2021-29, Finding the
Fourth Quarter Report for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to be Accurate and True
and Requesting Approval of the Fourth Quarter Report from the Local
Government Division of the Department of Finance and Administration.

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2021-29,
finding the Fourth Quarter Report for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to be accurate and
true, and requesting approval of the Fourth Quarter Report from the Local
Government Division of the Department of Finance and Administration.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the Motion.

6



Jeremy Oliver, Finance Director: Presented the Resolution to the Commission,
as the Fourth Quarter Report for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. This must be approved by
Resolution for DFA.

There was no discussion.
Roll Call Vote:

Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Commissioner McCall: Absent; Chairman
Schwebach: Yes.

MOTION PASSED.

B. FINANCE: Motion to Approve Final FY 2021-2022 Budget,
Resolution No. 2021-30.

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a Motion to approve Final FY 2021-2022 Budget,
Resolution No. 2021-30.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the Motion.

Jeremy Oliver, Finance Director: Handed Out a Presentation of the 4th quarter
recap, hereto attached. Mr. Oliver was able to finalize the budget for 2022. He
explained that there were some minor changes and a few small projects that have
rolled over to this quarter, such as vehicle purchases at the Sheriff’s Office, the
insulation and fan purchases and installation for the Fair Grounds, and the Fencing
project for the Road Department. There were other minor budget changes as well.
The Fire Department had their safety supplies increased, for instance, and similar
purchases were made for other departments to fully balance their budgets. He made
the change that had been approved by the Commission at the July 14th
Commission Meeting with the EMT position, from part-time to full-time.

Roll Call Vote:

Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Commissioner McCall: ABSENT; Chairman
Schwebach: Yes.

MOTION CARRIED




C. GRANT/PLANNING AND ZONING: Motion to approve Torrance
County’s application to the New Mexico Finance Authority for a Grant from
the Local Government Planning Fund in the amount of $50,000 for the
Mescalero Dam Mitigation Engineering Plan, Resolution No. 2021-31.

ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve Torrance County’s application
to the New Mexico Finance Authority for a Grant from the Local Government
Planning Fund in the amount of $50,000 for the Mescalero Dam Mitigation
Engineering Plan, Resolution No. 2021-31.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the Motion.

Justice Chavez and Dakeira Wood, 2021 Summer Interns, Grants Office:
Presented a Power-Point Presentation for Resolution No. 2021-31, hereto attached.

Chairman Schwebach: Expressed how well done the presentation was. Asked
Ms. Wood and Mr. Chavez if he was correct in understanding that the presentation
was to ask the Commission for $12,500 to look and see what the problem with the
Mescalero Dam is, and then either fix the problem, or eliminate the Dam according
to Interstate Stream Specs to be rid of the problem.

Mr. Chavez and Ms. Wood: Answered in the affirmative.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked Madam County Manager Barela how and why the
County acquired the property.

Madam County Manager Barela: Believes that the property was donated and
asked Cheryl Allen if she had more information.

Cheryl Allen, Torrance County Grants Manager: Said that there is conflicting
information on whether it is donated or was purchased by the County.

Chairman Schwebach: Either way it is a liability.

Madam County Manager Barela: Agreed with Chairman Schwebach. It is her
understanding that it is not fenced, and people trespass to ride ATVs on the land.
As a point of clarification, this resolution is to approve the application, and if the
application is then approved it will be sent back to the Commission to approve a
$12,500 match.




Chairman Schwebach: Explained that this is a touchy subject for the Chairman.
He believes that he now has enough information to submit the application, which
was part of the problem that was inherited from the previous Commission.

Commissioner Candelaria: He thinks that if the County doesn’t act soon
regarding the Mescalero Dam, the County could stack up and triple or quadruple
the amount of liability have now. He believes he is clear on the issues and the
actions that need to be taken. Spoke of how proud he is of the Summer Interns, and
their clear and concise presentation.

Cheryl Allen, Torrance County Grants Coordinator: Spoke to remark on her
pride in Ms. Dakeira Wood and Mr. Justice Chavez. They did a remarkable job
while in her employ and on the project. They went on a tour of the Dam and read
all the engineering reports.

Chairman Schwebach: Said that planning is easy, but getting the funding is not.
He hopes that the interns stick to their idea and follow it through.

Roll Call Vote:

Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Commissioner McCall: Absent; Chairman
Schwebach: Yes.

MOTION CARRIED.

D. MANAGER: Motion to approve restructuring of the Torrance
County Fair Boards membership and a paid administrative support position,
Resolution #: 2021-32.

ACTION TAKEN:
-MOTION DEFERRED-

12. APPROVALS

A. CLERK: Motion to approve Memorandum of Understanding
Between the Office of the Secretary of State (SOS) and Torrance County for
the Sole Purpose of Providing State Appropriated Funds to Torrance County
to Cover the Costs of Conducting and Administering the 2021 Regular Local
Election ($28,000).



ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve a Memorandum of
Understanding Between the Office of the Secretary of State (SOS) and Torrance
County for the Sole Purpose of Providing State Appropriated Funds to Torrance
County to Cover the Costs of Conducting and Administering the 2021 Regular
Local Election ($28,000).

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the motion.

Yvonne Otero, Torrance County Clerk: Asking for the approval of the
Memorandum of Understanding between the Office of the Secretary of State (SOS)
and Torrance County (The County). The SOS is responsible to pay all costs of the
upcoming statewide election happening on November 2nd. The SOS has
appropriated funds from the legislature to pay for the cost of conducting and
administering the Election, and “it is in the interest of both parties that the funds
be provided to the counties to pay the costs incurred as a result of the Election.”
The M.O.U. states that the Election Funds will be provided prior to the upcoming
election, as opposed to after the election.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked why the change to paying the County prior to the
election instead of afterward.

Yvonne Otero: Explained that some of the other New Mexico County Clerks had
some issues with knowing what to do during the election and with getting
reimbursed, so the State of New Mexico wanted to see if the upcoming election
would work better like this.

Roll Call Vote:

Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Chairman Schwebach: Yes; Commissioner
McCall: Absent.

MOTION PASSED.

B. FINANCE: Motion to Approve Early Loan Payment, Fire District 5
Homestead L.oan PPRF-1992, with the General Fund or PILT Funds as
funding source. ($146,845.54).

10



ACTION TAKEN:

Chairman Schwebach: Made a motion to approve early loan payment, Fire
District 5 Homestead Loan PPRF-1992, with the General Fund as funding source.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the motion.

Jeremy Oliver, Finance Director: Mr. Oliver stated that one of the
commissioners wanted to see how much an early loan payoff would be. The Fire
District does not have the funds to pay the loan off early, so they suggested either
the General Fund or PILT, as those are the only revenue streams large enough to
possibly pay it off.

Chairman Schwebach and Jeremy Oliver: Discussed the amount of funds within
the General Fund and the Gross Receipts, deciding that there was enough in the
General Fund to cover the early loan payment.

Chairman Schwebach: Amended Motion to approve early loan payment of
Fire District 5 Homestead Loan PPRF-1992 from the General Fund as the
Funding Source.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded Amended Motion.

Commissioner Candelaria: Happy to see the County is becoming self-sufficient
and is cautious of how money is spent.

Roll Call Vote:

Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Chairman Schwebach: Yes; Commissioner
McCall: Absent.

MOTION PASSED.

C. FIRE: Motion to Approve Professional Services Contract for Justin
Hazen, MD, DBA: NM TEMS to serve as Torrance County Medical Director.

Chairman Schwebach: Opened the floor to discuss Item 12-C. No Motion was
made.

Hannah Sanchez, Torrance County Fire Department: The Professional
Services Contract was last signed in 2017 with Justin Hazen, but under Duke City

11



Health Care. Duke City Health Care no longer exists as an entity, so the contract
needs to be changed to Mr. Hazen’s name and DBA. Legal counsel is currently
working on the contract, but the EMT staff can no longer give medical attention to
those who call Torrance County Emergency Services. They cannot be Medical
Rescue, but First Aid/CPR only.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked for clarification on the details of how and when we
no longer have medical direction.

Hannah Sanchez: She was made aware of the lack of a Medical Director
approximately two weeks prior to this Commission Meeting by Superior
Ambulance Service. The previous Medical Director stated to Mrs. Sanchez that the
previous Fire Chief had been made aware of the situation and was told that they
were working on it. She made a copy of the previous Contract and changed the
name and compensation. Mr. Hazen does not want to be compensated monetarily,
but instead wants interim Firefighting training. This would cause a conflict of
interest as being under Contract with the County but also volunteering as a fire
fighter puts the County under liability should Mr. Hazen get hurt while
volunteering.

Chairman Schwebach: Clarified that while Mr. Hazen is the same person that has
previously acted as Medical Director, he is no longer doing business as Duke City
and would now be under a new DBA.

Hannah Sanchez: Answered that Chairman Schwebach was correct. The EMTs
may no longer practice under their level of care, and may not give medications,
including oxygen. This puts their licenses at risk. They must practice to their level

of care, but without a Medical Director, they cannot do so, and are caught in a
Catch-22.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked John Butrick, Torrance County Attorney, how long
he anticipates before the contract has been written and is complete.

John Butrick, Torrance County Attorney: Explained that he, Fire Chief Don
Dirks, and Procurement Officer Noah Sedillo are working on the contract as they
speak but are unsure of an exact timeline until completion.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked for them to have it completed within the next two
days.

ACTION TAKEN:

12



Chairman Schwebach: Made a Motion to give authority to Madam County
Manager Janice Barela to complete the contract once it is done and reviewed by
the Torrance County Attorney.

Commissioner Candelaria: Seconded the Motion

Roll Call Vote:

Commissioner Candelaria: Yes; Chairman Schwebach: Yes; Commissioner
McCall: Absent.

MOTION PASSED.

Chairman Schwebach: Asked Mrs. Sanchez to make sure that Fire Chief Don
Dirks received Mrs. Johnston’s message of thanks from earlier in the meeting,.

Hannah Sanchez: Agreed to pass on the message and told Mrs. Johnston that the
partner riding with Fire Chief Dirks was District 2 Battalion Chief Deborah
Tucker.

Madam County Manager Janice Barela: Asked Mrs. Sanchez to announce Fire
Chief Don Dirks’ passing of his training.

Hannah Sanchez: Spoke to congratulate Fire Chief Dirks on passing his EMT
National Certification for EMT-Basic. He obtained his actual license, taught the
Fire Department what a team should be, and got the Fire Department up to the
levels that they should be. They are all very proud.

Commissioner Candelaria: Thanked Fire Chief Dirks, and spoke of how proud
he is of all the hard work he has put in. Recognized the difficult tasks that Fire
Chief Dirks was given, and how well he has accomplished them.

13. DISCUSSION

A. MANAGER: Presentation and Discussion of American Rescue Plan
Act Funding Eligible Uses.

BREAK TO CHANGE DISCS: 10:18 a.m.,
BACK IN SESSION AT 10:25 A.M.

13



Cheryl Allen, Torrance County Grants Coordinator: Presented the US
Department of Treasury’s Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
Presentation on the American Rescue Plan, here to attached.

Mrs. Allen covered the possible uses of the American Rescue Plan CARES Act
Funds. She broke down how much money Torrance County Received as a whole
($3,100,018.00). The County received the first half on June 21st, and the next half
will be given in 12 months. Any funds not used will revert to the Treasury. Total
awards in New Mexico were $1.75 billion, including the following awards in
Torrance County:

Encino: $25,000 Estancia: $390,000 Moriarty: $453,000
Mountainair: $214,000 Willard: $263,000

Mrs. Allen has put a link on the Torrance County website to the United States
Treasury so anyone can read up on the eligible uses for the funds. There is an
August 31st deadline for an interim report.

Chairman Schwebach: Wants to have public feedback on what the Torrance
County Community wants to know what to do with these funds. Commissioner
Schwebach feels that infrastructure and especially water infrastructure is the most
important projects to focus on. He would also like more communication with the
local elected officials.

Cheryl Allen: Is looking at how we can better keep constituents informed on
upcoming grants. The Grants page will now have information about the Grants
available and Projects that are happening in the County.

Madam County Manager Barela: Plans on setting up meetings with the local
elected officials to see where collaboration can happen.

B. MANAGER’S REPORT:

Madam County Manager Barela: Presented the Manager’s Report,
hereto attached.

C. COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS:

1. Commissioner McCall, District 1: Absent, No report.

14



- 2. Chairman Schwebach, District 2;: Updated the community on the
road conditions.

3. Commissioner Candelaria, District 3: Happy to see the youth at
the Commission Meeting. Explained that they are Role Models, even as young as
they are. Thanked the Interns for all their hard work.

Madam County Manager Barela: Announced that the Assessor’s office will be
training County Employees on the new Tyler system during the weeks of August
9-12 and September 13-16, 2021. There will be some services shut down during
those weeks but will be working their hardest to keep everything running
smoothly. ‘

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION:

A. MANAGER: Purchase of the County Fairgrounds, closed pursuant
to NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1(H)(8).

Chairman Schwebach: Exit Regular Session and Enter Executive Session
at 11:20 AM.
Reconvene Regular Session at 11:34 AM.

15. ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE NEXT BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING: August 11,2021 @ 9:00 AM.

16. SIGNING OF OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS.

17. ADJOURN:
Chairman Schwebach: Adjourned the Meeting at 11:35 AM.

15



Signed By:

Ryan Schwebach — Torrance Valerie Smith — Admin Assistant,
County Board of Commission Torrance County Clerk’s Office
Chairman

Date: / /2021

The Video of this meeting can be viewed in its entirety on the Torrance
County NM website. Audio discs of this meeting can be purchased in the
Torrance County Clerk’s Office and the audio of this meeting will be aired on
out local radio station KXNM.

16



2021 Northwest District Shooting Sports Contest Winners:
Presented by Debby Maberry

Archery Bare Compound Bow Novice Team

Won 2" Place:

. Ryan Barnes
Lucia Creegan

. Aoife Sartori

. Fiona Sartori

Individual placings: 4" place Lucia Creegan

.22 Rifle Novice Team

Won 1% Place:

« Russell Acosta
« Andy Otis

« Chase Truijillo
« Chance Trujillo

High point individual Andy Otis

Individual placings 2" place Chase Trujillo
3" place Addisyn Barnes
4 place Chance Truijillo

5th place Russell Acosta



.22 Rifle Junior Team

Won 2" Place:

. Lucas Acosta
. Karlianna Burchett
. Lorelai Sedillo

Individual placings 4t place Lorelai Sedillo

5th place Karlianna Burchett

Shotgun Novice Team

Won 1%t Place:

« Russell Acosta
« Andy Otis

« Chase Truijillo
« Chance Truijillo

High point individual Russell Acosta
Individual placings 2" place Andy Otis
3" place Chance Trujillo

4 place Chase Truijillo

Shotgun Junior Individual

4™ place Lucas Acosta



2021 TORRANCE COUNTY STUDENT SUMMER INTERNS

Alexis
Archibeque

Nazir Astorga

Hayden
Bingham

Dezlyn Carreon

Jaqueline
Carreon

Kymber
Casados

Justice Chavez
Aiden Dickens

Jazmine
Dominguez

Laura Gariss

Michael
Johnson

Moises Lovato

Adrian Lucero

Edward Lucero
Marcos Lucero
Miranda Lucero
Trinity Lucero
Amber Maberry

Kassidy
Maberry

Andres
Martinez

Bernadette
Martinez

Tyler Modgling

Andreas
Moreno

LeeAnne Padilla
Caytlyn Ross
Lanah Rubi
Alisha Salas

Antonio
Sanchez

Noe Sanchez
Sophia Sedillo

Kaydence
Sisneros

Angelica
Summers

Lucille
Summers

Samantha
Valencia

Gabriella
Villafuerte

Daisia White
Dakiera Wood



2 18 SR 07




2021 TAG —IN RULES
Steers and Heifers
Thursday, April 22nd, 2021 5:00pm — 7:00pm Estancia
Dairy, Pygmy, Market Goats; Hogs, Dairy Heifers and Lambs
Wednesday, June 9th, 2021 5:00pm — 7:00pm, Moriarty
Saturday, June 12th, 2021 8:00am — 10:00am, Estancia

1. General rules where applicable apply to this section.
2. Each animal must be present at tag in and go through all processing stations.
Entry fees are: Market Steers, Breeding Beef, Dairy Heifers.... $10.00 each

Market & Breeding Sheep......ccvveevvvviiininirneennn, $5.00 each
Market & Dairy/Pygmy GOatS.....cocovvevvrverrennnnns $5.00 each
Market & Breeding HOZS.......cccvvevrnverininnrensnenrennnes $8.00 each
TAG COSTurnrrerermenrrerrerersiesine st ssssssessens s smesssss e sensssens $3.50 each

3. All animals must be owned and cared for by the tag-in date.

4. Animals not meeting the fair requirements will not be allowed to show.

5. For more information, see the current year’s Guide for Livestock Exhibitors at New
Mexico Livestock Board web page.

6. Animals shown in the junior departments cannot be shown in the Open Class.

7. TCB initials stand for Torrance County Bred, meaning the animal was bred in Torrance
County. .

Clean Up Days
July 17th, 7:00am — 11:00am
July 28th, 4:00pm — 7:00pm

EXTENSION OFFICE PERSONNEL
Debby Maberry, Program Assistant

VO-AG INSTRUCTORS
Milton Harbert, Estancia
Cole Andes, Moriarty
Eric Encinias, Mountainair



CALENDAR OF EVENTS

TUESDAY, AUGUST 10th, 2021

RED BARN EXHIBITS OPEN TUESDAY ~ SATURDAY (HOURS TO BE ANNOUNCED)

7:00am-10:00am
9:00am - 7:00pm
9:00am —12:00pm
10:00am

6:00pm

6:30pm

9:00am —~ 1:00pm
9:00 am-11:00am
10:00am —7:00pm
11:00am-12:30pm
1:00pm

2:00pm
2:00pm - 4:00pm
4:00pm
4:00 pm

8:00am

10:00am — 6:00pm
10:00am - 7:00pm
11:00am

2:00 pm

3:00 pm

4:00pm
6:00pm-8:00 pm
6:00pm

8:00am - 10:00am
9:00am

10:00am

10:00am - 3:00pm
12:00pm

2:00pm

3:00pm - 6:00pm

4:00pm
6:00 pm

Livestock Check-in for All Animals

Check-in Indoor Exhibits (including special cake)
Check-in Farm Mechanics Exhibits

Weigh-in

Goat Roping Entries

Goat Roping

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 11th, 2021
Indoor Exhibits judging CLOSED to the public
Dairy Goat and Pygmy Goat Show
Commercial Booths Open
Indoor Exhibits open to the public
Market Goat Show (Open, Market, TCB, Showmanship)
Booster Show to follow
Pie Contest open to public
Baked Goods and Candy Taste offl
BINGO-sponsored by Moriarty Farm Bureau
Market Lamb Show (Open, Market, TCB, Showmanship)
Booster Show to follow

THURSDAY, AUGUST 12th, 2021
Market Swine Show {Open, Market, TCB, and Showmanship)
Booster Show to follow
Indoor Exhibits open to the public
Commercial Booths Open
Poultry & Rabbit Shows
Dairy Heifer Show
Heifer & Steer Show
BINGO-sponsored by Moriarty Farm Bureau
Declare Sale Animals
Shepherds and Sheep Wool Lead & Cotton Extravaganza —in the Show Arena

FRIDAY, AUGUST 13th, 2021
Non Sale Animals will be released
indoor Exhibits open to the public
Pet Show in the Show Arena
Commercial Booths Open
East Torrance County Soil and Water Conservation Event
Homemade Cookie Contest open to public —in the Show Arena
Check-Out all indoor/outdoor exhibits
Check-Out Livestock
{Exhibitors must fill out a release form and clean pens)
American Legion Flag Ceremony
Junior Animal Sale



ST, 6
S




Department Updates

Torrance County has been blessed with rain, With ﬂ']JS amazing blessmg comes more work. The weeds
are growing and some roads are washing out. We want Torrance County residents to know that-our
maintenance and road crews aré working diligently on these issues. If you have a road request, please
submit it on our website at www.torrancecountynm.org, and we will get to it as soon as possible.

Human Resources

. T'am pleased to report that Torrance County now has-eight dispatchers. We only lack three positions to be
filled to be fully staffed. ThlS is exciting news for us. D1spatchers are a eritical part of the County’s.
lemergency services.

Open Posted Positions:
e Zoning Officer — Closes today, July 28, 2021, at 5:00 PM
o Mechanic-Equipmcnt Operator — Closes September 23, 2021
o . 911 Operator/Communications Specialist (3) '
o Student Work-Study Program (Monarty High School Senior)
o -Clerical Float Clerk

To get more information about these positions or to apply for any of these positions, please visit the
County’s website at www.torrancecountynm.org. Click on “Job Opportunities”. :

Finance

-1 want to give a shout out to our Finance Department: Finance Director Jeremy Oliver and his staff,
Joanna Romero, Noah Sedillo and Lori Archuleta. They have been working diligently to assist Elected
Officials and Department Heads to get purchase orders in place for the fiscal year. This is important to
ensure our utility bills, contracts and vendors are paid without any delays. The County, desires to be
fiscally responsible in all of our business, including paying for what we owe in a timely manner. It is a
team effort, and it is a pleasure to watch as we are off to a great start this fiscal year.

Sheriff

The next “Deputies and Dogs event will be held on Frlday, August 13, 2021, from 3:00 PM to 6 00 PM
at the Moriarty Lions Club. “Deputies and Dogs™ is a non-profit event committed to building a positive
relationship with local law enforcement and.our community’s youth. The Sheriff’s Office goal is to create
rapport with our community. They will have games, finger painting, jumpers and fun. There will be free
food and drinks. .



Agenda Item
0. 9-4



OTTTPaS "1 AdexlL

"SADHEHD HESHHL SSID0Yd OL INAWIAVAAJ HONVYNIL JHL HZI¥OHLAV AgH¥HEH SHOd GNY ILVYA SIHL NO
QHENASSI 38 OL SMDEHD HTVAVd SINNOJOY IASHHL d04 LSIXE SANAA INAIDIAANS LVHL XJAILIED AEIYIH SHO0C YHUYNSVIUEL ALNNOD CIENDISHIAANN IHIL

01930 SUUOAZX UYOROOMUDS URAY eTIRTOPURD ‘W AO¥ST TTeOOH UTASY

A9 LSHLLY : : : dENDIS

TAINAOCD HONYEEOL A€ dIVd NAAE SYH I¥Yd ON IVHLI OGNV QIE¥OV SY ANV ‘HTdYNOSYAY ’ISHC IV GEHIVID SINNOWY

HHL IVHL ‘CANIWVXE NZEE SVH JHHONOA STHL IVHL ’'¥EJ0d¥d ANV XJIYSSHEDEN H¥VY AHHL LVHL ‘NISNSH SINNODOY IFHI NI GHEIVLS SY QEWIOJNEd

NATES JAVH SEDIA¥EHS HHL LVHL "NIZYFH GILVIS NOTLYSNIIWOD HHL FATHDHY OL ODIXAW MIEN 40 SALOIVIS gHI J0 NOILALILSNOD HHI ¥9aN0 CEILILNI

ATTIVDET HIY SNOS¥Id CAWYN NIHLIM HHL LVAL AJIL¥ED EM ° TT0Z/8T/80 ONIANZ dOI¥Hd HHI d04 FAOSY NMOHS SY SHDOIANYS HHL ¥O04 qHIEND

-NI SNOILV¥DITIO A0 INNODDY NO ¥8°8ZL'0GL'T d0 WOS HHL YO4 ALNAOD HONVIIOL A0 SANNJ HHL ISNIVOY SINVIIVM HHI HZIVOHLOY OQ R TAMOTIY
QINQYAIY HYIM HAOHY CILVYIAWONT SWIVID HHIL IVHL AJIINED O SYEANOISSIWWOD 40 ¥V0d ALNAOD IONVHNOL HHI JO SUEEWIN CINOISIIANN THL

£ic AIINTES SYOHHD TYLOL

NOILVYDIJAdILYID
(T9DFHD) S¥:gS0T TZ/8T/8 :@3ead



¥8ZZ-99-T0%

moﬂw#OMB#MUHO>ZH
TESTYETHIOOVY 0€T6955CH

LOVAINOD ¥FIJOD HONUYNIL ILOVILNOIOIAJHS TVYIDNUNIL NAGNYT HDOVTI HA

TZ0Z/LT/LO
29 81t
08691T ¥ .10

z9°81€ 1202/92/L0 TT9TLOZ
0L"8ZE ONINOZ % ONINNYId
YESIFET TZ0Z/LT/LO
#IDDY 860FFPOELHEDIOANT €TT69SST 0L 8Z€E
0L 8zE 1202/92/L0 TTOZTLGT ¥82Z-80-10% H#IDYIINCD JIIATJOD Zd IODVAINOIDIANHES TYIDNYNIL NIAGNYT FOVT Id 6L69TT 4 1O
SS° 607 AIOYNTH KINAOD
£82Z8ZFTHIODY TOLOLBZL T2Z0T/LT/LO
© #HEDIOANI- 8SS9TTOS-00SHLOTIINOD SS°60%
S5°60V 1202/92/L0 TZIZLBT ¥82Z-0T-10%  JFIJ0D SINVID/YHOUNVW IDVILNCADIAYAS TYIONVNTA NIACNYT FDVI Zd 8L69TT ¥ TO
29°81¢ FHOYNYHW AINOOD
FESTPETHIDOV, 1202/LT/LG
T60PY0ELHTDIOANT 8TZT695STH . z9°8i¢
29°8TE T20Z/92/L0 TTIZLLT ¥82Z-0T-T0% IOVALNOD ¥HIJOD UIDUYNYH IDVIINOBDIAYHS TYIDNVNIL NIANYT ZOVI 3d LLESTT ¥d TO
61°88C INZWLIOTTY HuId HIVIS
€007 ¥0ELHADIOANT 1Z0Z/L2Z/L0
) FLLYOETHIDOVY 986TG9SCHILOTILNOD ) 61°88T
61°882 1202/92/L0 TZYELIT TLZZ-T16-€T¥H YATAOD NIWAY HUTI IDVIINOFDIAYIS TYIDNUYNIZ NEANVYI HDYI A 9L69TIT ¥ 10
05°60€ MEATD XINOOD
YESTHETHLODY 1Z02/L2/L0
ZESEI6ZLYIDIOANT LEEBISST 05°60¢€
0§°60€ T20Z/9T/L0 TZITLST ¥82Z-02-2T9 #HIOVEINOD ¥HIAOD MUFTID IOVIINOIDIAYAS TVIDNYNIS NIAANYT FOYT I "SLE9TT ¥ TO
L8 0FT INIWIEYIEd QYod ALNOOD
FTESTHIHIIOY T20Z/L2/L0
) YLEGSETLHETDIOANT T9S9TT0S-008 L8 OVT
L8 07T TZ02/9Z/L0 T1TIZLYT ¥82Z-09-20% #IDVEINOD IHAIJOD AVOY IOVEINOIDIANHS TYIDNYNIZ NIANYT IOV Ad YL69TT ¥ TO
TT 8ST LT aNIM
- TZ0Z/LZ/LO
TET69SSTHIODY TITHP0EL TT° 852
TT 8S2 ' TZ0ZT/92/LO TTITLET ¥822-60-069 H#EDOIOANT Ad ¥OH INIWAVA ¥HIJOIDIANHS TYIDNYNII NIANYI #OVI Id €L69TT ¥ IO
69°9LT AHENSYHIL ALNNOD
T8FEZETHIOOY 8LIFFOEL T20Z/LZ/LO
#IDIOANI ZST6000S-00SHIOVILNOD 69°9L2
69°9LZ 1Z0Z/92/L0 TZTIETLZT ¥82Z-0€~T0¥% YHIZOD YTINSVIAL IOVILNOBDIANHES TYIONYNIA NIANYT ZOVT I ZLEI9TT ¥ 10
LT CTS AATIAHS AINOOD
TLLPOETHIODY 9906%0EL TZ0Z/LZ/LO
#IDIOANI T86TSSGSTHIOTILNOD LT°2IS
LTI TIS TZ0Z/92/L0 TZ9ZLIT ¥82Z-05-10% YIIA0D AIIYHHS IDVIINOIOIAIHAS TYIONUNIS NIANYT TOYI AA TLEITT ¥ 10
Junowy # oda HIVA # SoTOAUIL we3I auT] uotidIanseq swen FLYA #30
T :9bra 120Z/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/€T/L0 QAINIAA SADIHD ONILSIT ADHHD (09DEHD) LO:IS:0T TZ/8T/8 :83ed



97 8T¢C INIRLIVAHA FONYNIA



STZZ-€2-10% Z20Zi4d

9€°9¢ 9T99¢€ /7
9€°9¢ ST99€E / 7/ S12Z-9T-T0% SELIS ONIQIING ALINOOD
9g-9¢ 9T99¢ /7 S1ZZ-SI-10% TIY ¥0d ISINOFI Od MEIO
s9g-9g 9T99€ /7 GTZZ-LE-TO¥
g€ 9¢ 9T99E / §12Z-9£-10% 1202/L2/L0
9€°9€ 9T99¢ / ST2Z-LZ-10% 00°00%
9€°9¢ 9T99€ TZ0Z/92/L0 T29TL8 S1ZZ-%2-10% ‘ONI FIVMAQIYH NILSND $869TT ¥ TO
I1°2 JALNID HOIVESIA-TIT6 i1°¢Z SEDIAYAS TYWINY
T ¢ XANIOLLY 60°C JI¥d AINOOD TT°2 ITD HIIVAH ¥IYNIVINNOH
IT°¢ INIVH XTTIWOD TYIDIANL i1°2 SEDIAI0 HATIVILSINIWAY IT°¢ WEINTD HOINES AIIVINOW
172 AHINTD VOINAS VIDNVISH I1°2 NID YOINIS YIYNIVLNAOK IT°2 INIVH OQTI8 IJ3d HITYHEH
it e 9199€ /7 S1ZZ-08-1IT6
TT°2 9T99¢ /7 GTZZ-28-10%
o 9T99€ / /7 STZZ-9S-10% . INIYH
60°2 9199¢ / /7 STZZ-€S-T0% 0D WAOLHIODOY 890E9THIDIOANT
Ti°¢ 9T99¢€ /7 STZZ-€2-10% ZZOZAS
TI°¢ 9T9%¢€ / /7 ST22-9T~T0% SELIS ONIQIING XLNOOD
IT°¢ 9T99¢€ / 7 STZZ-ST-T10% TTY ¥04 ISHNDFL Od NEEO
IT°2 9199¢ / /7 S1ZT-LE-TO¥
TT°¢ 9T99€ /7 §122-9€-10% T202/LZ/L0
A4 9T99€ /7 S12Z-LT-10% 61" €T
T 9T99¢€ 120T/92/L0 TTITLL §1ZZ-%2-10% “ONI HNVMGEIVH NILSOD ¥869TIT ¥ IO
89°¢ FHINTD HOIVASIA-TT6 8972 SADIAIAS TYWINY
L9z ATNEOLLY L9°¢ ¥IVA ALINNOD L9°2 ITD HITYEH ¥IYNIV.INOOW
L9°z INTYH XTTEWOD TYIDIANL . L9z $AITALO FATIVELSININAY L9°2 YHINTD YOINHS ALIVIVOW
L9z YAINID ¥OINHS YIONYISHE L9 NTD JOINIS ITIYNIVINOOW L9°¢T INIVH 9a7I6 IdZd HITIVEH
89°¢2 9199¢€ / /7 STzZ-08-1T6 NIYW 0D JHOIHIDOVY 68TEITHADIOANT
89°¢ 9199¢ / /7 STZZ2-28-10%
L9z 9T99€ / 7/ §12Z-95-10%
L9 ¢ ST99¢€ !/ 7/ S1ZZ-€S-T0%
L9 9T939€ /7 S12Z-€2-10% ZZ0Zid
L9°¢T 9199¢€ / /7 STZZ-9T-10% SELIS ONIGIING AINAOD
Lotz 9199¢ /7 ST2Z-ST-T0% TTY o4 ISENDHAE 04 NIAJO
Loz 9T99E /7 S1ZZ-LE-TO%
L9 e 9T99¢ /7 S12Z-9£-10% TT0ZT/LT/LO
L9°¢ 9199¢ /7 STZZ-LT-10% 6€°62
L9z 9T199¢€ T20Z/9T/L0 TZ9ZLT ST22-%Z-10% “ONI F¥YMAIVH NILSOD €869TT ¥ 10
297 ZE€8E NUNILNIVH 3 SNOILVIZAO
LOELTH#IDDOY 9Z0%6-ANIH#IDIOANT
ZI99¢€ TIY~TTTY-N¥80-9T IOVILNOD SID
T199¢ TZ0ZT/0E/9 - 120T/T/L
Zi9se SSELYA HDIAYAS
§8°98T ZT99¢€ /7 82ZT~S9-T0¥% ONIddYH =Y
LY 189 TI9sE /7 8ZZZ-59~T0% A¥OLNIANI TYIINISSE LASSY 1202/LZ/LO
L2716 ZI99¢ /o 82ZZ-S9-T0¥% AINAOW INVId TVDISAHA/SHILITIOVI Z9°ZE8E
£9°2502 z199¢ 1202/92/LQ TZ92LT 82Z2-59-10% STYIINESSHE ILESSY SNOILATOS =HANd Z8EITT ¥ TO
ST ZSE JOSSTSSY ALNNOD
YEBTFETHIOOY €0TPHOEL 1202/LZ/LO
HEIDIOANT 82Z695STHIDTIINOD ST-ZSE
ST 2S€ T202/92/L0 1292LIZ ¥8ZZ-0%-T0% ¥ATAOD ¥OSSISSY IOVIINOIDIANIS TYIONVYNII NEANYT HDVI ZA I869TT A TO
Junowy # od HLYA  # 9DTOAUIL wolI SuUTT uoTadTansadg sweN FIvd T #AD

z :sbeg

TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TZ0ZT/E€Z/L0 QHININE SMDITHD

DNILSIT HDHHD

(09DEHD)

LO*TS:0T TZ/8T/8 :®1ed



g€ 9¢ . 9T9%¢
8€°9¢ 9T9s¢ -

STTZ-95-T10% INIYW 0D JIJOLHIDDOY 890£8C
STZTZ-€S9-T0% #ADTOANT ¥HAAYT NOISNHEIXHE .0€

~
~ O~



66°99z  INAWINVAEA QYOd ALNAOD
1202/LZ/L0
AYOUDLELIDY 066FNI 66°992
66°99%2 T202/92/L0 TZ9ZLZT £022-09-20% $ADTOANI FOVNIAO HNTHDOYN XV¥4 1 dNO¥D FAAON 6869TT ¥ IO
00°0ST MUATD AINOOD
2z Ad TT/TTHEADIOANT
06L9¢€ zZ0Z aNne - 120Z/LZ/LO
06L9¢€ . - 1202 ATIAL ¥O4 SENA AIVITILAY . 00°0ST
00°0ST 06L9¢€ 1202/92/L0 TZ9ZLE 6922-02-10% TYANNY SYIHTID AINAOD DWN  FIVITILLY S:MMIFTD ALNAOD DHN 8869TT ¥ 10
i §L°0¢€ XYL SWE/SNOLIYDINAKHOD SL°€ST NOISSIWWOD AINACD
’ 00°€ZT INAWLOTTY FIId HIVLS 00°9%2 ITINSTALL ALNOQOD SL-0€ ONIYOLINOW ALINOWHOD
§Z°8€¢E JATYIRS AINNOD GL°0€ ONISSTIAQY TYdINd SL°0€ TAOANL FLIYEOEd
06°T9 INAWIEYIEQ a¥0d ALNNOD sz-26 ONINOZ % ONINNYIL Sz°26 NYNALNIVW % SNOILYSHd0
00°€TT INTRINVAAG TONYNIAI SL-0€ AANIOLLY 05° 19 NOILVELS INIWAY INVID
00°9%2 ATDOYNYW ZLNAOD 0S° €T AUATD ALNOOD 88°69€ JOSSASSY ALNOOD
SL°0€E /7 L0ZZ-€£8-%09 ASNAIEAA TIAID
SL°€ST / 7 L0ZZ-S0-TO0¥ ADIAI0 NOISNALXH
00°€ZT / 7 L02Z-T6-€1¥ NIWQY FIId
00°9%¢ /7 L0ZZT-0E-T0% ATINSYHIAL
SL°0¢€ / /7 L0ZZ-€L-0C% JOLINCH ALINOWHOD
Sz°8ge / 7 L02Z-0S-TI0% AITIFHS
SL*0E /7 L02Z-1.0-T0% DNISSTIAAY TYINd
SL°0€ /7 L02Z-06-10% FLYE0dd
0S°19 / 7/ L0ZZ-09-20% . avoy
SL°0€ /7 L0ZZ-59-10% II
SL°0¢E /7 L0Z2-80-10% INTARDYOANT AAOD
05° 19 / 7/ L022-80-TI0% zd
05°T9 / 7/ L0Z2Z-0T-T0% NOISSIWWOD
0§° 19 /7 L0ZZ-59-10% HONYNTLNT Y
00°€21 / 7 L0ZZ-55-T10% HONYNTS
SsL-o¢g /7 L022-9S-T0% ATAMYT
05719 / / L02Z-6%-T0% SINVID
. 0S§°%8T /7 L0ZZ-0T-10% AADYNYI TZ02/LT/LO
0S" €12 /7 L022-02-10% M¥ETD TZ0Z/9T/80-TZ0T/LT/LO €9°%LZ2
88°69¢ T202/92/L0 TZ9ZLOT L0ZZ-07-10% YOSSESSY SHENOHA dIOA ONI ¥AIILXHN L869TT ¥ 10
S5°8T SADIALO FATIVILSININAY
INIVH 0D ¥IOL
#I1DDY 9P0€9ZHIDIOANT MOTIEX
SEONYIINE INOYd INIVATE NIWAY
AINNOD JFTION INTIW SSETIDYD 1202/LZ/L0
TWYIL FITIOY AVAL INIVA NODE NID S5°8T
§5°8T ST99€ 1202/92/L0 TZ92L6E STZZ-ST-10% ‘ONTEWNIE ‘TEOINIOETE “ISIN “ONI T¥YMANVH NILSOD 9869TT ¥ 10
LE"9€ CYEINTD HOIVESIA-TI6 LE"9€E SHOIANIS TYWINY
9€°9¢ AANIOLLY 8€-9¢ ITYd ALNOQOD 9¢°9¢ ITD HITYAH dTYNIVINNOW
9€°9¢ INTYH XETAWOD TYIDIANL 9€-9¢ SEDILI0 HALIVILS INTHAY 9€°9¢ IFAINED FOINES ALAVIIOW
9€-9¢ HLNED HOINIS YIDONVISH 9g°9¢ NED ¥OINAS JITYNIVINAOW 9¢°9¢ INIVA D4Td L4800 HITVEH
LE"9€ 9T99¢€E /7 ST2Z-08-TT16
LE"9€ 9199¢ /7 S12Z-28-10%
Junomy # 04 FIVa # SoTOasUT walI |UTI uvotadiansag sweN HIYA #2ID
€ :obeg TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/€Z/L0 CQHAINTIVA SMOIHD  ONIISIT MDHHD (09D"HD) LO®TS:0T 1IE/8T/8 :93ea



L8-€9
LS LE

/7
T20Z/92/L0 TZ9ZLY

SECZ-S9-TOV
€0TZ-ST-T0%

VYSSIIVN ATHIY NOSIILS SWAOAINO
NTWQY ALNAOOD JI0A SJIOW ANV SI¥KH

ATddNS TIVIHAO TYILNIINNI

€2°0ST
0669TT

g 10



IAII-DEND -NATTHIDTOANT
HSYHIONI HOT¥d

$659¢€
P659¢€ 04 ASYD NI SIYTIOq TYNOILIAAY 120Z/82/L0
¥659¢€ SIANOVIN FOAVE HWYN 00T 0€°%T
0€°¥%T ¥659€ TZ02/82/L0 TTBTLYT 6122-67-T0% YHATIOH HOAVE QI HWYN IVITID DISVE SSENISNE NOZYWY 000LTIT ¥ TO
6% SET INFWIOTIY HYIJd FIVLS
TG8LBZTTHIIOIY
68°6 / 0£22-T6-90% ZLS68T0866H#HIIOANT XYL SETIYS 120Z/82/L0
8Z2°9T / 0£22-T6-90% IVHZVH 67" SET
2ET60T TZ0z/82/L0 TTBZLIT 0€22-16-90% NIDAXO SX/AEH INEY IHANITID DT ¥SN SYDIIV 6669TT ¥ IO
00°2TT FOSSHSSY ALNAOD
TZO0Z/LT/LO
852 XOg#IDDY ) 00-2tT
00°2t2 ZEBYE 1202/92/L0 TZIZTLEZ 6922-0%-T0% 852 XO0g Od ¥04 INIE TUNINNY YALSYHLISOd "S°N €669TT ¥ IO
66°L9C JIVA ZINOOD oL ZLE IAINED FOINAS VIDNVYLSI
60°88€ FLLNED JOINIS ALTYIVOH €9°2LL YAINID HOIVISIA-TT6E T6°T0€ NFED JOINAS WIVNIVINOOW
0%"9S9 ITD HITYHEH ITYNIVINOOW ¥0°S9L NITO TYDIQHEN YZNYYEISH $6°28ET JINIVW XATIAWOD 'TV¥IDIAALD
TZ 2%S XINIOLIY 8T €% INIVW D01 IdEd HIIVEH TE€"€8ST SHEDIAI0 AATLVILSININAY
66°L92 8LLYE /7 SITT-£9-T0% SLZTOOLHIDDOY L/T6SOSTHIDIOANT
0L"2ZLE 8LLOE /7 STZZ-9€-10%
60°88¢ 8LLIE / 7 ST2Z-LE-TO¥
€97 CTLL 8LLIE /7 STZZ-08~TL6
16°TOE 8LLIT /7 STCT-LT-T0%
0%° 559 8LLYE /7 STZZ-£2-T10%
$0°S9L 8LLYE / 7 §1ZZ-L8-0€9 T0Z9~9L0-8T
¥6°T8ET 8LLYE /7 ST22-9T-T0% IDWALNOD SHD
Iz TS 8LLYE / / STTT-95-10% ETINO JOIV¥'I NO XVIL %61°8° 1202/LZ/LO
81 €¥¥ 8LLYE / 7/ 5TZ22-%Z2-10% ZZ0ZT/0€/9 - TE0T/T/L HEATIDHIIH 0%~ SLYL
T€-€8ST 8LLIE TZ02/92/L0 TT9ZLS ST22-STI-T0% HOVIEAOD QIED DTIL ALITTIILN ® DNIEROTd DL T669TT ¥ TO
. 69°¢€L6 JAATYIHS AINNOD
99L8T8T OHHADIOANT
69° €L €999¢ / ¥ZZZ-0S-10% LEONN
£999¢€ YIDNYLSH -~ MIV¥d dNHIIY
£€999¢ HOY MAN
£€999¢ ¥ :SQqO0¥D HHI - IZ0Z ‘L LsSnonvy
€999¢€ q¥¥d HHL NI HIAQOW
00° 0S¥ £999¢ /7 YZZZ-0S-T0% HAILVILINI ATHSYANINVL ALINAWHOD
€999¢€ AIFYI¥OR - M¥YE AFTSOAD
£€999¢€ © NODYIA LSYI
£999¢€ HHI aN¥ YA¥Y - T20Z ‘LT X100 TZ02/LZ/L0O
. £€999¢ MIVE . ZHL NI FIAOK 69°€L6
00-0S¥% £€999¢ T20Z/92/L0 TZIZTLY ¥ZZZ-0S9-T07 EATIVILINI JdTHSYEANLIVA ALINOWAOD ‘ONI STEALDIE NOLLOW MNYMS T669TT ¥ 10
6L°8S INTVH XEIIWOD 'TYIDIANL L8 €9 NYNILNIV 3 SNOILVIZJO0 LS LE SEDIAI0 FATLVILSINTHAY
08%8TS9HIDDY
€LZE-6S0ST/PLZE-6S0STHIDIOANT
6L°8S /7 €0ZZ-9T~T0% IYIDIANS d0d SAOH ANV SIVKH
’ MOIN 1T0T/LT/LO
AUTIOWY # od HAIYAQ # 9DTOAUT we3I SUTT uoT3draossq sweN HAILYA #ID
4 sabeg TZ0Z/8T/80 OL 1T20Z/€Z/L0 QIINIIE SADITHD ONILSIT MOHEHD (09DEHD) LOTTS:0T TZ/8T/8 :23BQ



0E"%T NOILVALSININAY LNYAD



6922-0Z-10%

00°0Ss .

MAETO ALNAOCD

1202/82/L0
00° 08
800LTIT ¥ TO

00°0s S¥89¢ 1202/82/L0 1Z8TLBT WYHd NIAHM ¥04 ONOYE AVVLOSDIXHEW MAN A0 SHOIAIES HONTINSNI
T6°08 SEDIAYES TYWNINY
. T6YSEH#OL 4FW T202/82/L0
16°9 /7 TLZZ-Z8-T0% 099S#IDDV POTTTHIDIOANI. XVL 16°08
00°SL . T20Z/8Z/L0 TZBZTLGT TLZZ-28-T10% HOIAYES TOYINOD ISHA ATHINOW — INIWIDYNYN LSHS ATTIVA NITID LOOLIT ¥ TO
8176291 SADIANIS TYWINY
78 EMDHIIOY
1806dZ/0806UT/6L06UTHADIOANT
vZTIYI 98L9¢€ /7 ST1Z-Z8~-T07% SNOILUYNIDOVA dD¥AL DYAIGON
v€° 02 98L9¢€ /7 STIZ-Z8-10% LDELYTAX
8T LL 98LIE /7 STTZ-Z28-T0¥ ENIWVLEI .
ze"sse 98L9€E /7 ST1Z-28-T0% YTWIOMHAT FNDYNVI TZ02/82/L0
SLT €IS 98L9¢€ /7 S112-28-10% YITALIAIOE DYAIEON 8T 62ST
sz 1es 98L9¢€ 1202/82/L0 1TBTLZT ST1Z-28-T0¥% SNOILYNIDOVA AVMS DYATHON ATddNS AWYNINALAA LSAIL 900LTT ¥ TO
00705z XV SWH/SNOILVDINAWWOD
9899¢ DEZ9EIT :d7
9899¢ 98V99ENTEPHIMILAT *NIA
9899¢€ 0ST-4 QYOI 0Z0Z 1Z02/82/L0
9899¢ STYOEd 00°0s2
00-0s2 9899¢ 'TZ0Z/82/L0 TZ8ZLIZ 8%ZZ-€8-%09 IO ADNADIAWA TTYLSNI/HLVEND SYALNI¥A NIAFIDS ATIS NDISHA SO00LIT ¥ T0
66°78C SADIAIIS TVWINY
. €980L6#ILIDY
66°9€T TLISE /7 8722-28~T0¥ ADOLSHOD NVYI
00°0ST ZL99E /7 8%2Z-28-T10% N¥DOT NIAHM
ZL99E’ MOINHI NINYONIE 1202/82/L0 -
zL99¢E i STADTAA0 66 %8¢
zL99¢ "1T8TLET TOULNOD TYWINY Y04 SLOOE NEOM ONI NIvE IL00€ 700LTT ¥ 10
€17 09% ONIYOLINOW ALINQWNOD
£V 2T /7 8TTZT-EL-0ZF EESEHLODOY ZTOTBSZTHEDIOANI XYL TZ02/82/L0
ONITIIE €1°09%
OL"LEY 1202/82/L0 TZTBZLEZ 8IZT-E€L-0TF TZ0Z INQL (SINVANIIZA €) SdD DNI I £00LTT ¥ T0
€87 €567 TIVD HLVWNI ETINTAOL
) 786L9 1202/82/L0
€87¢ / €LTT-TL-0TY H#ADTOANI IVOICHN TZOZ ENOL. €8° €567
00°0S6% 120Z/82/L0 TT8ZLL ZTLIZ-2L-0T¥ ONISNOH TZ0Z .INNOIINALEA FTINZAQL AID OTIITYNIZE TOOLIT ¥ YO
S€°66C LNIWTDYNYN ASTH
919ZP69-E8EE69T-€TT
7€99¢ #HADOIOANI " SIHES TISNHIN OGNY TZ02/82/L0
7E£99¢€ ) ‘SEXOE HONAT ‘I1HS ¥DO0X ‘UIDYSSYW S€°66C
SE°66C v€99¢ 1Z0Z/82/L0 TZBZLOT 8%¥ZZ-90-009 MOEN ‘SHZI¥d SCIVYMY XIIIVS SSENISNE NOZYWY TOOLIT ¥ TO
unouy # 0d HI¥A  # 90TOAUT Ws3T SUTT uot3dIInsaq sweN qI¥d D
g rabeq 1Z0Z/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/£Z/L0 QIININ¥A S¥OEHD  DNILSIT DTHD (09DEHD) LO:TS:0T 7TZ/8T/8 :@81®a



0T €6T 1202/8Z/L0 TZ8TZLST £0CT-02-219 WIId O¥DIH FOVIOLS ATHLNOENIAWHOVNYW SQIODEY NIVINNOW NO¥T 600LTT ¥ TO




9ETT-S9-T0% YSSINYW ATENY NOSLELS SWIOJAINO

£€2°09T

L8°€9 /7
LS LE TZ02/8T/L0 1ZBTLEZ €022-ST-T0% NIWAY AINOOD SdOW NV S.LVKH A1ddNs TIVIIAQO TYILNIANNd 8TOLTT ¥ TO
SY IVT INIWLOTIY HEI4 HLVLS
SSETTZTHIDOY
LTLOE R ZZ0ZX4A
SPTIPT LTILSE / 7/ LOTZ-T6-L0% {ddA T IDTHALSIA SEDIEVHD ANITIANYT Tz0Z/82/L0O
LTLOE -HZYId SSENISN H2d9vT1 SPTTYT
LTIL9E TZ8CLE LANIHLNT LT SSHTIYIM QVHIVIE LTOLTT ¥ 10
00°ST0C YEDENVIR ALNOOD
TZ02/82/L0
. - 6LTE-LET0-0606-0008 Q0 9102
00°9T02 1202/82/L0 TTBTLOT 9022-0T-T10% #IDDY TzZ0Z AINL TITATY FHVISOL dHIMOd HSVHOANd SHMOE XINLIA STOLTT ¥ 1O
€6°6C AIATIO AINOOD
80D2&#IDDV TzZ0T/8Z/L0
LESETNIHEDIOANT TZ/0€£/90 OL £€6°62
£€6°62 -1Z0Z/8Z/L0 1Z8TLOE £022-02-2T9 TZ/T0/90 FOUVHD FOVIEAO IDVALNOD dN0TD HANN STOLTIT ¥ 10
00708 INERIIVIEA HONYNIAL
. Tz0Z/82/L0
6¥89¢ . ALVITIAAY SNISYHOING /IONYNIL 007 0% "
00°0§ 6789€E TZ0Z/82/L0 TZBTLZZ 6922-55-T0% ¥Od SANA dIHSYTEWAN ONILOATISLY ONISYHOUNG B HINVNIA DYWN FIOLTIT O TO
0o0-o02Z AIETO ALNAQOD
120Z2/82/L0
00°90¢
00-02 FYBIE 120Z/82/L0 TTBTLLZ 692Z-02-10%- WYHA NIATY ¥OJ4 HII XIVION HEIVIS A0 AIYITEDTS WN €I0LTT ¥ 10
’ N 66 79T INEWLIVZIA d¥0d AINAOD
TZ202/8Z/L0
QUVOMDILHLODY S869IHTOIOANT 66°%9T
66°%9T 6%99¢€ T202/82/L0 128ZLST 6TZC-09-20% HNOHd HDIAJ0 ‘WODATOA ONI VAILXEN ZTOLTT ¥ TI0
00°€6 SHOIAYES TYWINY
T202/82/L0
. ’ 00°€6
00" €6 €L99¢€ TZ0Z/82/L0 T1Z8ZLPT S122-28-T0% AHHS ONIIVDOTHE TDVIOLS AN TIOLIT ¥ TO
€T1°%8¢€ ONISSHIAAY TVINT
TZ0Z ATINC T00-6Z6%
ZOV-00THIDOY PTSESOZTTHADIOANT TZ0Z/82/L0
€L°81 €T99¢ /7 . ¥8CZ-L0-T0% XYL SEI¥S X €1 %8¢
0v-g9¢ €Z99¢ 1z0Z/8T/L0 TZTBZLZ ¥82Z-L0-T0% INIWAYE IDVELNOD XATHILNOW DT ONIANNS TYLIIAYD JYET 0TOLTIT ¥ IO
0Z €61 MIFTD AINAOD
68EHNO " €E0PTHILDIY 120Z2/82/L0
69L8LEZTOTHADIOANT TZOZ EANAL 0Z-€6T
Jumouy # od HIVA # 20T0AUT ws3T SUTT uotadIIassq SweN HIVA #JD

] :abeq

TZ0Z/81/80 OL TZ0Z/€Z/L0 QIINIIE SMDIHD DNILSIT MDHEHD

(08DEHD) LO:TS: 0T

iz/81/8 :33ed




6L°8S /7 €022-9T-T0% #IDOV TYIDIAACL ¥OA SIOW ANV SIVH
ADIN 120Z/82/L0



$8960TOL
#IDDY ZL9868TBTEHIDIOANT

HOYINVAJY SSENISAH SHIIYLS

1z0Z/82/L0
€7 €91
SZOLIT U TO

€77 €91 8%99¢€ 1202/8Z/L0 TZTBTLLT 6TZC-¥I-10% F4YL TEEYT ANY 'SNHd |1 SdAAI0L
zL-zTT IAIASTALL ALNOAOD
5896
0TOLHIODOY 0Z0690Z8FEHTDTOANT 1202/82/L0
TZLYE OYId LI 1S0d ANV ‘EDIW/SAIVOLdXiaEd zL ZZZ
zL zee TZLY9E 1202/8Z/L0 TZ8ZLS 6TZZ-0€-T0%  SSTIAYIM ‘¥HIAVILS 'HATEA HSYIA HOVINVAQY SSANISNE STTIAVLS ¥ZOLIT ¥ 10
06°08T INAWLOTTIY HITd TIVLS
TS9C0-TOHIDDOY 0ETBTHHADIOANT
19048 WN NOE¥IOL ISYE a¥0o¥ 120Z/82/L0
- SIHDIAH NOTIYOL 0T NOILYLIS ¥ | 06°08T
06°08T 1Z02/82/L0 1Z8TLST 6022-16-60% JIDIALSIA ¥OJ INYI0JYd SNOTIYD 06 DT ENYAO¥d LSEMHLNOS €ZOLTT ¥ T0
LE 9VZ SEADIANIS TYWINY LE 9% YIINID HOLYASIA-TI6
PTLBLEST
#IDDOY 086T8YZ/TSH#ADTOANT
0Z89¢€ %SL°8 @ THENI
0Z89¢ 2576 @ DNITIZDITI
0Z89¢€ SHXOE 0T TYNOILIAAY 1202/82/L0
LE"9%T 0Z89¢€ /7 1222-28-T0% (sExX0g 0T FANTIONI) YL Z6¥
LE 9%T 0Z89¢€ 120Z/82/L0 TZ8TLTI ZLZZ-08-1T6 HEDUVHD HEDIAWHS DNICQEENHS WOAWININ ONI ¥Sn II-QE¥HS ZZOLIT ¥ TO
2T ST€E 8TAI INVID AIVI
ZE9EV00ONHLIDY 8SE9GI00ANT T202/82/L0
zo" €T / /7 TLZZ-%I-10% #FDTOANT 1202 XIND SETI/SEXYL zzZ ST€E
02°262 1Z02/82/L0 TZ8TLE TLZZ-%1-T0% STOIVHD DTSN "ONI 'SONICTIOH YEWYS T2OLTT ¥ TO
86 S¥¥ JATITHS ALNOOD
] 889#HDTOANT
6£99¢€ 1202/€2/L WN ‘VYIDNYLSE
6£99¢€ INFAH ZIINOWWOD $D0C ® SITLALIEA
6€99¢€ : SNINIYN
6£99¢€ ‘SM¥0d ‘SEIVIA ¥AIVE ‘HSITHA
6€£99¢ ‘GEYISOW ‘aNHDIIN ‘SEIN00D ‘SHvd
6€99¢€ NIODdOd ‘N¥0DJ0d ‘$dIHD ‘SANINA
6€99¢ ‘SAIDISA0d ‘SNOS DOALOH ‘SHOALOH 1202/82/L0
6£99¢€ SLNIAR 86 G¥%¥
86°S¥%¥ 6€£99¢€ 1202/8T/L0 1Z8ZTLY $22Z-05-T0% FATLYILINI dIHSYANINYd XLINAWWOD LOFIIA 90D S HYS 0Z0LIT ¥ TI0
S0°6LZ TAYD EIVWNI L1I0QY
1202/82/L0
. N96S58500-%8E-G0SHIIDY S0°6LZ
S0°6LT 1202/82/L0 TZBZLTI L0ZZ-0L-02% TZ0Z ENOQC STOIYHD ATHINOW NOIIVIOdU0D ISAMD 6TOLTIT ¥ TO
6L°85 INIVH XHTANOD IYIDIANL L8 €9 NYNIINIVH 2 SNOILVIZIO LS LE SADIAIO FATILVILS INTHIY
8€07-6505¥
6€0V-6S0STHEDIOANT 08%8TS9
Junouy # od FIVA- # SoToAul wa3T JUTT uotidriossa auweN qIYA #3ID
L :afeq T20Z/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/€Z/L0 QHINI¥L SMOIHD  ONILSIT MDIHD (09DFHD) LOFTS:0T 1TZ/8T/8 :@ied



€%°€9T 8TAL LNVED qIvy



INVANELNIEA4NS SUOOH

88°26%9T

00°009T Ivese / 7/ ZI8Z-%6-029 .
00°0S%6 IPESE TZ0Z/€0/80 TTEBET ZT92~%6-029 (ASTTIF'T/45000L°2T) TYIHHLVH DT NOISTOWE WO SS0LIT ¥ TO
) SL°096 INIVW XHIJWOD TYIDIANL
08806 FH#IDTOANT
SL°09 £8L9€ / 7/ ST2ZZ-91-10% LADNN
€8LIE XHTIROD TYIDIAOL
£8LIE SYHIV MEHTD LIA0D 1202/€0/80
€8LIE SMOGNIM aNNOYY SL°096
007006 £€8L9E 1202/€0/80 TZE/IT §TZZ-9T~-T0% HEOIJ4J40 INIVA ANV H¥NIXAL ‘HOIYA SYOLOAFLSNOD H HTLNOA $90LIT ¥ T0
00-82¢ IHIASYAIL ALNOOD
WSLZT65S9ILEY
#IDDOV dLL6-AD6d - ADTTHEDIOANT 1202/€0/80
9LLIE LIOVA 00°82€
00°82€ 9LLIE 120Z/€0/80 TZEBOT 8TZTZ-0E€-T0¥% AOA VHTIOO0D HAILVIOIVAT HIGYINOL SSHANISNG NOZYWY €90LIT ¥ 1O
09- €12 MEETD ALNOOD
1202 YHEWIAON NOILOETH
TEOOT ¥O4d TOOHDS NOILDETI 1202/82/L0
TYDO0T TYEY NMOIAN NOIVIZHS 09°€12
097 €1z T20Z/82/L0 TT8ZLIS S02T-02-10% WN HROYINOAETY OL TIAVIL ENNOAZ A¥YW ‘OdHIO 0€0LIT ¥ IO
. 09°€T2 MIFTTD  ALNAOD
TZ0T YEEWIAON NOIILDHTH .
TYDOT ™04 TOOHDS NOIIDIIE 120Z/8C/LO
TYOOT IY¥EY NMOILAN NOIVIZHS 09°€12
09°€12 1202/82/L0 TZ8ZLZS S02Z-02-TO¥ WN ZN0J¥IN0AETY OL THEAVIL YIATAS 'ZHAVHD 6Z0LTT O 10
907882 INSWIOTTY F¥Id HIVLS
6STETHADTOANT
8099¢ ‘NDEANBAETY NI QUOJ HOIF
8099¢€ O&' SYANIOD SENITD WOJI MOVE MOL
8099¢ PNIA
8099¢ 231 1z0Z/82/L0
8099¢€ . 05€d @I0I 90882
90882 8099¢€ 1202/82¢/L0 TZ8TLYT  T0ZZ-T6-€T% ¢-T HODSHIY MOL  Zd¥EAODTY ¥ ONIMOL S JANNEAVL 8ZOLIT ¥ TO
007002 NOISSIWWOD AINNOD
z589¢€ T20Z/TE/0T - TZOZ/T/8
z889¢ ISVAT NOILVLS ¥HASNVAL 1202/82/L0
z589¢€ 0Z/TE/LO 007002
00° 00T ZS89€ TZ0Z/8T/L0 TZ8ZLTE %02Z-S0-T0% NYHL HSYHET NOILVIS ¥YAISNTAL i INVED aNYI FINOIOVL LZOLIT ¥ TO
60°2TT MIETO ALNNOD SL*%61, SHDIIAL0 FAIIVILSINIWIY
ENTHOVH DNILOA/MITID 01S6
NVHEOL#IOOY 08800088SHIDIOANT
60°2TT TZ02/82/L0 TZBILS 80£2-02-2T9 TZ0Z ATIAC- ONIYOLINOH XTIHIAVOD
’ 0TS6 1Z0Z/8T/LO
NYRHOLHLIOY 66800088SHADTOANT %8 90€
SL %61 120T/8T/L0 TZTBILY €£02Z~ST-T0% TZ0Z XINL ONIYOLINOW ATIIIEVND DT ALT¥NDAS ¥ HATI LLIWHAS 9ZOLTT ¥ T0
Junouy # Oa IV # soToaul wajzI .,mn..nu uoT1dIaosaq sweN TIVA #31D
8 :obeg TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TZOZ/€Z/L0 CQHAILNIES SMOHIHD  ONILSIT MDEHD (09DHEHD) LO:TS:0TI T1TZ/8T/8 :93ed



00-000C Tyeot
co-oowe TFE9E

CT9T-%6-029 JHIOIVL
TI92-%6-0C9 FTIEOM TIONIATITIXEH TZ02/€0/80

NN
~



TZ0Z/€0/80
8T 0%9€

8T 0€Z /7 zLZZ-20-S09 TZOZTELHADIOANT LEOWN
00°0T%E TZ0Z/S0/80 TTESBL zL2Z-20-509 SADIANAS LINO0D NIZL 10T ATIOL NYTIQ¥ ‘ZIIIO TLOLIT ¥ TO
10°9TT ATOYNYW ALINOOD
TIDIHIOOY S8TOSNI#IDIOANI TSLT
=6%2‘82 GNI $6% ‘9z NIDEL FOTIOD
69L%=8L8°Z8 QNI 60T ‘8L NIDAE M/H 1202/€0/80
TZ02/T€/L0 OL TZOZ/TO/LO TO"9TT
TO 9TT 1Z0Z/€0/80 TZTESST €02Z-0T-T10% SHI ¥04 EDIAVHD HOTVITAQ IDYILNOD dno¥o  FENN 0LOLIT ¥ TO
¥0 8L INHWIIVIEd HONYNIL
0TDLEIODY 120Z2/£0/80
78TOSNI#EDIOANT T2Z0Z/TE/LO 70°8L
¥0°8L 120Z/€0/80 TZEST £€02Z-S5-T0% -TZ0Z/T0/L0 SIDVIIAO AJ0D FOTIOD dN0¥D HENN 690LTIT & 10
00°0ST AAINTD HOLYISIA-TI6
ZZAI TTE6HEDIOANT 1202/€0/80
6£89¢€ ] sEna . 00°0ST
00°0ST 6€89¢€ 1Z0Z/£0/80 TZE8S 6922-08-TT6 HIVITIAIY S.d0IDTUIA IT6 TYANNY AIVITIASY OIDFAIA IT6 OWWN 890LTT ¥ 1O
5" 8% SEDIANSAS TYHINY
: €EHIDDY
9L99€ FONYNIINTVH TINNTY JO4 SWILI
%S 8% 9L99€ / /7 6€22-28-T0% ‘FNIM ‘SATTING ‘STOOL AELIOSSY
9L99¢ SHITAANS DONINVITD SNOTIYA TZ0Z/€0/80
9L99¢ ‘SHHSN¥E E0¥DS ‘STEAOTD ‘STONOLS 57 8%
9L9%€ TZEBST SHINIANS TIDIHAA ‘AINTI IIIIM TIYMOYYH AHIYOMISOAL S IIYH L90LIT ¥ T0
60°T FHLNED HOIVESIA-TT6 60°T SEOIAYAS TYWINY
60°T AANIOLLY 60°T JIVI ZINOQOD 80°T ITD HITYEH IIYNIVINOOW
80°T INIYH XETAHOD TYIDIANC 80°T SEDIAI0 FATIVILSINIWAY 60°1 FHINAD FOINIS XLIVIYOW
60°T YAINTD EOINHS VIONVLSH 80°T NED ¥OINFS ITYMIVINAOW 80°T INIVH DQT€ I42d HITYIH
60°T 9199¢ / /7 §122-08-116
60°T 9T99¢ / /7 §12z-28-10%
60°T 9199¢ / 7/ STZZ-95-10% INIVH 0D JIOLHIODY SPHESZ
60°T 9T99¢€ /7 STTZT-€S-T0% #EDIOANT IFAVHEDS QHANILXE TYDEI
80°T 9199¢ / 7 STZZ-£2-T0% 2Z0CAd
80°1 9199¢ / 7/ S12Z-9T-T0% SELIS ONIQIING AINNOD
80T 9T99€ /7 S1Z2Z-ST-10% TIY F04 ISANDITI Od NIIO
60°T 9T99¢€ / / STZZ-LE-TO0¥ :
60°T 9199¢ / 7 S12Z-9€-T0% 120Z/€0/80
80°T 9T99€ /7 S1ZZ-L2-T0% 76" TT
80T ST99¢€ TZ0Z/€0/80 1ZEBE ) S§12Z-%2-10% TDONI T¥VMOIVH NILSOD 930LTIT ¥ IO
88°Z6%9T ¥ SSO¥D MANIDNALSVIANT
ZNTHAYNYISEHEOIOANT .
TPE9€ 0TT00-0Z2-00000-00 YAMSKN
TVE9E SYHAWNE ONINIVE /M DNIAIELS
TyESE ® ITIVHASY wZ ‘NOIIVZITIEOW
88°Z¥0T ITESE /7 ZI9Z-$6-029 XYL SHIYS
Juanowy # od HIYJ H# SD0ToAUT woe3I SUTT QOHU.@%HOW@Q SWEN HJHLYa #MU
6 :obeg TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TTO0T/€T/L0 QHAINT™E SADTHD  ONILSIT ADTHD (092HHD) LO*TS:0T TZ/8T/8. :32eQ



8T°0%9¢

0ZAdL INVED TYDOT IMA



STCZ-9S-TO0%

OTT ALIYENADHES ¥ HETA LLIWWNS 8LOLTT ¥ 1O

18°68€ 6099¢€ 1Z02/€0/80 TZESS ¥OOA JTYATI ¥O/ANY HSONDYIA
68° L NYNILNIVH ¥ SNOILYSHZJO
T/SS8SE0ZHIDDY
L599¢ L8%'6 HOVEIIN
1L599¢€ - SHYEZTOTTXNGCXLIAT *NIA
LS95¢ DZ¥90T 471
LS99¢€ 0624 @¥0d 0Z0Z/TH LINQ
L599¢€ SEYIL HIVIOA TZ0Z/€0/80
LS99€ HOWNOVE SYHOM FHI 68° VL
68° VL LS99¢€ 120Z/€0/80 TZEBLT . 1022-59-T0% NOTIIDEISNI INIOATLIAN SHIYS Q¥0A HOTY LLOLTT ¥ TO
€% TLE JYOSSASSY ALNAOD
LLLIE €ZITEHILODY 9085€0Z/L08SEDT
LLLIE . /6Z8SE€0Z/TOEBSEOTHADIOANT
LLLIE 8°8LS6 :HDVATIN
68" VL LLLIE / / 1022-0%-10% L689 INIA :d7T - S0Y
‘LLL9E $S8 ‘6% THOVIIIN
0°99 LLLOE / 7/ 102Z-0%-T0% €LT8 *NIA TTI¥L8D :dT - %0¥
LLLOE . 9 65T HOVATIN
9% ¥9T LLLOE /7 T0ZZ-07-T10% LST9:NIA D00089 :d7T - 2Z0Y
LLLIE 887 0% :HOVHTIIN
70°99 LLLOE /7 10ZZ2-0%-10% SS%0 NIA TS9€9D 4T - T0Y
LLLIE S0¥ ‘90Y ‘%0Y¥ ‘TOY ‘10Y 120Z/€0/80
LLLIE IIND FOSSHASSY Y0A NOIILDIISNI £%°TLE
LLLIE TZESST . INTOATIINW ¥ ONd SHYOM FHL SATYS Q¥0d HOIA 9LOLTIT ¥ TO
00°0S€E INVED DNINIVEL vad
TZ69SZHADTOANT 120Z2/€0/80
S€99¢€ . . MONS D 00°0S¢€
00 0S¢ se99¢ 1Z0Z/€0/80 TZEBS 992Z-S8-T16 HSYNOD NOILJHDEA DNIIDALEC TASNAOD ONINIVAL ADNIOY DITend SLOLTT ¥ T
18°20¢ IV AINOOD 80°€%%T SIDILAJ0 IAIIVILSININAY
08%8TSO#IODY 0F0P6S0STHADITOANT
£€T99¢€ ZZ0ZAd INIIAND
187202 £199€ /7 6222-€S-T0% SANNOIDIIVS
€T99¢€ AENIOLIY ®
€199¢€ HONIAIAH/SNOTIVOILSHEANT .
80 €¥¥T £€I99¢€ / 7/ 62Z2-51-10% NIRAY ALNDOD 120Z/€0/80
€199¢€ TYIDIANL ) 687 G791
£199¢ 1ZERY SIDNA0¥d ¥IIYA ATddNS TIVEEAAO TYIINAANAd FLOLTT ¥ 10
00°Z0SL 1ZAd INVED YOHJY
. & TZ0Z/€0/80
TZ-NOPHIDIOANI SNOIIWIAAO ATIVA 00°20GL
00" 2Z0SL 120Z/€0/80 TZEBE TLEZT-LT-9TS TZ0T ENAL ¥OJ IZ0Z A4 ¥OHAY DHAW SHEDTIANIES TYOICIN NVINALAGSITEd €LOLTT ¥ TO
00 60€T INTHADYNYH ASTA
600700 THIOOY €ELFOFHIDIOANT
z599¢ STAYD TWYD 1202/€0/80
z999¢€ ATEIIEYAD LOIADYL ALIAVS 00" 60€T
00" 60€ET z599¢ 1Z0Z/€0/80 TZESOZ 8%ZZ-90-009 BATINADNI ALIIYS SWHELSAS HONVIIOSWII AIAVEA ZLOLTT ¥ IO
JIuUnowy oa HLYA # soTOAUIL ws3I SUTT uotadTaosag [weN FIVA #ID
0T :abeg T2Z02/8T/80 OL 1202/€Z/L0 JILNIAL SADHHD DNILSIT MDEHO {09DdHD) LO*TS:0T TZ/8T/8 t93ed




6099¢ . ALIWTX0Yd HILIM MD0TINA ION TIIM) TZ0Z/€0/80
6099¢€ SHNSST HIYMAIVH 3 HIYMILIOS T8 68¢E



T68LESSSEYE969GSHIDDY

6%°T€T / 7 z0ZZ-€8-%09 ATOYNYN ADNIDUAWT
9L 68 / /7 Z0ZZ-0T-10% FAOYNYIH
$1°6922 /7 Z022-%L-02% II0dSNYIL
IS°7L98 / 7/ z0ZZ-05-10% JITUIHS
z8 " %1T /7 z0TZT-0%-T0% "HOSSISSY
. 65°9LT /7 z0ZZ-80-T0% zd
06°2¥¥ /7 7/ zZ022-5S9-10% ) S30
00°89 /7 z02Z-02-TO0¥% ) MEETID
86° 1€ /7 2022-60-509 - IMa
66°2€C / /7 2022-0€-10% ITANSYIIL
zZ0"€9% / 7 z02Z-28-T0% SEDIAYAS TYWINY
69°2% /7 zZ02Z-£L-02F JOLINOW DINOELOATA
TI°6€ST /7 Z02Z-16-€1¥ . NIRQY TIId
85°%€0T /7 z022-16-S0% ) aan § ISIA
£€5°T% / 7/ zZ02Z-16-60% adA ¥ ISIa .
66°€LZ /7 zZ0ZZ-16-80% ) ada € IsIa TZ0Z/€0/80
Z7° 026 : /7 zZ022-16-90% afa z isia - 8% 60691
96" 19 1202/€0/80 1Z€8ZT Z202Z-16-L0%. 1202/L0-1202/90 QdA T ISIWALSAS INAWAVE FITIOII0D JANVE SO €80LTT I 10
5°SZIPE NUNZINIVA 3 SNOILVIEAO
1202/€0/80
00Z¥SHIDDY €E6TEE~SGTOHADIOANT $S°SZIYE
$S°STIPE L899¢€ 1202/£0/80 TZESDT 82ZC-S9-T0% FAODNT ® =IHVE ONI ‘SHIDOTONHOAL ¥FHTAL Z8OLIT ¥ 10
I8°SST  NYNIZINIVH ¥ SNOILVYEIO
) -TZ0Z/€0/80
] 00ZHSHIDDY 9SLLEC-STOHIDTOANT . T8°SST
T8°SST L899¢€ 1202/€0/80 TZESET '822Z~59-T0% FAODNI 2 FTIOVE ONTI ‘SHIDOTONHDIL WATAL T8OLIT ¥ 10
SPT8LLE NUNIAINIVH ¥ SNOIIVIEIO
TZ0Z/€0/80
: 00Z¥SHIDOY TI69EC-STOHTITOANT S%°8LLE
SYT8LLE L899¢€ 1202/€0/80 TZE8ZI : 8222-59-10% FAODNTI 3 FTIOVH ONI ‘SHIDOTONHDHEIL VHTAL 080LIT ¥ 10
00" L698PINYNAINIVH ¥ SNOILVEEJO
00ZHSHLODY 9STECE-SZTOHTDTOANT
£899¢€ : : TIV-€0TD-8E-0202 LOVIINOD SED
L839¢ : HIOONT % HTIOVH
L899¢€ o . (ONIJEEY AWIL ANY ‘JH -
L899¢ ‘TI0¥AVE TYIDNYNIA) HAOONI ®
L899¢€ (JOSSHESSY ANY ‘dTINSYEIL ‘WUHTID) . TZ02/€0/80
L899¢ ) . . HTOVH ¥AIAL A0S FIA XTIVEX 00" L698%T
00°L698%T L899€ TZ0Z/€0/80 TTESTT ] 8222-59-10% (IDIAMES ¥ SV HENUYMLIOS) SVYS ONI 'SEIDOTIONHOEL JITXL 6LOLTT A 10
T8 68¢€ AANIOLLY
0156
A } NYTIOL#IIOY LL60008SSHAITOANT
6099€ dYE6000~0Z-00000-00 YAMSHN
6099¢€ . *SEDTAI0 FONAGIAZ
6099¢€ : ‘SNOILVYOILSEANT ‘AXENSOLLY <
6099¢ (SQIYD
Junowy # 0d HI¥d  # 90ToAUT wa3I SUTT : uotadraosag sweN AR ¢! #3D

T rabeq 120Z/81/80 OL TZ0Z/€Z/L0 QEINI¥A SUDIHD DNILSIT MDIHD (09DHHD) LO:TS:0T 1IZ/8T/8 :=23=Q



00°89 METTO ALNOOD 86°1¢ LIId aNIM 66°2€Z AFTANSYIAL ALNQOD
0 €97 SHOIAGES TYWINY 69°C¥% DNIYOLINOW XLINQWAOD 69 TL8E INANLOTIY HE¥Id HLVLIS



STZZT-£C-10% TOTE-9L0-8T

0%° 559 T6ESE /7
¥0"594L T6ESE /7 S1ZT-L8-0¢€9 LOVIINGD SHD
LO €67 T6€SE / 7/ STZZ-9T-107% ATINO JOIVT NO XVdI %61°8
12" 2%S T6€SE /7 SIZTZ-T6-€T¥ 1202/0€/90 - 0Z0Z/T0/LO . TZ02/60/80
8T £%¥ T6€SE /7 SIZZ-¥Z~-T0¥% ’ TZ0ZAL 0% SLVL
¥y €69 T6ESE 1202/60/80 12688T S122-ST1-T0% HOTIHAOD I0D DIFHADIAYAS TUYNOILVONAY HATLVIHAOOD TOTLTIT ¥ 10
0% €S AIFID XILNNOD
NEONLAE TZ0C YHIWHAON
NOILIHTH I¥O0T1 ¥0d TOOHOS . T202/60/80
NOIIDHETHE IYD0T T¥Ed NMOLAQ 0% €S
0% €S TZ0Z/S0/80 1ZS8E S0ZZ-0Z2-107% NOIVIIHS WN ONgT¥ OL THAVEL . YIATAS ‘ZEAVHD 00TLTIT O TO
$6°C8LT INIAWILIVAEA CYOY ALNACD,
TYSE9CTE 1202/60/80
#IDIOANI 000-88%L9LO-TOO# ¥6°Z8LT
%6 28LT 1Z0Z/60/80 1T6E8SS L09Z-09-20% IDOTILNOD HSYHT INIWIINOT/ITAVIDAAOD SOAS TYIONUNIA IVTTITIAITLYD 660LTT ¥ IO
00°0S¢ NOISSTWRWOD ALNAOD
1202/60/80
. aNndEy LIsodaa ] 00°0S2
00°0SsZ Tz02/60/80 1268Z9 0L2Z-5S0-10% HOVWYA "TYLNAE ANAO¥D YIVI OLITETIITH ‘ SYTHANTD 860LTT ¥ TO
66°68 NYNAINTYH ® SNOILYIAdO
. . S6EEBE006666H#ILIDY
- L8LSE : : OTTIIQHS MOIN
LBLIE ZILIO ¥SSITAYH ) T202/60/80
L8LIE ) . NYL0OT NOSLELS 66°68
6676 L8LSE . 1Z02/60/80 TZ68LI 8¥CZ-S9-T0% SLO09 ALIAVS CIHIA MIOM ONI N¥YE L100€ L60LTT O TO
8T TZT LNIWNLOTIVY d¥I4 HIVLS
LTLO6TETHIIOY 00LZTOISTITEHIDITOANT
SL ZZ /7 0€Ce-16~-807 . dDUVHD IVYWZVH SYDMIV
00°9 / / 0€ZT-T6-80% LYTd dDUVHD TANA T20T/60/80
00" 9% !/ / 0€ZZT~-16-807 ddd LVTd A¥IATITAJ ’ 8T TIZT
€V LY T202/60/80 TE68LY 0€ZZ-T6-80% - 0L8 ¥DD CIW ¥d dSN NEDAXO € DT ¥SN SYDIIY 960LIT O TO
LY L7999 ¥ SSO¥D FIANLOOALSTIANT 00°0000S SIDIELOYE HATLLVISIDHET
PEO8/HIDOVY T0S686CIHADIIOANT
(415433 . . TIV-€0TD-49020-8T #SED . T202/€0/80
LY L7939 20v9¢e / 7 hHmN|¢m|DNm YIAYOT NIVIIEL IIIOW/IOVAWNOD LY L¥9SS
00°0000S Z0%9¢€ 1z02/€0/80 1ZEBE S69Z-6S-€08 €069Z: THAOW IVITIAITLYD TOD INFRIINDE WANOTM S80LIT ¥ TO
TS €T LTId aNIM 00°0L62 HOILSNL HTINIANC QXD
6T TZ02/€0/80
IS €% / 7/ ) ZTLTZ-60-5€9 #ADTOANTI XV¥I SI4IFDHE SS0¥D | IS €ICE
00°0L6EZ 1Z0ZT/€0/80 TTEBEZ ZLZTZ-L9~S€E9 TZ0Z TE-T ZXINL DD ANY JDLC 07T LNIWJdOTIEAHQ ¥ SHWOH YIA ¥80LTI ¥ TO
6% TET X¥I SWE/SNOTLYDINAWKWOD
9L°68 YADYNYHN ZINOOD $1°692Z SI¥d A0 NOIIVIYOJSNYAL "1IS°%L98 AITIEHS XINOOD
z28°¥IC JYOSSASSY ALNAOD 6579LT ONINOZ % ONINNYIZ 06°2%% NYNIINIVH ® SNOILYIIIO
Junowy # Od arva # 9@01oAurl wa3I dUTT uotT3dIansaq sweN HLYA #ID

2T  :ebeg T202/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/€Z/L0 GIINIVE SMDEHD  ONIISIT ADTHD (09DFHD) L0:TS:0T TZ/8T/8 :o3eq



0g°6€% T6ESE
T6°TOE 16€9¢

STCZ-08-T16 SYJI0L T°SLZ00L
STZZ-LT-T0% #IDDV ENNL/TO0S8TT-TZHEDIOANI

~ N
~ N~



00€Z-80-107%

TZ0Z LsSOdnv

ONILAIWN g ONILIIN Z%®d

00" 96 Z89S¢€ 1Z20Z/60/80 ﬁmmwmﬂ
1zZ0z X100 1202/60/80"
2899¢ HAWIYHONA 13V - NOILYSNAJWOD 00°06T
007 S6 ¢8399¢ 1202/60/80 TT68%T 00€EZ-80-T0V% ONILHEAW G ONILIAAW Z3d ANHINVY ‘ SWEYHONA LOTLIT ¥ 10
LY 9¢ ENAWLOTIV H3Id HIYLS
LHOITAYIEH NEMXOoJdd dDYIddd S
ANIDNH J04 WY¥HEE CIIYHEHS NIDOTYH
98Z06NHSLAADVAAT *NIA €SS9€
HOVHATIN INIWIDVIAEY LHOITAVIH
§ YHANAL 904 SHINSAYD dEX0g
ZTETHIOOY G8TI9TSHIADIOANI
9999¢ HIDIHAA ¥MONIW ¥OJ anmmz
L7 9¢ 93899¢ / 7/ T0ZZ-T6-S0% SHALI SAOENYTIADISIH ‘SAIIALIVL 1202/60/80
S889¢ HZEAYAIINY ‘SHEAYIE WAAIM LY 9¢€
§999¢ TZ68S 18¥HEIIId TENS ‘S¥ELIIL fIIO ‘IIO oY H F1900a 90TLTIT O TO
C6° 1Y INIWNLOTIV J¥Id IAILYLS
TZETHIDOY 08T9ZTSHIDIIOANI
§9938¢ TZ0Z YHEWADHA ~ ATOL
§988¢ AIVATYE / IONYNILNIVIH
$999¢ K ) HIDIHAA YONINW ¥04d THCIIN
Z6° 1% S8399¢ / / I0Z2Z-16-50% SWALI SNOANVIIADSTIW ‘SHIYALLYE Tz0Z/60/80
§999¢ ‘HZEIYAIINY ‘SHAYTIE JIIIM 267 1%
§999¢ TZ68S SYEIIIA TN SYHLTIIA TIO TIIO OLNY H HTINOd SOTLTT O TO
€8°LZT XYL FSIDXE FII4 2%/T
SSYZTCESO#LIDY
YZLOTZXOSVYZTITE90#IDIOANT 1202/60/80
6293¢ ' SHOTIAYHAS AL €87 LCT
£€8°LZT 6T99¢ 1202/60/80 Tz68S¥ TLZC-Z6-T1¥ 2Z0CXd d0d 04 NHJIO o7 ALDEIEIA POTLTT ¥ 10
S5 607 YTDYNYH ALNAOD
€8Z8THFTH#IODY ¥6TS6IEL T202/60/80
#ADIOANI 8SS9TTOS-00SHIDOVILNOD SS8°60%
S5°607 120Z2/60/80 TZ68%S ¥8CZ-0T-T0¥% SINVED /UEOVNYH YTIJ0D IDVIINOTDOIAEIS TYIDNYNII NEANYT IHOV1 Fd €0TLTT O IO
€T°Z680L HIVD JLVANI 110dY
HONVIIOL /IATOHAODH#LOOY TZ0ZLO 1Z02/60/80
¥CTTL00E /7 ELTC-0L-0C% ACOLFEDIOANI TYDICHW TIVWNI £1°2680L
68°¥88LY9 Hwom\mo\mo TZ68¢CL CLTZ-0L-0Z¥% TZT/6L/9 OL 12/T/S ONISNOH HLVMNNI TONI DIAIDI™OD ZOTLTT O TO
66°L92 YIVA KINNOD 69°ZLE FEINID YOINHS VIDNVISH 60°88¢ FEHLNED JOINES ALIVIVORW
80 E€TIIC ¥ SSO¥D HINLONILSYIANT 0E"6E€% FHINED HOLVASIO-TI1I6 T6°I0¢ NAD BOINIS JIVNITINOOW
. 0%°S589 I7D HLTVEH JIYNIVINOOW 70 S9L NITID TYOICHW ¥ZNYIHdSHE LD €67 LNIVH XHETAWOD I¥IDIgNL
TZ°2%S INERLOTIV &3I4 ILVLS 8T £¥¥ LNTYW 9079 ILdEG BELTYAH ¥¥ €69 SEOTAA0 HALIVILSININAY
66°L92 T6ESE /7 S1ZZ-£5-10%
6S°2CLE T6E€SE / / STCTT-9¢€-10%
60°88¢ T6€S¢E / 7/ STZC-LE-TO0¥
80 €ETTZ T6€SE / / STZC-¥6-029
JUNOWY - # o0& FIVA # ®oTOAUT ws3l SUTT woT3dTIOnsaq sweN qIYa wmu
€T :abeg TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TZ0T/€T/L0 QHINIYE SMADAHD {09DHEHD) ho"HmWOﬂ TZ/8T/8 193eda

DNILSIT ADIHD



00°06T DNINOZ 3 DNINNYIJ



2e°9¢

00°vC

LE" %S

S¥"6€

86°8T

8% 8¢

00 ¥%C

00" v

6% 1€

z0 8¢

6T 9¢

S¥°vE

v0"S9

L6 2t

§8°S01T

85789

L EE

957 LS

JUnoOWy

LTBIE
L289¢€

FI89€C
7I89E

8089¢
8089¢€

908s¢
9089¢
£I89¢
€T89¢
£€T89¢

€I89E

0T89t
0T8s¢

6089¢
LT89¢€

L089¢
L083¢€

8T89¢
8189¢

60839¢€
6089¢
6089¢

Ti89e
TT89¢

L183¢
L1839¢
LI89¢E

9189¢
ST89¢

cT89¢
c189¢

S089¢
s089¢

ST89¢
S189¢

# 04

TZ0Z/60/80

12Z0Z/60/80

T202/60/80

1202/60/80

1Z02/60/80

1Z0Z/60/80

1202/60/80
1Z0Z/60/80

1Z0Z/60/80

1202/60/80

1202/60/80

1202/60/80

1202/60/80

Hmow\mO\mo
T202/60/80
T202/60/80
1202/60/80

1202/60/80

HINJ #

IZ6BES

126877

TZT68ED

TZ682%

TZ68TY

TZ6807%

12686¢C
TZ688E

TZ68LE

TZ689¢

1Z68S¢E

1268%¢

TZ68EE

TZ682Ct

TC681IE

T2680¢€

TZ686C

TZz688T

9D TOAUT

j7an :abeg

¥0°S9
85789

1Z0Z/8T/80 OL 120T/€T/LO

JIINID JOINES AILIVIIOW
FAILNAD JOINES ¥YIDNVLSH

6022-959~10%

80€2-02-C19

602C-72-10%

60TC-T16-81T%

60CC-T8-20%

6022-19-207%

6022-€£5-T0%
602Z-16-807%

60ZC-16-S0%

6022-16-507

0T

60ZC-2¢8-TO0V

6022-16-807

6022-LE-TOF

6022-T6-50%

60ZZ-ST-T0¥

6022-9£-10%

6022-08-TT6

6022~9T-T0%

we3I SUTET

QALNI¥d SYDdHD

6€£706T

Tz0Z X700 TYDIT
T00-0%T9-0T# IDDY
ZZ0Z Ad SYD ATHINOW
TzZ0Z ATI0C MEITO
000-08€9-0T #IJDY
zZ0ZAd SYD ATHLNOW
Tz0Z X700 Id3d HITYEH
0T0-066T-0T# IDDY
TTOZAL S¥H ATHINOW
1Z0Z AT0L QAA 9 ISIA
000-0050-0€# IODY
ZZ0ZAd SYD ATHINOH
000-0695-0THIIDY
1Z0Z ATAC QY0¥
2Z0ZAd SYD ATHINOW

1202 A710r gvod .

000-0695-0T# IDDOY
000-098T~-0T# IJDY
ZZ0ZAL SV¥D ATHLNOW
1202 A7IO0 QU¥0d dIVd
000-060%-0T# IDDOY
ZZ0ZAL SYD ATHLNOW
1z0Z A1IACL ddp € ISIA
2Z0ZAd SYD ATHINOW
Tz0EZ AINL QdA S ISId
Z20ZAI SYD ATHINOW
1z0Z ATOC TAA 2 ISId
000-089€-0L #IDDV¥
ZZO0ZAL SYD KTHINOW
ATOr SEDIAFES TWHINY
0T0-08S50-09 #IDD¥
ZZOZAI SVYD ATHINOW
.T20Z A7I0O0 QdA € ISIa
000-06€S-09 #IDDV
000-0526-09 #IDDOV
ZZOZAA SYD ATHLNOW
TZ0Z A70C DS ALIVINOW
0T0-0EE€Z-0Z #IDDY
ZZ0ZXAI SYD ATHINOW
adA § IsIa
000-0€29-TL #IDDV
000-0TSP-TL #IDDY
ZZOZAL SVD ATHINOW
TZ0Z 2140
000-058T-0T #IDDV

CTO0CAL SVYD ATHINORW -

TC0T A1INnr
0T0-0L8S-0T #IDD¥
CZ0ZA4 SYD ATHINCH
HOLVdSIO TT0T A1ar
000-0€S6-0S# IDDVY
<T0TXd SYD ATHINOKW
TYIDIaNr 1goc A90r
000-0009-0T #IDDVY
CZ0CA4 SYD ATHLNOW

uotadransag

DNILSIT MDOHHO

INAWLOTTIVY JdId HLVLS
¥L EE YILNAD HOLYGSIA-1T6 ' 95°L9

G8°S0T

NOIIVIDOSSY SYD MWH

DWBN

(09DHHD) LO*TIS70T

SHDIALA0 HALLVILSINIWAY
LNIVH XJTdWOD TYIDIAND

TzZ0Z/60/80

08-€39L

BOTLTIT ¥d IO

dI¥d

1z/81/8

#HAD

19300



ce9¢ AANIOLLY - 00" %2 AYHATO ALNOOD LE" TS INIVH ©d7d Ldd3d HLIVIH
9% LS dOHS av¥0oy¥ XALNNOD 00°%2 YT¥L ZILNNOD 62792 - BHDIAYHS TVWINY



€EHIODY
YINLAOS JALYM JO4 SIATIHEI LIVS

vS8¥ SEDIA¥HAS TIYWINY

757 8% 9L99¢€ / 6€22-28-10% ‘HEIM ‘SXITING ‘STOOL AIIVOSSY 1202/60/80
9.99¢€ ‘SEHSNYE E0¥)S SHAQTD ‘SADNOAS v5° 8%
9L99¢€ TZ680T SAIIAANS FIDIHAA ‘QINTI ATIIM HSYYMAIVH AHIGOMISAAIL S.I¥VH €ITLIT O TO
78 69€T INAWTDENY ¥SIH
9L56088T8H#IDDY
: T0TOLP7006/6TTOLYT006#TDIOANT
8%89¢€ XHTINOD TYIDIANS ® NIWAY ALNOOD
8¥89¢€ 9SHL09 # WHII
8%89€ Z ¥Md 95D avod
T8 LLE 8%89¢€ / / 8%22~90-009  XOH ZO0% ¥IZILINVS CONVH TIHNd
8%89¢ 6SATO09 HWALI 1202/60/80
8%89¢ AVED MOOTL . 1D WYOd DILVHOLAY %8 69€ET
00°266 8789¢€ TZ0Z/60/80 IZ68L 8%2Z~90-009 THO0ZT SHAIWHAS ANITODAH 95D TONI UIONIVHED ZIILIT ¥ TO
00°$6 DNINOZ ¥ ONINNYII
T20Z AI0C 1zoz/60/80
0899¢ : LS0¥I WIL - NOILVSNIIWOD 00°58
00-S6 0899¢ 1202/60/80 TZ68ET 00€Z-80-TO0% ONILIIW a8 ONILIHEW Z3d WIL ‘LS0¥d IITLIT & 10
00°06T ONINOZ ® DNINNYIZ
— . 1202 ISNoNv
0056 £899¢€ TZ0Z/60/80 TT68ZT 00€Z-80-TO0% ONILIIN d€ ONILIEW Z3d
. B 1202 X100 1202/60/80
_ £839¢ YAVILSH ENILSI¥HD - NOILVSNAIWOD 00°06T
00°56 £899¢ TZ0Z/60/80 TZ6STT 00€2-80-T0% ONILIAN g8 ONILIEW Z3d YNILSINHD ‘vYavdLsH OTTLIT O 10
8T°0%S gIvd AILNNOD 09° 56 INIVW Da7d IdIA HITVEH €6°22T AANIOLLY
S§°LPT  INIVW XIIAWNOD TIVIDIAND 80°LTT  YHINHED ¥OINIS YIDNYISHE 60°%I% SADIIIO HAIIVILSININGY
9TLIE | 1480 HITVEH - 04DI
81 0%S 9TL9E /7 0TZZ-€S-10% SANACED AIVI
9TLIE IdEa qV¥od
9TLSE TZ689L NIWNGY XINAOD
’ 120z X100 Id9d HITVHEH
09° g6 9TLSE /7 0TZZ-%2-T10% I4Ed BIIVAH - OdDL i
9TLIE ’ SANNOID AIVI
9ILSE IdEQ aQYod
9TLIE NINGY AINQOD
9TL9E 1268SL 2ZOZAA ALITILN JTLVM
08ETHIDDY LSODNY-TZHEDIOANT
£6°22T TELYE /7 0TZZ-95-10% ATIMYT
ZELIE TYIDIANe
ZELOE 126899 085 VIDNVYLISHE
TELOE FAIMVT
S5°L%T ZELIE /7 0TZZ-9T-10% TYIDIAND
80°LTT TELY9E /o . 0T2Z-9¢-T0% D8 VIDNYISEH
ZEL9E 126812 2Z0TAI ALITIIN JHLYM 1202/60/80
TTITTHIOOY LSOOOV- TTHEIDTIOANT R €% LEST
60" %IV 90L9€E 1202/60/80 TZ6802 0TZZ-ST-10% 2ZOZTXA FOJ [AIVYM 40 NMOL ‘VIODNWISH 60TLTT ¥ IO
ATNOWY # od HIWA # ooTOAUT wa3I SUTT uotadraosag [weN 2ILYA #3D
ST 1 ebeg TZ0Z/8T/80 OL 1TOZ/€Z/L0 QAINI¥E SUDIHD  ONILSIT ADITHD (09DEHD) LO:TIS:0T TZ/8T/8 :9aed



T9°2LT 6TLOE 1202/60/80.126892 L0OZZ-T6-80% qan £ ISIda QLT SHEOIANIES LINIILINI 0901 PITLIT J TO




g906890%-2£8-50G # IODY

0889¢
6729 0889¢ /7 .L0TZ-T6-50% HEZ9V0TS-2E8-50G # IDDY
0889¢€ zz0z A4 1202/60/80
0889¢ SNOILYOINAWWODHTIHL 62729
08839¢€ TZ689% A0A SHDIYYHD ATHINOW NOIIVIQAI0D LSaAMD CTILIT ¥ TO
0% €9 MAATD AILNNOD
MIOLAY TZ0Z WAGWHAON
NOIIDHETE TYDOT ¥O4 TOOHDS 1202/60/80
NOIIDHETHE IWOo07T IT¥dd NMOLAN 0%° €9
Coo0vUes 120Z/50/80 TZS8Z G02Z-02-10% NOLVEEHS Hi ONETY OL THAVIL ANNOAA X¥¥W ‘O¥ALO TZILIT ¥ TO
LT 1IT ONINOZ ® DNINNVIJ
1202/60/80
ZIOIFIOOY 98TOSNT LT 1z
LT 12 TZ0Z/60G/80 TZ688 €0TT-80-T0¥% H#HDIOANT 005 JIAO SHII0D JOTIOD dNO¥ED HION OZTLTIT ¥ 10
2% 0T MEATO ALNOQOD
1Z02/60/80
ZB8TOSNI#ITIIOANI TZ0Z/TIE€/L0 OL . ¥ 0T
zZv 0T 1202/60/80 TT68% £022-02-2T9 T2/T0/L0 HOWYHD SHVITAO IDVILNOD dno¥d TENN STTLIT ¥ 10
7S SH89FT SNYOT VANN
1Z0Z/60/80
. Z66T-J9dd NYOT . $S°5¥89%T
S GY897T TZ0Z/60/80 TTE6STY 0052-9%-9€9 RIDEONVMHOL dJ0A¥E NYOT XTIVE ALIMOHIOY FDNYNIA KN 8TTLIT ¥ 10
. s€°2§ INIXIIYATA GYOd AINOOD
1Z-92- LEEDIOANT 120%/60/80
8£89¢ STHEHM I0D se°zs
Gg-zs 8£89¢ 120Z2/60/80 TZ6869 Y52Z2-09-20% DSIA dviId NO¥I ® HdId AISYINOW LTITLIT ¥ 10
62°2Cse FEINID HOLYASICA-TT6
i TZ0Z XI0L
] 090TPPTHIOOY €8¥9LT6T#IDTOANT 1202/60/80
1069¢ . 220z Ad 6z°25¢
6Z°CST T063¢€ T20Z/60/80 1Z686T ¥8CC-08-116 WIILSAS DNINNYDS OIANYDS JINVE SSINISAH NITIVH STILTT O 10,
00" Ss% - SHDIANES TTYWINY
120Z/60/80
$80ZTHIDOY 0Z-80ZTNHIDIOANT 00° 5%
00°S% £1L9¢€ 120Z/60/80 TZ68LZ L02Z2-28-10% Z20ZAd SEDIANES TYWINY aiT SEDIANAS IANNEINI OH0T STTLIT ¥ 10
00°529 INANLOTIY ZMI4 HIVIS
12/0€/6-12/1/6 SHIVA EOIANES
) 9ZE0THIODY S§2~9260TNATDOIOANT
ZESY 6TLOE / / LOZZ-T6-€T1¥ NIWNQY 314
69°SET" 6TLOE /7 L0ZZ-T6-90% adn z ISIA
69°GET 6TLOE / / L0ZZ-T6-507 agn § ISIA 120Z/60/80
69 SET 6TLSE / / L0ZZ-16-60% qdn ¥ ISTIa 60° 529
Junowy od ALYA # s0TOAUIL wely IUTIL uotadransag 2ueN HLYA #3I0
9T :obeg TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/€Z/L0 QHAINIIA SMOHEHD  ONIISIT XOIHD (0SDEHD) LO:TS:0T 1TZ/8T/8 :=3eQ




62°C9 - INAWIOTIY HITd ALVLIS

TZ0cZ xace



120Z/60/80

$885¢ ZZ20Z A4
9889¢ SNOILYDINOWHODETAL SL°192
9889¢ TZ68%S J0d STOIYHD ATHLNOW NOIIVE0dE0D LSTMD 0€ILIT ¥ 10
T €9 9TT  INIYW XEIEWOD TYIDIANL
1Z0z ATOL TYIDIAAC
6889¢ g506LETE-P8E-505 # IDDY
6889¢€ z20ZT Xd 1202/60/80
6889¢ SNOTLIYDINAWHODHITIL . £%°9TT
€% 9TT 6889¢ | TZ0Z/60/80 TZ68ES L0ZZ-9T-TO% ¥OI SEDIVHD - ATHINOW NOILVIOJEOD ISHMO 6ZILTIT ¥ TO
9L°Z9 ITINSYTIL ALNOOD
1202 ATIOL JTANSTHAL .
£889€ €688T8EY-FBE-S0S # IODOY 1202/60/80
€889€ ZZ0Z A& SNOIIVDINOQWHODITEL 9L°z9
9L g9 £889¢€ TZ0Z/60/80 TT68TS L0ZZ-0E~T0% JYO4 SEDIVHD ATHINOW NOILYY0dd0D ISAMD 8ZILIT ¥ 10
‘9L7z9 MITTO ALNNOD
) TZ0Z X100 MITTD
¥889€ dESE£0807-F8E-505 # 10DV
¥889¢ _ zzZ0T A4 1202/60/80
. 889¢ SNOILVD INOWHODTTIL 9L°Z9
9L°29 ¥889€ 1202/60/80 IZ68IS L0ZZ-02-T10% J02 SEOAYHD XTHINOW NOILVIOdA0D ISIMO LZILTT & 10
05°85¢ YADYNYW ZLNOOD
1202 ATNC WEDYNYH
L889¢€ €Z8076ZS-¥8E-50S # IDDV
L889¢ zz0Z X4 TZ0Z/60/80
. £889¢€ SNOILYD INOWWODETEL 05°85¢Z
05-8sz L889E 1Z0Z/60/80 TZ680S L0ZZ-0T-T0% YOI SHEOIVHD ATHINOW NOIIVIOANOD LSTMO SZILIT 4 10
ST°8S9 YHINID HOIVASIA-T116
1202 AINC HOIVASIA
T88SE dI8STE96~-%8E€-S0S # IDDY 120Z/60/80
T889¢€ 2202 Xd SNOIIVOINAWHODTTZL ST 8S9
ST°859 1889¢ TZ0Z/60/80 TT686F L0ZZ-08-TT6 Y04 SHOUYHD ATHINOW NOILYIOd¥0D ISAMD SZILTIT ¥ TO
S8 %€ JATIIHS ZINONOD
1202 AT0PL JATETHS
8L89E SLE0LLZI-78E-S0S # INNODDY
8L89¢ 2202 X4 1202/60/80
8L89¢ SNOIIVDINAWHODITIL WOIL S8°¥E
§8° %€ 8L89E T202/60/80 1Z868% L0ZZ-05-T0% - SEOYVHD - ATHLNOW NOILYIOdIOD LSAMO PZILIT ¥ TO
S8 ETT INEWLOTTIY TJIId TLVLS
T20Z AINC NIWNAY d¥Id
6L89¢€ - g0TTS9TE-¥8E-50S # IDDV
6L89¢E 2202 A4 1Z02/60/80
6L89€E SNOILYDINNWRODITILL S8°ETT
S8°E€TT 6L89¢€ 1202/60/80 TT68LY L0ZZ-T6-€T% Y04 SEOAVHD XTHLNOW NOIITIOZHOD LSAMD €ZILTIT ¥ 10
Junowy # oa ZLYA # @D0TOAUI welI SUIT uotadranssg SueN HINA #3410

LT :8bed

T20ZT/8T/80 OL T20T/€Z/L0 QIINIVA SADITHD ONILSIT XDFHD

"(09DHEHD) LO:TSF0T 1g/8TI/8 :o73®a



SL°19Z

9889¢
9889¢€

L0ZZ-9€E-T0¥

g5660T0S-¥8€-50S # IDDY
g%02S88C-L¥8-505 # 1DDVY



T202/L/8#HEDTIOANT
£ ILSNONY

LO69E
L069¢ - - AIIYIYOW - SDHOC ® SEILNAHA
L069€E TOV MAN :S$000¥D HHI :VIDNVISH
L069¢E L -ISODNY - M¥Vd HHL NI ZIAOW
LOBYE “SMOUNS ANV S9ovd
L069¢€ MI0Dd0d ‘NIODd04d ‘Sd0d AXLLO TZ0T/60/80
LO69E “SNINAYN ‘SNAY DOCLOH ‘SDOULOH S0°¥ZE
§0°%ZE L069¢€ 120T/60/80 TTE8YL $ZZZ-0S-T0% STTIDIA ‘SYHAWWYL dIV-TI00M ‘UIIVM IDE¥IA €010 S WYS LETLIT O 10
9L°2Z9 JOSSIASSY AINNOD
TZ0Z A7I0L JOSSISSY
$889¢ H66829€P-$8E-50G # IDDY
$889€ i zzoe Ad TZ02/60/80
§889¢€ SNOIIVDINNWNODHTIL 9L°29
9L°29 5889¢ T202/60/80 TZ6809 L0ZZ-0%-T0% ¥0d SHOUVHD XTHINOW NOIIVIOdE0D ISAMD 9€TLIT ¥ TO0
6T°CTIT ININLIVIEQ QYO¥ AINAOD
1202 A710L0 a¥Od
8889¢€ gZ800552-$8€-505 # LDOY-
8889¢ z20Z Ad 120Z/60/80
8889¢ SNOIIVD INAWKODTTLL 61°2IT
61°CIT 88e9¢ 120Z2/60/80 1268649 L022-09-20% ¥Od SHADAVHD ATHINOW NOILYEOJI0D ISEMD SETLIT ¥ TO
6Z°69 NFD JOINHS ATYNIVINNOW
1202 AIOL DS AIVNIVINAOW
9883¢ d€9152%%-2€8-505 # IDDY i TZ0Z/60/80
9889¢€ H5660T05-%8E€-S0G # IDDY 6Z°6G
62°65 9889¢ TZ0Z/60/80 1T688S L0ZZ-LT-T10% g¥025882-L%8~S05 # IDDY NOILLVIOAHEOD ISEMD PETLIT ¥4 TO
8E VLT YLINED UOINES ALIYIVOW
1202 ATI0L DS ALIVINOW
8E€ FLT 9889¢€ / LOZTZ-LE-TO¥ g€9TSEPP-2EQ-505 # IDDY TZ0Z/60/80
9889¢ . g5660T0S~¥8€-50S # IDDY 8€ PLT
9889¢ TZ68LS g¥025882-L¥8-505 # IDDV NOIIVIOAE0D LSIMD €ETLIT ¥ TO
¥8°ZTEZ INEWIOTIV TNId HIVIS
1zZoZ X700 dIA § ISIA TZ02/60/80
¥8°2ZET 0889¢ / 7/ L0ZZ-T16-50% g906890%-2€8-505 # IOV %8 ZET
0889¢ 126895 GE€T9V0TS-2E8~S0S # IDDY NOIIVIOAIOD ISAMD ZETLIT ¥ 10
- 0079582 SADIANES TVHINY
1202 ATINL SEDIA¥NAS TYNINY
Z889¢ FLTZLTTIS-¥8E-50S# IDDY
z889¢ 2202 Ad 1Z0Z/60/80
z889¢€ SNOILYDINAWWODETIL 00°95¢
00°9S2 Z2889¢ TZ0Z/60/80 IZ68SS L0T2-28-10 ¥OL SHEDIVHD ATHINOW NOILVEOJE0D LSIMO TETLIT ¥ I0
SL°19Z  WHINED ¥OINIS VYIDNVLISH
TZ0Z X100 DS YIDNYLSE
9889¢ HE9TSZPH-2E€8-50S # 1DDY
JIUNOWY (el HIYa # soToauz We1I [UTT uotidranssa sweN q4Lva #3D
8T cabvd 1Z0ZT/8T/80 OL IT0Z/E£Z/L0. CHAINI¥NE SMDIHD (09D0EHD) LO:TS:0T TIZ/8I/8 :93ea

DNILSIT MDHHD



S0°92E

JATIEHS ALNOOD



€00€0-Z%%SE-6 # IDOV

£689¢€
£689¢ SE0L8 WN ‘HSOLNIDW
£689¢€ TIVIL NOISSIW ITI¥S ISL
£689€ zz0Z A4 1Z0T/60/80
£689¢€ SADIAIES ) . Sz E€€TT
6% 6ST £689¢€ 1Z02/60/80 TZ6BET 012Z-28-10% TYHINY d04 SADUVHD IALSIWOA TONI WM A0 LNIWIDYNYW ZLSYM 7PILIT O 10
SE€°V9¥E TAYD HIVWNI II0QY
TZ0Z/60/80
0Z02£220 . SE°T9VE
SETF9TE 1Z02/60/80 TZ68ZL €LTZ-0L-0ZF #ADIOANT TVOIQIW YIDIVD AN EPTLIT ¥ T0
% 9vEe INSWINVAEd aYO¥ XINAOD
L8TT
#IDDY E€L8LS-6LLISHADIOANT
00695 - 8999¢ / / ¥¥22-09-20% dF ATOW IDdS I¥¥D T
¥6°09¢ 8999¢ / / ¥¥22-09-20% TIOQXHAE
86° 78T 8999¢ / 7/ ¥%Z2-09-20% DS TID ILM06 IIO IYED
$9°T6L 8999¢ / 7 ¥¥22-09-20% TYD OYMST 00% OTHQ
ZI 69€ 8999¢€ /7 %%22-09-20% IENOAEIXEA IO 0714 NYIL R 1202/60/80
¥6° ¥V 8999€ 7/ ¥%22-09-20% INYIOOD OL¥ TI00D XAA 7y 9%€C
z8°s2ZT 8999¢ 120Z/60/80 IZ689T Y$Z2-09-20% NOTT¥D ZAIT IXT NIN A7dd0S OILOY SASIVAYIAINT LI ZYILIT O 10
TV L8L . INIVW XITIIWOD T¥IDIAOL
0IS6
NYSIOLALOOY 080T0088SHADITOANT
S599¢ €8CH# JIAUO MAOM
S599¢€ XATIHOD TYIDIAND
§599¢ ) HDIAI0 S AANIOLLY 1202/60/80
§599¢ IDTALSIA FO4 FOLINOW INAWIDVIATA Z%°L8L
Zv L8L §599¢ T202/60/80 TZ686 STZZ-9T-T0% ¥ TIYISNI QNVY FQIAO¥A DT ALI¥NDAS 3 TIATA LLIWAOS TPTLIT O TO
10°2T ) JATEFHS AINDOD
1202/60/80
S8960TOLHIIDY . ZHSPE6TTYEHIDIOANT T0°2T
T0°2T 1%99¢€ TTO0Z/60/80 TZ68IL 612Z-0S-T0% THEYT ESYD AVIASIA CUVANATYD IOVINVAQY SSANISOH STTIVLIS O¥ILIT ¥ TO
6T 98 ONISSTIAAY TVENd
98ETOYT8YEHADIOANT
TL € ¥8LIE / 7 61ZZ-L0-T0% (IN7TE) SNIE ANIOd TIvE 1202/60/80
66°8¢€ 8L9¢€ /7 6TZZ-L0-10% SEIYILIVE ¥Y MOVd 9¢€ 61°98
6% €V $8LIE TZ02/60/80 TZT6889 6TZZ-L0-T0% «TT X #§°8 ¥IJYE Xd0D IOVINVAQY SSANISOE SHTIVLS 6ETLTIT ¥ TO
T0°9ST SNOILDETE
9T9866I8%€/6T069028%E
8LY6ZET8YE/6LYETEZOVEHTDTOANT
L999¢ AIHLIVE YYYZ ‘XWALIVE YYZ
L999€ ‘GNYLS ¥OLINOW ‘SHTIaYD IAG T
L999€ ‘4Ed¥d AdOD Y ‘U-0D WILVEEHA 120Z/60/80
L999€ ‘aQYaEION SL°TT+S5°8 'VdALON 8xS 10°95¢2
10°95¢ L999¢€ TZ0Z/S0/80 TZSS8T 6TzZ-12-10%  '¥-0D SEIJYVIS ‘SUOSSIDS LIOOISEM IDVINVAQY SSANISAE SHTIVLS QETLTIT ¥ TO
Junowy # oa HIVQ  # ooTOAUT . we3T SuTq uotadransag smey AR(a #31D
6T :ebea TZ0Z/8T/80 OL 120Z/€2/L0 QIINIVS SADTHD  ONTISITT MOIHD (0SDHEHD) LO:TS0T 1Ig/8T/8 :23eQ



06°8¢€S z689¢ TZ0Z/60/80 TZ68%Z : 0TCZ-T6-80% Q4dA € .H.m,HQ ¥Od SEOUVED WHALSAWNG
’ Z-E€LSO-TTELT0OHIDIOANT



THLETAWOD JITIVISNI

ZTS9¢
ZTS9¢€ “SIS0d HIYD w€ NO HIVD
Z1S9¢€ HATIA FTIEA0d 9T ENO ‘SIS0d INIT
ZTS9¢€ 8/L T ‘TIIVY 405 8/S T ‘STUNIWIHL
ZTS9€ 8/€ Z 'ONIDVIE “dOL NO HIIM 1202/21/80
ZIS9E aqagyvd 40 SMOY € HIIM HONHA MNIT 00 68TLE
00 68TLE TTG9€E 1202/2T/80 1TTIBOE ZI92-96-029  NIVHD HOVND 6 HOIH :9 J0 #1THZ ANYANOD HONHL HNOIHENONGTY 0STLIT O T0
6% SET INSWIOTIY S¥Id FIVLIS
1S8L8ZZHIIOY
686 / o/ 0£ZZ-16-90% 09TLE60866H#ADIOANT XYL SHTYS
82°9T /7 0€£22-16-90% IYWZVH 1202/21/80
NEDEXO 6% °GET
ZE€°60T 1202/Z1/80 1ZZ188 0€£ZZ-T6-907% SX/XAW INTI ¥AANITAD QA T ISIA DT VSN SYDIIV 6%TILIT O TO
80"HET INAWLOTTY F¥Id HIVLS
) 1S8LBTEHIIOY
878 /7 0€2Z-16-90% £96GLIT866HIDIOANT XYWL SHTIVS 1202/21/80
8Z° 9T /7 0€ZZ-16-90% IVHZYH 80 %ET
ZET60T 1202/2T/80 TTTIS8L 0€2Z-T16-90% NIDAXO SX/CHK INIY YFANITAD DT ¥SN SYDUIY 8F¥TLIT O 10
8€ %9T INFWIQTIY HEId HEIVIS
TS8LBTTHIIOY
00°2T / 7/ 0€2Z-T16-50% 6STLEG0BE66HEDIOANT XYL SITYS
€Z°6T /7 0£22-16-50% HIL LYNZYH
88 2L /7 0€2Z-T6-50%  NIDAXO SX/WAIUEW YTANITAD INITI 1202/2T/80
) NADAKO 8€°¥9T
LZ 09 1202/2T/80 TZZI8S 0£ZZ-16-50% TOUYT/WNICHN FAANITID INTH DT USN SYDAIY LYILIT O 10
69°0LE INSWLOTIY H¥IJd HLVLS
LTL96TT
LS E€TT / / 0£22-16-50% #IODY 99€0660866H#IDTOANT 1202/21/80
95 €ZT / /7 0€ZZ-T16-80% XYl SHTYS IVWZYH 69°0LE
95" €2T 1202/21/80 1ZZI8Y 0£ZZ-16-90%  NHZDAXO SX GEN INIY YAANITAD ¥T DTI ¥SN SYDAIY 9PILIT O T0
8T 95 INERIOTIY TITd TIVIS
1Z02/60/80
TO OTEHIDDY 81°9S
8T 9§ YOLIE 1Z02/60/80 1T682T 012Z-16-8T% AdA 9 IDTILSIA P04 JLIYM J0 FOVITIA ‘TCEIYTIIM SPTILIT ¥ TO
9L EL6 INZWLOTIY H¥Id HALYIS 6% 6ST SHEDIA¥ES TYWINY
L-€LSO-LPLLTOOHIDIOANT
1689¢€ €O00E€E-0ET86-8T # IIOV
- 1689¢€ SEQL8 WN ’AIIYIUOW
T689¢ AQ¥Ood NONNYD TIvD ¥
1689¢€ 2202 Ad - Qdn §
98 " FEV T689¢€ 1202/60/80 TZ68ST 0T2Z-16-50% IDIYLSIA ¥OI SEOUVHD IAILSINAA
0-€LS0-8889F00#IDIOANT
T6BIE 600%T-€2T80-2 # IDDY
T689¢€E SE€0L8 WN HSOINIDW
. z689¢ TIVEL NOISSIM ITYS €SL
Z689¢€ ZzZ0ZT A
JTnowy od ALYA # 9DTOAUT ws3T SUTT uotldrasssg aweN qIVA #D
[ok4 :abed IT0Z/8T/80 OL TZOZT/ET/LO0 QIINIVA SIDIHD  ONILSIT MDAHD (09DEHD) LOFTIS 0T TZ/8I/8 :@3ed



[AR=12 : ENIT 8/€ ¢ NO QHETIVLISNI HONHI
cTS9¢E HALSYW IVIS NY¥IL HOIH 9 J0 1SLS



1z0Zz A1I00
INTNINVIEA TONYNIINIYN

05L9¢€
26 6€T 0GL9E TZ0T/ZT/80 TTTIBLY L0Z2Z-59-10% SHADEVHD HNOHA TTHD ZZOTAL
1Z0Z AI0r0 .
5%L9¢E INTHINVIAT TYOR
TLELOT 67L9€E 1Z02/Z1/80 TZZI899 L0ZZ-09-20% SEDYYHD ENOH TTED ZTOZTAS,
8z €9 8%LIE /7 LOTT-T6-60% ¥ IDIHELSIA
¥0°0% 8%LIE /7 L0ZZ-16-80% € IDIELSIA
82" €S 8%L9¢€ / 7/ L0ZZ-T6-L0% T IDIFLSIA
zZE" €6 8%LIE / 7/ L0ZZ-16-90% 9 IDI¥ISIC
zE" €6 8¥%L9€ / 7/ L0Z2Z-16-S0% § IDIVLSIA -
0§ 17V 8%L9E / /7 L0ZZ-T6-ETY NIWAQY FIId
. 8vLoE T2Z1859 SHOUYHO HENOH& TIID ZZOTAL
TzZoZ A1I0C
9%LIE INTWLIVIEA HADYNYN ADNTDITWI
05 €ST 9%L9E TZ0Z/Z1/80 TZZT8%9 L0ZT-€8-%09 SEOUVHD ENOHA TTIED ZTZOTAL
SYLOE 120z A7I00
8T €S S¥L9E /7 L0ZT-SS-T0% INTAIIVARA HONYNIA/OdD
S¥L9€ TZZIBEY SHOUVHD ENOHA TTIED ZZOTAE
1z0Z A1I00
L¥L9E INTWIIVIEd LI
z9 911 L¥LIE 1202/2T/80 TZZI8ZY L0ZZ-59-10% SHOYYHD ENOHd TIHD ZZOTAL
) TZ0Z AI0L
§8°5¥ PTLIE / 7/ L0ZT-95-10%  INAWLIYIAA ATAMTL
¥YLOE 1ZZIBT9 SHOUVHD HNOHA TIID 2ZO0ZAJ
) 1202 A1IOC
€VLIE INFWIIVIAC NOISSIWWOD
Z8 10T €¥L9€ 1202/21/80 TTZTIB09 L0Z2-S0-T0% SHDYYHD ENOHA TTIAD TTOZAI
' TZ0Z XI0C 609ST6TLTLBTHIIOY
T¥L9E INTFHIEYIAQ LIOdSNYAL
09°99% ZYL9E TZ0Z/Z1/80 TZZT8ES L0Z2-%L-02% SEDYVHD ENOHA TIID ZZ0ZAd
609ST6ZLZLBZHIODY TZ0Z ATINL 120Z/21/80
TPLIE INTRIZYATA S, IITITHS 9Z°00SL
$€°ZE8T IPLSE 1202/2T/80 1ZZi88s LOZZ-0S~TO¥ SHEOUVHD HENOHA TIED ZZOZAL D17 XLITIEOW I % I¥ €STLIT O 10
’ 90708 INFHLOTTY FUIA AIVLS
¥9208920Z
$#IDDV LLIELOSTTEHTDIOANT
XYL SETYS XLID XY SETYS XINOOD
X¥L SETYS AIYLS 9088S6Z0T:HLIS 1202/21/80
TZ/0€/90-0202/10/L0 XNVL NOTIVD 90°08
90°08 1Z02/2T/80 TZZI89 602Z-T6-L0% 00S WOWINTW INTY ¥NVI G4A TISIA 47 EANYAO¥d SYOINIWNY ZSILIT O 10
00°05¢ XYl ESIOXHE 9914 $7/71
SO0P6ZTHADIOANT T202/21/80
1202'9 ISNONY NOILDIISNT 00°0SZ
00°0SeT 1Z02/TT/80 TTZI8T- 1L22-26-T1% ATEALEYOD ADVWIVHE SNILIASNOD d NHOL ‘SIATY TSTLIT O 10
00°68TILE ¥ SSOWD HINIDAWUILSYIANT
: T8TZSTHADIOANT
ZTS9E 6€000-8T-000-08 YAMSHN
ZTS9¢ XINO ¥0EYT - ($SL8T°8) LIDWN
ZT49¢€ "NOILYITYISNI HDNII MAN - JOgYT
zisgc TEIIM QESNVE 0 SANVELS
ZTS9¢ € aNY TIVY 4O 8/S T ‘SIS0d
Junouwy oa FI¥a  # SOTOAUI wall SuUTI uotydraossg swey TIYA #2340

TZ

:abrg

TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TZOZ/E€Z/LO

GHINIEE SMDHHD DNIILSIT MDHHD

(09DHHD) L0*TS:0T TZ/8T/8 :93ed



TSLOE v . INTHINYAIT EH
58°s¥ TSL9€ 120Z/2T/80 122T889 L0ZZ-%I-10% SEDWVHD ENOHA TIED ZZ0ZAd



65°062Z€EL8 HAYD FILVANI LIOAY
¥-1202S0 HDI-0SDI#ADIOANT T202/T1/80
1Z0Z HOM¥YW ¥OS STIVWNI TOI 65°06ZELS
65°06ZELS 1Z0Z/ZI/80 TZTI8¥T ZLTZ-0L-SZ8 40 ONISAOH ¥OI INTWISTOTWITE “ONI DIAIDEIOD GSTLIT O 10
Ls°28 NYNZLNIVH ¥ SNOILVIZJ0
ZELYIRTHIDOY TOF00ZTTHIDIOANT 1202/21/80
6199¢ ' A¥ALIVE dOLIVI . L5°z8

L5728 6T99¢€ T20Z/2T/80 TZTTI8ZE 6122-59-10% SHT¥AS O¥d TEONVAQY ONTI ¥ANJ0D JILONJHOD PSILIT O TO

T6°0S THANL FIVEOET 98°6%T JOSSASSY ALNACD

8L 6TT JIDYNYW ZINOOD 00" 15 NOLLYSISININAY INYID 21" 8¢ JHINSYIIL - ALNOOD

0% €8T 0zd IOVILNCD ACQ §8°S¥ 0ZXA INVID TYD0T IMA ¥8°9% DNTUOLINOH ALLINOWAOD

£5°282 YHINID HOIVISIA-TTI6 07" €81 SHDIANAS TYWINY S8°S¥ " ONISSTIAAY TYINA

0L" 16 ONINOZ % ONINNVIE - §8° 5% MUIATD ALNNOD 58°S¥ STAS INVED dIVE

ZLTELOT INEWINVAEC QVOE ALNNOD YLUVLL INIRLOTTY FIId FIWLIS 0G°€ST XVl SWH/SNOILYDINNWHOD

T2 %12 INFHLIVAHA TONYNIS $5°96Z7  NUNZINTYH ® SNOILVIZEO G8°S5¥ AANIOLLY

Z8 10T NOISSTIWHOD - AINAOD 09°99%  SI¥d A0 NOIIWIIOISNYAEL ¥€°2E8T JATPIHS AINOOD
T20Z A1ar
16°0S 1Z0Z/21/80 1ZZI8Z8 L0Z2-06-T0% ANOHE TTIAD SEDUVHD ATHINOW
€6°091 SwLoE / 7 L0ZZ-SS-T0% 1Z0T ATINL
STLIE TZZTI8I8 INTRITYATA SFONYNII/OID
J0SSEASSY
98" 6% 1Z0Z/TT/80 TZZI808 L0ZZ-0%-T0%  TZ0Z AINL SIDUVHD TTID XTHINOW
1Z0Z ATIO0
65L9¢€ . INTWINVAAA IFDYNVH
8L 6TT 65L9¢€ 1Z0Z/TTI/80 TZZIS6L L0ZZ-0T-T0% SHOWVED ANOHE TTHD TTOZAL
. ’ 1202 A100
85L9¢€ INIHIEYIHT SINVID
00" TS 85L9¢ 1Z02/ZT/80 TZZI88L L0ZZ-67-T0% SHOYYHD ANOHA TTID 2TOZAA
: 1202 AI00
z1°8¢€2 LSL9E / 7 L0ZZ-0E-TO0¥ INIWIAYIAC YHINSYAILL
LsLog IZZISLL SHDOYVYED HENOHA TTIHD ZZ0ZAL
96L9¢€ TZ20Z X100 INAWRIIYIIA OdDL
0% €8T 9GL9¢€ TZ0Z/ZT/80 TZZI8IL L0ZZ-98-069 SHDYVYHD ENOHE ITHD 2Z0ZAd
1202 AI0r
55L9¢€ INTFWLIVEEG IMd
S8°S¥ §SL9¢€ 1Z0Z/Z1/80 TZZTSSL L02Z-20-509 SEOYYHD INOHE TIAD ZZ0ZAd
. 1202 AINC
¥SL9€E INFHIIYEED WOLINCOW ALINQWHOD
¥8° 9% ¥SL9€E 1202/2T/80 122IS¥L L0ZZ-EL-0TY SHOYVED ENOHA TIdD Z20ZAd
HOIVESIA
£5°28¢ TZ0Z/2T/80 1ZZIBEL L02Z-08-116 1202 XINC STOUVHD XTHINOW
SEADIA¥AS TYWINY
0% €8T 1202/2T/80 TZZISZL L0ZZ-28-T0%Y  TZ0Z XINL SEOUVHD TIED XTHINOW
TZ0Z Z7IAC0
£5L9€ ) INFHIYYAEA DNISSTIAAY TRINH
§8°5% £5L9¢€ 120Z/21/80 IZZISIL L0ZZ-L0-T0% SADEVYHD ENOHA TTIED ZZ0ZAL
1Z02 X100
ZSL9E INFHLEIVAEA Z9d
0L°16 ZSL9E TZ02/2T/80 TZZTSOL L0ZZ-80-T0% SHDYVYHD INOHA TIED ZZ0TAd
6095 T6ZLTLBTHIDDY
S8°S¥ TZ02/Z1/80 TZZ1869 L0ZZ-02-T0% T20Z ATIAL ¥HETID SEOYVHD XTHINOW
1202 X100

Junouy od HIYG  # SDTOAUI ma3I SUTT uotadrInssda sweN TIYA 30

ze :abeg

120Z/81/80 OL TZTOZ/E€Z/L0 QHINI¥YI SADITHD

ONILSIT MDHHD

(09DEHD) LO°TS:0T1 1IZ/8T/8 :93ed



. - 1202 FNNL STIVANT SHSN SE€°SE6LET
.nm.mHNmm.n HNDN\NH\onNNmeN , NbﬂNlObume MOOZHMDOEMOQHZMSMWNDMEHMM .UZHUH>HUMMOU mm.:.._”.no._”o



NMONYND FOVETIN HNON

13T ¥S0SC9ACPZBESHYPAT : NIA 604

. ZaVId YHIIM «9C HAYIE WHIIM # 1T
TZETHIDOY 99L9TSHADIOANT

| Z2Z6THIODY 99L9TSHEDIOANT
ATOIHIA AONIW ¥OJ CHITIN

86°0€ LNIALOTIV H3Id HLYLS

s999¢
§999¢ SWALT SAOEINVYITIADISIH ‘SHINLLIVE 1z0Z/21/80
86°0¢ 5999¢€ / 7 T0ZZ-16-80% ‘HZERAATIINY ‘SEQYIE JAdIM 86 °0€
§999¢ 1221821 'S¥ELII4 TEQL SWALTIA IIO ‘1I0 0IOY H H7400d I9TLTIT O I0
L6°85¢ INSWLOTIV FJId HIVLIS
TIO 0EMS
) DILARINAS NOTIVD 68088D:d1
SLSSBTUABOETASNDOT NIA NMONINA
TOVETIN 2dd 04 SHIVYALIVE T
TTETHIOOY 66TSTSHAEDIOANT
5999¢€ HIDTIHIA HONIH ¥OZ EQHTAN
§999¢ SWHLY SNOENYTIZDSIN ‘SHINELLVE 1202/21/80
§999¢ ‘EZIFYIIINY ’SIAAYId JAIIM L6 8SE
L6°8S€E 5999¢€ TZ0Z/T1/80 TZZTSTT 1022~T6-90% ‘S¥AIIIA T8NI ’'SUHLTIL 1I0 ‘TIIO OLOY H HTIHNOA 0STLIT O 10
66 6%T INSWIOTIY F¥Id FIVLS
S¥L59:dT £LEOSYHIETTIESSHAT NIA
NMONMNA EOVITIN TAd J0IL IATLLYD
ZTTETHIDOY €68STSHADIIOANT
66 67T S999E /7 7/ 1022-16-€1% HATOIHEA FONIW F0I CAATIAN
$999¢ SWELI SNOANVTIEDSIW ‘SEIVALIVE 1Z0Z/T1/80
§999¢ ‘HZIFYATINY ‘' SAAYIE ITITM 66 67T
5999¢ TZZIBOT ‘SYRLITA TENA S¥ELIIA II0 “TIIO OLOY H I78900a 6STLTT O 10
86°-STE INZRHIOTTY F¥Id TIVLS
996669:dT T¥TTZS
AAXITALWIOT NIA T6LIL HOVATIN
T-S HSN¥E ¥0J SAIWALIVE
§999¢ HTDIHAA ¥ONIW ¥0d AIATEN
86°GZ¢ S999¢ / 7/ 1022-T6-50% SWILI SAOENVYITIEDSIW ’SHINILLYL T202/21/80
5999¢ ‘HZIFIATINY ‘SEAYIE dIAIM 86°52Z¢€
5999¢ 12Z186 ‘SYHITIIL TA0S ‘SIYALIIA TIO ‘1110 OLAY H FTEn0q 8STLIT O TO
00°09¢€Z JIVd ALNOOD
SETIONGHIIOY TZ0Z/21/80
00°S§ 99L9¢€ /7 9%ZZ-€5-2T¥% ONIZdIHS 00°0S€T
00°5622 99L9¢ T202/21/80 TZZI86Z 9%ZZ-€S-21¥ SEIMIDAE HED 0D HIAAYS ¥ HINDAE HINIIWIO0D LSTLTIT O IO
SE SEGLET HUYD HIVANI L1100V
TZ0Z ENOL
SELVHNI SHSN 40 NOILVIIOdSNYHL
TYOIICHN F04 INIWISUANTWITA
TZ0Z ENAL SAIVWNI SHSN IMOJSNVHEL
TYTEILY /7 ZLTZ-0L-SZ8 IFN0D YOS LNIWASENTHITS T202/ZT/80
Junouy # od WI3T DUTT uotadTanssa SweN ALY #3ID

qIYg # ooToaur

4 :obea

1Z0Z/8T/80 OL TZO0T/E€Z/L0 TILINI™G SHDHHD DNILSIT MDAHD

(09DFHD) LO:TS:0T TZ/8T/8 :93m=a



. NOILVIDOSSY 08°S%1T
09° 9%t 12Z0Z/2T/80 1ZTZI8ZS S0ZZ-0S~T0¥% SAATIAHS WN WN OSOUINY OL TAAVIL NILSIWI ’‘dvINad Z9TLTIT ¥ 1O



£€02Z-0T-2T9

o@ﬁmeNONWMUHO>ZH.HNON INe WITA

O¥DTIW MIHTD IDVIOLS ATHILNOENAWADYNYW SCIODHY NIVILNAOW NOXT

vSaTg6l
TLILTT O TO

TS E6T 1202/2T/80 IZZTI8SY
TE 0Z0€E NOISSIHWOD AINOOD
1202/TT/80
LSZ0009-S8H#IDDY TZ0Z TE"020¢E
TE 0Z0E TZ02/2T/80 TZTIST LOTZ-S0-T0% 0€ ENAL OI¥HEd XYL Y04 SHOAVHD IDIAYIS FONZATY TYNIHINI OLILTT O IO
. 09-82 INTWLOTIV FITIL FIVLS
0ZIT99 ONIAVIY JHALIAAW
INTIAND T202/T/8 HEIVA HDIOANI 1202/21/80
TIL9E TALEM 09°82
09°82 TTLOE TZ0Z/TT/80 TZTZIBLE 0T22-16-50% TTOZAA INFWAVE XIITILO TOD YIIVM AVALSHWOH 69TLIT O TO
8T°¢C SHOIAL0 EATILVALSINIWAY
NINQY ALNQOD ONIY AJY TdS
8/€1 ONI¥ AFTY¥ IITdS «€ INIVKW 1202/21/80
. 0D ¥IOL: #IDDV E£TTYITHIDIOANT 8T°C
81°C ST99€ 1T0Z/TT/80 1TZIBTIE STZZ-SI-10% ‘ONIEHNTE “TYOINIDETIE “DSIH TONI TUYM@IVH NILSND 89TLIT O TO
66 "T9TLT NOISSIWWNOD ALNOOCD
£0¥SE-EC00D-DH#ILODY 1Z0Z/TT/80
) €26E80-USDHFIDIOCANT NOIIVSNEAWOD 66 TOTLT
.mm.ﬁmﬁbﬁ 120Z/21/80 122188% 80TZ-S0-T0% INFWAOTIIWENN €d7 T2Z0Z2 Ad NOISIATIA SIADIAYAS NINGY - dSD LOSTLTIT O TO
o0°ooLe 8TAd INVIED aIVH
1202/21/80
TZ0Z ILSNDOY €IZSETH HDIOANT 00-00LT
00°00LT 9S69¢€ TZ0Z/CT/80 TZZI8T¥H ZLZZ-YI-10% SHOIAYIS ODNILTINSNOD ZZXAONI 'SHEHDIA¥AS LIJANIG ITHOVITED 99TLIT O TO
ccroee SHOTA¥HAS TYWINY
TS EMOHIIDY PZPSLTHADIOANT 1202/21/80
Z6L9€E NOIXNTOS Zz°0€T
czroee 26L3E TZ0Z/TT/80 1ZZTI8OCT STTZ-Z8-107% SO¥Id TELYA SHILLOE TIN0SZ XddNs AYYNIITLIAA LSATA SG9TLIT O TO
0Z° 981 LNINLIEVAEA AYOd ALNAOD
80T TH#IDDY LSAONY-TZHADTOANT
9TLSE LdEd HLTYEH - OdDL
9TLYE SANOOYD ¥IVA 1202/2T/80
Q¢ 98T 9TL9E / 7 ) 0TZZ-09-20% LdAAd QYo 0Z°98T
9TL9E TZZT8LT NIWNAY AINNOD S0 NMOL ‘YIDNVISH ¥OTLIT ¥ TO
89°90T INENLOTIY FYIA HILVLS
1zoz/T1/80
TZ0Z 1LSNONY PTO6ELOHIOOVY 89°90T
89°90T zTLIE tz02/2T/80 TTTI8SY 0TZZ-16-90% ZZOZRA INAWAVE JALYM XLITILO "ONI ‘¥S0Q ¥0DdF €9TLIT O 1O
09°S%1T , JITYHEHS ZINNOD
120Z/ZT/80
Junouy # 0Od HLIVA # ®0TOAUT welT SuUTT EOﬁumﬂHUme ameN TIVA #ID

144 :obeg

1202/81/80 OL T20Z/€T/L0 QEINTII SADHHD ONILSIT MDEHD

(09DHHD) LO:TS:0T TZ/8T/8 :33eq



797 ¢6T MEATID ALNNOD

68EUWNOG " €E0PTHIIODY . TZ0Z/21/80



wwbmw

SLHDITH NOITXMOL 0T

OL TZTO0ZT/€Z/L0 QIALNIEE SADTHD

S8° €8 YZLIE 1Z0Z/2T/80 1TZTISLT 0TZZ-T16-60% HOIANIS JYANIVINOD TYIINHAISEL
00€L66ZHIIOY S9858HIDIOANT
SZTLYE zZ0ZXd
STLIE . HNNIAY ATIAYH 69
9% LL SZL9E 1202/Z1/80 TZZT89T 0TZZ-16-80% FOIAYES WINIVINOD TYIINHAISHEI
. ' 0026S8ZHIDDY 63CTISHADIOANT T20Z/2T/80
9ZLIE ZZ0TXA L8 8EY
9§ LLT 9ZLIE 120Z/2T/80 1TZTI8ST 0T2Z-T6-90% EDIAYIS XTHINOW YANIVINOD "dX ¥ DNI IADIAYAS HISYM MWN 6LTILTIT O IO
00°00T INAWLOTIVY HITA HIVLIS
6E69€ gzoz ‘0€ ENOC ~ IZ0Z ‘T ATIAL. 1202/21/80
6£69€ JIHSYIGWIA NOILVYIDOSSY 00°00T
00°00T 6£69¢€ 1202/TT/80 TTZTI8HT 692Z-16-€T¥ S AFIHD HATA ODIXAW MAN ENOVAT TYIIDOINAN NN 8LILIT O TO
§%°0¢C AIVL ALNOOD
85S8H#IDTOANT
£€€89¢ XEY 000 ANV MDOT HONAL
£€89€ SANNO¥OATIVA ALNAOD HONTIHOL 1Z02/2T/80
S%°T £€89¢€ / /7 STZZ-€S-TO% TADWN S%°0C
00°6T €€89€E 1202/2T/80 TTTIBES STZZ-ES-TO0¥ AEY NId gdd 9 aI¥ X¥¥ 40d SWELSAS DNIMNDOT WN LLILTIT O TO
85°08T  NED JOINIS ATUNTVINAOW
. STLIHIDOY TZ0Z LSNONY TZ0Z/ZT/80
9z L8 0£99¢ /7 602Z~-LZ-T0¥% SYD 857081
zZE €6 0£99¢€ 1202/CT/80 1ZTI86EY 0TZZ-LZ-10% YITTM 40 NMOL “EIVNIVLNAOW 9LTLIT O TO
09°S%T JATITHS ALNOOD
TZ0Z/2T/80
. NOILYIDOSSY 09°S%T
09°5%T T202/21/80 TZZI8OS §0ZZ-05-10% JAJATHIAHS WN KN OSOQINT OL TIATAEL I7H Co¥EIAT SLTILIT O IO
00°SST NYNZIINIYA ® SNOILLYAHdO0
TZOZ/0E/60
OL TZ0Z/T0/60 SEIVA HADIANHS 1202/21/80
) STLOTHIDDOY ¥2-STLOIN #IDIOANI 00°§ST
00°SST 8TLIE TZ0Z/21/80 TZZI8Y¥ LOTZ-S9-TO0¥ ZZOZRI SHDIANWHS IANIAINI LI Al SEDTAYHES IANIELNT OH907 YLILIT O TI0
0§ LET YHINTD HOIVASIA-TT6
1202/0€/6
OL TZ/T/6 SHEILYA HIIAJIIS HOIVASIA 1z0Z/21/80
8G60THIODY TZ-8S60 TN#IDIOANT , 05 LET
0S"LET ¥TLIE 1202/TT/80 TZTI8EW LOZZ-08-TT6 220Z A4 SEDTA¥ES LEN¥AINI LI AL SEOIA¥ES JINIIINI 0g0T €LTLIT O 10
00°56 DNINOZ ¥ ONINNYIA
6Z°L0°TZ0T HIVQ TYINL #IDTOANT
1269¢ TYIYL XMAL-NON 6274071202
TZ69€ €TZ00-6T0Z-dH-95- W 120Z/21/80
TZ69€ NYWHAT ‘€ A IIVLS 00°96
00°56 TZ69€ TZ0Z/ET/80 TZZIBSS 00€Z-80-T0% ‘NOILYSNEAWOD SSANLIM AGVD " GALSHT ZLTLIT O 10
Junowy # o4 HIYa # SoToaur we3I SUuTITd HH.O._num...n.HomwQ [URN JILYa #3ID
sz :abedg TZ0Z/81/80 DNILSIT MDFHD (0923HD) LOSTS:0T 1Z/8T/8 :93=Q



¥ZL9¢€

TOELE6THIDOY £6TISHEDIOANT
ZZ0Zx4



S9ZEQSTTHIDODY €-8
OL 9-L#HDIOANI TZ-£-8/1T/LT/L

og"

8%PT INIAWLIVAEA AV0d ALNNOD

12-02-L/T2-€T-L/T2-9-L SAIEM 1Z02/2t/80
S%99¢€ Zz0ZAd Ld3A 0E"8YYT
0E"8%%T S5$99¢€ TZ0Z/ZI/80 TZZI8¥S 9£22-09-20% aQY0¥ ¥0d SWIOAINN IDVILNOD ATddNS TFIVIHZAQ TYIINIANEd 98TLIT © IO
6.°8S INIVH XITAW0D TY¥IDIANC L8 €S NYNZINIVH % SNOILVIZdO LG LE SHITAI0 HATIVALSININAY
08¥8ZSSHIDOVY
¥08Y-6505%/E08Y~650STH#HIDIOANT
6L°85 / -€022-9T-10% TYIDTIANC Y04 SAOW ANV SIVH
AOIN 1Z0T/21/80
L8 €9 /7 9€22-59-T0% VSSI¥YW ATIYV NOSIALS SWAOIINQ £Z2°09T
LS LE T202/2T/80 IZTZISBZ €022-SI-T0% NIWQY AINNOD SAOHW ONY SIVI X1ddNs TIVEEAO TYIINIINHd S8TLIT O 10
£€7£€8 dO0¥d S.NEAZILID JOINIS
120z ISNDNY TZ-DNV-SHIDTIOANT T202/21/80
0TL9E TLINID YOINES £E€"€€8
£€°€€8 0TLIE TZ0Z/2T/80 12ZTI8LY TLEZZ-LS-TE9 AINOD ¥OJ SHSNAGXE ONINYITD SHDIAYIS TYOICHEN NYINALASSHI ¥8ILIT O 10
Sy 6TV LINYED ONINIVIL ¥ad
62V ELHEDIOANT
Sy 0T 9€99¢€ /7 992Z-58-116 IAD
9£99¢ : gag 8 "D
00°66¢€ 9€£99¢ /7 99zz-58-116 HS¥NOD ENIFINO NOILVDOILIHED (AHE
9€99¢ : iAir] 1Z0Z/2T/80
9£99¢ YIDIYD N ST 6TV
9€99¢ TZZ1I88T HSIN0D ENITINC NOILVOILMADTE QiF ONI ENOHd ¥AMOA €8TLIT O TO
L9°SE9T NUNEINIVW % SNOILVIZEAO 20" s8¢ INANLOTIV HITS FLVILS
¥E6I90EHIODY
LIL9E qAA T IDIALSIA SHDEVHD INITANYT 1zZ0Z/21/80
L9 SEST. LTLOE /7 L0ZZ-S9-10% HZV1d SSENISNE IDAWL 6970202
Z0 98¢ LTLYE IZ02/TT/80 TZZIS8SE LOZZ-TI6~ETY IANTAINI LI SSHTEYIM AVEIVId Z8TILIT O 10
80°%Z€E YLLNID HIIVASIA-TT6
Tz0Z 1ISnonNvY Tzoz &7IAr
TI9TT09TC/6L0LESPTZHADIOANT
9689¢ IFLOYIST # IDDVY TzT0Z/2T/80
9689¢ 220T A4 HOLY4ASIA 80°%CE
80°%Z€ 9689¢ 1202/TT/80 IZZIB0¥ STZZ-08-T16 D4 ATHINOW TIVANYIS TDONI NIN¥O I8TLIT O 10
sz°221 INIVH XIIdWOD TYIDIANC
SES9EE0ZZHADITOANT
§689¢ Z880SSTE # 12DV 120ZT/21/80
S683¢€ Z2Z0z XA HE@IE TYIDIANL Sz 2TT
§2°22T S689¢ 1Z0Z/ZI/80 TZZI8GE €022-9T~T0% Dd ATHINOW QIVANVLS TONI NINHO 08TLIT O TO
L8 8EY INAWLOTTIY F¥Id FILVLIS
Junouy # od HIVA # SoTOoAuI wall |UIT uoTadIInsaq SweN CAR(al #JD
9z s obedq 120Z/8T/80 OL TT0Z/€Z/L0 CAININA S¥DHHD  ONILSIT MDEHD LO:TIS:0T 12/8T/8 :93eq

(09DHHD)



L8°€9
LS"LE

/7
TZ0Z/ZT/80 TZZI8LS

SEZZ-99-T0¥%
€0Z2-ST-T0%

¥SSI¥VN ATHIV NOSLILS SWIOIINA
'NINAY AINAOD ¥Od SIOW ANV SIWH

ATddAS TIVIHEAO TYILNIANES

€2°09T
L8TLTT O TO



T02Z~-16-90%

86E80TZTHIDIOANT
qda § ISIA 86€80PTTHADIOANT
H9 OL ¥IVAEd LAASYD U¥HEH

dNo¥D AONIEDIIANWE NILAVW-SNOAAIS

E€T°95TY ININLOTIY TIII HLVLS
1202/21/80
ET"9ST%

P6TLTT © TO

€T 9ST% LTS9E 1202/21/80 TZTIBET
6279999 INAWIAYAEA AYOd ALNOOD
TZ0Z2/2T/8¢C
avodID.L 6279559
.mN.wmmw -1202/21T/80 IZeCI8T¥ Z0ZZ-09-20% #IDDVY 9ZTZOHADIOANI SANVIL JOHS DT 'WAFTIOELId ADYIANIS E6TLTT O TO
00" SETT JIYD HLVANY LTINAY
T202/2T/80
T202-L . 00°8¢2T
00" 49€CT 1202/2T/80 TZZIBEE TLTZ-0L-0Z% FOILFIDIOANI DNISNOH HILVHNT ) AINOOD HA VINYS Z6TLTT O TO
09°5%T JATIIHS AINOOD
) 1202/21/80
NOIIVIDOQSSY . 09°S%T
09°S%T 1Z02/2I/80 TZTZIBIS . S022-0S-10% SIATITHS WN WN OSOOINY OL THAVEL NIIIVA 0 ‘YIEIATYE T6ILTIT O 10
90°6%09 LINHWIYYIEA AY0d ALNNOD
0E8THIDIOANT
6069¢€ HY6¥000-6T1-000-06 YAMSWN 1202/21/80
o0 Z¥ 6069¢ / /7 10Z2Z2-09-20% ) SDNI¥-0 . 30°6%08
90°L00S 6069€ 1202/21/80 1TZTI82ZT T02Z-09-20% PZAE00PT SIAAYIE VOIS SHAIL ANVAHOD SIIL NINEATA 06TLIT O 0
99" S¥L ININLIVAId av0od ALNQOD
ZEBTHADIOANT
0s89¢ d¥67000-6T-000-06 YdIMSKN
0589¢ 6€£996 NIA DEZE80 :d4T
0883¢ qiod 6102 - TH
0589¢€ TO608Z:NIA Z¥8SG6D:4T
co. 0589¢ AATHD $002 - 91¥
80°619 0589¢ /7 T0CZ-09-20% LTE0L/S92LT 1202/21/80
85922 0989¢€ /7 T022-09-20% 9TISLL/SPETLT 99°S¥%L
0589¢€ T22I81T SHILL ANVAWHOD \HATI NINEaTy 68TLIT O T0
82°0¢Z9 AATIEHS AINNOD
memN#mUHO>ZH
82 5% LEIIE / /7 992Z-05-0T¥% XYL
LE9YE TIAIIMEDS ALNdIA - IND DISvE 1202/21/80
LESSE SSYID NOILVOIALLAID 827029
00°SGLS LESSE 1202/21/80 12ZI8SE 992Z-05-01% NOIIVILODIN SISTIAED dNO¥H ADOIOHDASd ALHJAYS DITdNd 88TLTIT O .10
6L°8S INIYW XITIIWOD TYIDIANL L8°€9 NYNIINIVH ® SNOILVIHAO LS LE SHDIAIO FAIIVILSINIHAY
08¥%8ZS9
#IDDY 6LSS-6S057/085S5-650S5%
6L°8S /7 €0ZT-9T-T0% #EDIOANI TYIDIANL SAOW ANV SIUVW
: TMDIN 1202/2T/80
Junowy oa [chA-(e} # S0TOAUI wa3I JUTIT noﬁumﬂhommm ISUWeN q€LYd #3D
Lz :sbeq HNON\wH\wo OL TZ0ZT/£Z/L0 CHINI¥NE SHOHHD DNILSIT ADHEHD Aomummov LO:TS:0T TZ/8T/8 :eo3rd



T499%¢ - a0’ ‘SauvD SSHANISNE ¥HZYT AVIAY 0Z°C%
oN.Nw Hmmmm HNON\Nﬁ\wOHNNHmmm MHmmnwOJHo¢~Mmmd‘mMmMUHﬁmZ.mmlmwzomZ.n.numm.w mw«a‘%bgmmmZHmDmmm,Hm@Bw mm.:..n.ho.no



00°0%0¢2 INFRLOTIV JIId AIVLS 00°0%¢ XV¥L ESTOXH HYId 5%/1

TZETO#EDIOANT
6999¢ IXZ Y04 HEDIAVHOAN
6999¢ 1IXZ Y04 EDUYHOAN
00°0%€ 6999¢ /7 9€ZZ-16-8T% INFWINVAEQ HYI4 ALNNOD HONYIIOL
00 0%€ 6999¢€ / 7 9€2Z-16-50% "MOVE 0907 SEXY SSOUD
00°0%€ 6999¢€ / 7/ 9€ZZ-T6-60% I4Ed HATI DI INOEA ¥OTIOD-T
00°0%¢€ 6999¢ /7 9€Zz-16-80% {MOvVd TI0d “¥OTIOD-T ‘ISEHD IJHT
00°0%E 6999¢ / 7 9€22-16~90% §-IXE ‘0Z-IXZ ‘Sz-IX ‘00I-1 1202/21/80
00-07%¢ 6999¢€ /7 9€£ZZ-T6-LO0¥ ‘00T-W ‘0S-S5 *AAWN X7T0d 0S - 00°08€T
00 0%¢€ 6999¢€ 1Z0Z/2I/80 TZZI8E 9€TT-26-TT¥ /NOLLOD 0§ aNIETg-Z¥d NYdIID “ONI SDIHAVYED YIZ 00ZLIT O T0
00°sLT SHOIAYES TYWINY
90Z8THIADIOANT
2069¢€ 0Z880TAVLYDOJHYIE *NIA 1202/2T/80
z069¢ NOISNA qi0d 0T0ZT 0o-sLez )
00°SLe 2069€E 120Z/T1/80 TTII86T 1022-28-T0% INARADOYIIAE MOANIM INOFEI TDNI ‘SSYTIH OIOY SO 66TLIT O 10
86 TEE 8TAd INVYD AT¥A
HOYYES TYNIWNISED HDUVES
TUNIWIED FOWAOVYE QEVANYLS
AINAOD HEINVIEOL ZEHONYS "D
ZESINYE D YAYE ¥ NOSYELIVd "L 1202/T1/80
O¥EMIIND "D STYETOLOTZOTHADIOANT 86°T€E
86 TEE L099€ T202/Z1/80 TZZI8/¥E TLZZ-%T-T0% MOIEHD ANAOIOIOVE INIWAOTAWI-TId DNINITIOS ANAOIOMNOVE TUSATATNG 86TLIT O T0
PL-969 INHWLOTIY H¥Id HALYLIS
TP ETHEDIOANT .
T9° 26 '6899¢ / /7 102Z-16-80% SI¥YE TYNOILLIAAY
S899¢ NMONMNG ¢ HDVETIN
$899¢€ vE€009D 3471
€17 €Y S899¢€ /7 T02Z-16-80% XYL
00708 §899¢ /7 T0Z2Z2-T6-80% LATHSHATIA HAOWTY
00°9¢€¢€ 5899¢€ / /7 T02Z-16-80% AOVATIN
S899¢ T0D INHWIIOOE
S899¢€ YEANOYM OL NIVW € IDIVLSIA WOHI TZ20Z/ZT/80
5899¢ LOEOENHS9DAADYAIT :NIA YL°969.
00°SLT $899¢ T20Z/TT/80 TZZTI89S ' 102Z-T6-80% Z-f£ YHANAL MOL  ASHAODTI ® DNIMOL S.YANNIAYL L6TILIT O 10
00°00%  INVID NOILNGTIALSIA IMA
) TZ0ZTELOHTDIOANT
00°00T vS89¢€ /7 Z2L2Z-€0-509 aNve JO4 WALSAS ANQOS
¥S89€ ALIALIOVY NOIINTAHEd HATIUNIILTY 120Z/2T/80
: v589€ ‘HENA TTOHODTY ‘HDNVA S ¥IWIL ) 00°00%
00°00€ ¥589¢€ TZ02/TT/80 TZTTI8IZT 2LZT-£0-509 a0 AY¥Id OL wOOU¥OYWu aNVE AJHL T NINALS 96TLIT O TO
. 0z ey DNINOZ 3 ONINNYII
8T090Z8%E/LT0690C8FEHADIOANT
T599¢€ HZIS TYOHET YHATOL VIINYW IDO0O0T
T§99¢€ ‘DD-8LEOTHIA SHESYD TAMIAL
TS99¢ a ‘o0 TPPeeH Id SESYD TEAMAL 120Z/TT/80
Junowy # od TILVA # 90TOoAUI uoTadTIOS™q SWweN aLed #2D

8¢z :obed

waj3T SUTT

1Z0Z/8T/80 OL 12Z0Z/€T/L0 QIINI™A SADIHD DONILSIT MDIHO

(09DEHD) LOFTIS:0T TZ/8T/8 :@83ed



ToL9E A T IDI¥LSIA SO0°"TET
SO0 PET ToL9E 120Z/LT/80 TZLI8E 80CZ-T6-L0% 2Z0ZX4 ¥O4 DIVLDATH ATHINOW “d00D DJI¥LOETI WN TYIINED €€ZLTT O 10



JET JIINNOW A00Y¥ HTIDIHIA #§° €T

SHOTIAYHS TYOIIOITI QHIIM I$ZLIT O TO

00°0009 9%59¢ 1202/L1/80 TZLI8T G4992-8Z-LCH
00°28T 8TAJ INVID AIVY
€T08V0ZHIOOY TITZB6ZANIHIDITIOANT TZ0Z/LT/80
00° 08 / /7 TLZZ-%T-10% HFA FONVITAWOD ATHINOH 00°Z8T
00°2ET TZ0Z/LT/80 TZLISS TLZZ-%I-TO0% 34 NINJY ATHINOHW - SMYOMIDYM 0%¥ZLIT O IO
00°00T YEINID HOIWISIA-TI6
TZ0Z/LT/80
TTEHNIEOLELOOY SSTHHHIDTOANI : 00°00T
00°00T zZg9¢ TZ02/LT/80 TTLIST ZLZZ-08-TT6 SNOTIIVNTYAR AITA0Yd TANNOSYEd “ONI NOILVNTYAHE TEANNOSYEJ 6€ZLTT O TO
96" %€ AADYNYW ALNOOD
YTOLHLIOOY 1Z02/L1/80
€0SOSNIHHEDTIOANI €0S0S# ANI 96" %€
96°vE 120Z/LT/80 TZLISL €0ZZ-0T-T0% HHL ¥OJ HOAVHD HOVIHAO LOVALINOD ano¥s =ENN 8€ZLIT O TO
€€°8€98Z ¥ SSOWD HINIDNUILSYTIINI
ZINNODEONVHIOLAIOOY TOOH#HDIOANI
LEBYE T-£0ID-9T2~-020Z IDVILNOD -SHID
I¥ %702 LEBYE / 7 £192-%6-0T9 258L9°L ® LEDWN
LEBIE avod ga¥NOW ONIHOIVA 1202/L1/80
919122 LEBIE /7 €19Z2-%6-029 HH4 AIIATTIHA £€°8€982
9L LLEWT LE89€ T202/LT/80 TZLIBY €192-76-029 XIW OTOONI SYOLDATILSNOD SHIVLS NIVINOOW LETLIT O 10
s€ zz SEDIANES TUNINY
. CEHIIDY
9€° 22T 9L99¢" / 6£22-28-T0% ‘HETM SAETING ‘STOOL QHEIMOSSY 1202/LT/80
9L99¢ ‘SEHSNYE dNiDS SHAOTD ‘SEDNOIS 9€° 2T
9L99¢ 1ZTLI8S SHITJANS HIDIHEA 'dINTd JAAIM FIYMAUVH AHIMOMLSOUI S I¥YH 9€ZLIT O 10
S8°62L XYWL SWE/SNOIIYDINQKWAOD
NI-L090800#IDIOANT
7T69€ XYL/ J0EYI/SIEYd : SEANTONI T202/LT/80
7T69€ LATT ZWAOL S8°6ZL
S8°6TL PT69E T202/LT/80 TZLIBE T0ZZ-€8-%09 ADOEL ALITILO NO HDIA¥EAS TIAd  ONI 0D INIWAINDE ¥DANI MAVID SE€EZLIT O IO
26 91IST YADOYNVIW AINOOD
ZS0Z8HOAHTIIOANT
L¥89¢€ TW # IINQ
0Z2°69T L%89¢€ / /7 T022-0T-10% SAIIIANS INIVAE
007058 L¥%839¢ / 7 TO0ZZ-0T-T0¥. q0av1
ZL L6V LY89€E /7 T0ZZ-0T-TO0% SI8g¥d
L¥89¢€ ' JFJINNE T202/LT/80
L¥89¢ ¥ IHDIT TIVI IV¥EE - NOILIQHAXH - ' ZT6°9TST
L789¢€ IZLI8Y @¥od 0202 40 AIVATI TONI Q¥0d SYHWITHD TEZLIT O TO
S0 %ET INIWIOTIY H¥Id HIVIS
T0L9E ; 0015290888
TOLYE / 00TSOT0888 / 0009€E0TT # IDDY TZ0Z/LT/80
Junouy od HIVA # 9oToAUT walT SUTT uoT3dTINsSaq weN TIVA #1D

62 tabeg

TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TTOZ/€Z/L0 CAININ¥E SADHTHD ONILSIT AOTHD

(090FHD) LO*TS:0I 1¢/8T/8 :983ed



I8°49182

9%59¢
9%99¢

8%22-8L-628

FHLNOY SSHTHAIM
ANV VIAWNYD /M ¥IMOL IHODIT

TZOZT/LT/80
T8°STI88



SOCLTIMNOSHIMIELAT *NIA

$269¢
vZ69¢ 9€E€8T AT 0GTA QU0 6T0Z
vZ69¢€ 0Z880TUVLYDOIHVAE *NTIA
$269¢€ T2Z6L *d7 NOISAL Q04 0T0Z
%269¢ 0€E0TIHISTHZANLAT *NTIA 1202/81/80
Z69¢€ L9LZYT a7 NYA QH0I 9002 S0°€9
¥Z69¢€ 128186 STTDIHAA MO SHONVHD TIO FATIOWOINY SAUVANYIS ITHDIH 8%ZLIT O TO
T6°08 SHEOIANIS TYNINY
099S#IDDY S0TTTHEDIOANT 120Z/81/80
16°5 £Z69€ /7 TLZZ-28-T0% LEOHN 16708
00" GL £269¢ 1202/81/80 TZSTBOT 1L2Z-28-10% ZZ0ZAd TOWINOD ISHd ATHINOW  INIWIDUYNYW ISHd ATTIVA NITID LYZLTT O TO
00°0€8% JOHS YO XZINNOD
120Z/81/80
12-1-9 00°0E8¥
00-0£87 120Z/8T/80 TZ8I8Y 0122-19-20% HEDTOANT HDVSD WILYM AING 40 NMOL ‘VIDNYISH 9%ZLIT O TO
€% 86ET XYL ASIOXE HATA /T
LZS8EHTDTOANT
zy° 88 02%9¢ /7 1L2Z2-26-1T% IMD WX
0Z%9¢ SSOTD IWAS
0ZvIE AVED FS0dT¥ LIOLMS OL SHDIAIO
02%9¢ Z EHL NI STIYM INIVAZE °STTYM
0Z%9¢ NI SETIOH TV YIVARY -~ HENLININA
0z¥9¢ ANy ‘ONT¥NOTA ‘WINI ASYE 1202/81/80
0Zp9E ) IDELO¥E TINI-¥OSYT HOIVISIA DL £%°86€T
T0-0TET 0Z%9¢ TZ0Z/TT/S0 1ZIIS8Z 1L22-26-TT% IV $EDILI0 NINAY F¥I4 INIVA “ONI DNIINIVE S.80€ SPZLIT O 10
6€°8 INSRIAVARA TONYNIA S6°vC - INIWIDYNVH ASTH
86009Z0#HEDIOANT
9289¢ UIAITO "L SYAGWYHD
65°8 9z89¢ 1202/81/80 TZ8T80Z 6122-55-T0F NOISSIWHOD ¥Od4 HEIVId HTWYN 1Z0Z/81/80
. 0L009ZO#EDIOANT e €€
S6° %2 2TE9¢E T20Z/8T/80 TTSTBST 8%22-90-009 AHJOWI ONILVIODAC ¥OOd SSENTIIM ‘DIF SaTIEMY Y¥ZLIT O 10
6L°02T  INAWILNYAEA GYON ALNAOD
FTHD
I6%T-DMAT/DT¥-NILE -MEITHEDTOANT - 1202/81/80
0L99¢€ . SHSSVID ALIAAVS 6L70ZT )
6L7 02T 0L99¢ 1Z0Z/8T/80 IZST86T 8%22-09-20% IX EOUVT CQEW TIVHS SEAOTD SSENISNE NOZVHY £2LIT O 10
G9°LLS MIATO AINOOD
WSCZI6SES9TLEVHIOOY
MAGE - AHOL-9ALTHIDTOANT TZ0Z/81/80
6ZL9¢ SETEYD IMOd AVIASTId T S9°LLS
S9°LLS 62L9¢ 1202/8T/80 TZBIBET 6122-02-T0%  'JOLINOW ONNSWVS 'JOLINOH TTAQ SSANISNE NOZVHY Z¥TLIT O 10
18°ST8Z I SSENIAVEY SITLID HOA 0070009 INTRIDYNYIH ADNITDUTNH
9vS9¢E - 9TTETHIDIOANT /ONIAATHS
9%59¢€ LING ONYWWOD HTIS0W
Junouy oa ALY # 90ToAuUI wal] SUTT uot3dIIosag oweN 2IVa £I0

o€ :abeg

TZ0Z/81/80 OL TZ0Z/€T/L0 UHINIIA SADIHD DNILSIT MDHEHD

(09DFHD) LO*TS:0T 71IZ/8T/8 :83ed



S0"€9

PT69¢E
vZ69¢€

'98ZBESSAOLKLITODT *NIA
T022-2¢8-T0¥ 8LVZFT AT WYY IOACA STOT



$0ZZ-08-116

TT6d WN ONEIV¥ OL TIAVAL

1Z0Z/8T/80

08°s¥% 120Z/81/80 TZ8IBE
T20Z2/8Z/L ONINIVEL . §9°28
s8°9¢€ TZ0ZT/8T/80 TZT8IBT S0ZZ-08-T16 IT6E WN DQRETV OL TIAVIL ENILSITHD ‘MONS LSZLTIT O I0
G9°9586 JINIWLIVAZA QYOI AINAOD
QUOMDIHLOOY 9LTT-T69%-T809-ELLHE T20Z/81/80
HOIOANI TZ-%-8 LIAHEID TZ-02-L 5979586
9979586 1202/81/80 TZBIST 2022-039-20% LIAEID SMNY.IL dOHS Q¥v¥D Tdnd OTT HROETIOALAL ADYHANIS 9SZLTET O 10
S0°86¢C 8TXAd INVID qIvy
Z€£9€0000WH#IDOY 1202/81/80
58°8T / / TL2Z-%T-T0% TITPLI00ANIH#ADIOANT SEHL/SHEXYL S0°86%
0z 6LT 1Z0T/TT/80 TZZI89E TLEZ-%T-T0% STOIVHD TOYSN “DNI ‘SDONIQTICH YIWYS §5ZLTT O 10
S0°e6LCT HAVD HLYWNI LTINAY
TZ0Z ATInr
0689¢€ W96S8S00-%8E€E-505 # IDDY
0689¢€ . zezoz A4 Tz0Z/8T/80
0689¢ SNOILYDINGNNODETHL S0°6LC
S0°6LT 0689¢€ 1202/8T/80 TZB8ISLT LOTZT-0L-0T% Fod SEDEVHD ATHLNOW NOIITIOAEOD ISIAMD ¥SZLIT O TO
ElAAAl INIVW XIATIWOD TYIDICNL
1202/8T/80
Z880SSTEHIODVY SES9€C0CT S2°2CT
sz-zZTT T20Z/8T/80 1Z8T89T £02Z-9T-10% $TDIOANT TZ0Z XINL EDIANHAS D4 TDNI NINYO €9ZLIT O TO
. 99712 IADYNYW AILNOOD
S86TNIHHIDIOANT CdOI¥Ed HOVIIAO T20Z/81T/80
120Z/%T/L0 OL T20Z/ST/S0 99°1¢
99°1¢ T20Z2/8T/80 TZBIBIZ €02C~0T-T07 HHL d04 HDAVHD HDVITAQ ILIOWREINOD dNo¥d F9NN ZSCLTIT O TO
60°SIT NOISSIWWOD ZINOOD
T20Z/8T/80
9TYZ8Z¥SSOTHIDIY 0-00-585505-T0 60°STT
60°STZ TZ0Z/8T/80 TZ818S LOTCT-S0-TO0% #IDTIOANT SHXVIL KN NO ALTYNId HONIAHT ® NOILVXWL NN TSZTLTIT O 10
00-szz NOISSIHWOD ALNAOD
0%90~6€L0-TZ0Z80-TZOZOVHIDIOANT 1202Z/8T/80
TE69E ) YIGYIIANYD A0¥IT . 007522
00-52z 2E69¢C 1202/81/80 1Z8TI8ZT mmNNJMOnﬁoﬁ NOILVILSTIDHE HONIYHANOD TYOANNY SHILNNOD ODIXEW MAN 0SCLTT O TO
00°0SZT NOISSIWWOD ALNOOD
6% LEHTDTOANT
TZ0Z’'TE ISNODAY OL 1202°1 1202/81/80
LSNPNY S:¥Sd ANV SONILIIEN 00°082T
00°08CT 1202/81/80 T2Z8T8L €¥2Z-S0-10¥% NOISSTIWWOD ¥0d LSYOavoddg L7 88 WA-WNXI 6%CLTT O 10
50 €9 SAITAIIS TYWINY
€EHIODY
Junowy # 0d HIVd  # ooToAUI welI |UTT uotldraoseq SweN TLVA #ID
TE :3beg TZ02/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/€Z/L0 CAINIVA SADTHD ONILSIT MOHHD (09DHHD) L0*TIS:0T T1TZ/8T/8 *9ard



so-zs8 YEINID HOLYASIA-T16

1T02/92/L ONINIVHEL



TLLOL /7 ¥8°8TLOSLT €TeT

8EZHIDOOV ¥ELB8ITHADIOANI

00 TS¢E SEOTAYAS TYWINY

00" 9 / 7/ 2LZZ-28-T10% SNOILEYNIDOVA SHIGVI T202/8T/80
00°G61T /7 ZLZZ-Z8-T10% SNOTIVZITIVALS TTYWS _ 00" TS€E
00°0ST 1Z0Z/81/80 TZ8TI88 ZLZTZT-Z8-T0¥ SNOILVZITIIYALS HOYYT "DONI AYUVNIYALIA STIVIL NJIALSHEM T9CLTT O TO
290°€68 NYNEINIVH ® SNOILYIEJIO
120Z/81/80
90°89 / /7 €TTZ-9S-T0% STHTHIOOY XYL IJIFDIY SSOUED . 90" €68
00-5¢Z8 TZ0Z/8T/80 TZ8T8%T £€ICZ-939-T0% INTVA TVOANNY SESNHDIT TACY ONI DIAVIdL TSZLTIT O 10
VELOY INFWLOTIV TITI HLVLS
T/68%9909H#TDIOANT
8579 TL99€E / 7/ T0ZZ~-16-€1% X¥IL ¥OodY'T ANY SI1dvd
857 L TL9SE / 7/ T0ZZ-16-€1¥% SHITIINS dOHS
¥8° 282 TL9sE /7 TOZZ-T6-€T¥ dWYT
TL99¢€ HAIS JIAATIA ‘dWYI NIOL R
TLS9E IIYL .mo&m -~ ¥RY ‘SgTINg OTYEIXE
.00°FIT TL99€ / / 1022-T6~€T% SEINE IDVIdEY ANY HAOWIY FOLY'L
¥E°99 TL99¢E /7 TOZZ-T6-€T¥% - HONVHO ¥HLIIA aN¥ TIO JEna
" TL99€E 292’'€S X0¥ddV EOVIIIRW TzZ0Z/81/80
TL99¢€ 6ZTPEETANODEIITOOT *NIA YETLOY
TL99€E 12818% 1Tad ONI OWD LATOYATHD AZ¥IATIIL 09ZLTIT O IO
€8°LL YIDYNYH ALNQOD 00°T8€E YIANSYILL XLNOOD
YS09LdA/PSO9LE#IDTOANT
€8°LL 6963¢ /S 7/ 90ZZ-0T-T0¥%
6969¢ SH3IION-H % 1202/8T/80
6969¢ SHOILON INHADNITIA TZ0Z ¥ £€8°89%
00" T8€ 6969¢€ 1202/8T/80 12Z8I88T TLZZ-0€-TO0% STIIg XYL 1202 'SHDILON HW 0Z0Z "OTI ‘HDNOL S.¥ALSYW HHIL 652ZLIT O TO
€L°9L YITDOYNYN LLNQOD
LB66Z8T8TEHIDIOANT
Z%99¢€ 34 00T
Z¥99¢ SHHDNO0d TYINIHHL ‘¥AdYd NATED TZ0Z/8T/80
Zy99¢ ‘IHAVA NOWIYS ‘SHATdAVLS Z/T €L°9L
€L°9L z2%99¢€ 12Z0Z/8T/80 TIZSISTIT 6T2Z-0T-TO0¥% ‘SETIYIS 8/€ ‘¥HAVA INIWHOUVL IOVINVADY SSENISOH STIIVLS 84ZLIT O IO
quUnowy # Od ALVA # 90TOAUT wel3I SUTT uoTidTINSsa auweN q1IL¥A #3D
43 :obed T2Z0Z/8T/80 OL T20Z/€Z/L0 QAINIAE SADTHD DNILSIT ADIHD (09DHHD) LO:TS:0T 1IZ/8T/8 :83ed



00-
oo~
0o0-

00"
00~
00"
00"
00"
00°

00-
00°
00~
00°
00"
00"
00°
00"

00-
60"
00~
00"
00"
00~
00"

00"
00°
00°
00°

‘00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"

00°

00"

00°%€S SEFXOTARNE - TAAYAL §02Z-02-10%
00°89 1IN FIOIHIA - SAITAAAS z0ZZ-02-10%
9L TeL'T MIATD ALNNOD hrsecter e
0%°999°¢ NALS/AITNG-SUIVATI ¥ TONYNILNIYIH STZT-9T-T0¥%
S5 LPT YAIYM - SEILITILO 0T2Z-9T-T0%
957 L9 EANVIOId/SYD TYEALYN - SHEILITILO 602Z~9T-T0%
€9 9TT SNOIL¥DINOWHNODHATIL - LOZZ-9T-TO0%
99 6L¥ INIVW INSHAINDE - SIOVILNOD £02Z-9T-T0%
097 LLS % HDNYNIINIVH XATIIWOD TT¥IDIANC IJE* x
807 €%V’ T dEd¥d - SHITIINS 62ZZ~ST-10%
0L 6EE’T N¥1S/CIING-SETVATE ¥ HDONYNAINIVH STZZ-ST-T0%
60" BTV FAIYM - SHEILITILO 0TZZ-ST-TO¥
S8°50T ANVAOEd/SYD TYINLVN - SHILITIIO 602Z-ST-T0%
£0°SVE INTYH INSHAINDHE -~ SLOVALNOD €022-ST-10%
SLTLY9'Y NYNZIINIVW SHEDILA0 HFATIIVILSINIWNAY IAEAx*
00°00L'Z SHDIA¥ES TUYNOISSHIONd - IDVALINOD TLZZT~YT-T0¥
ST LZT'T SEDIAYES ¥AHLC - IDVEINOD TLZZ-%T-10%
€% €91 HOTAA0 TYIEINID - SHITIGNS 6TZZ-%I-T0%
S8 S% SNOII¥DINOWHODHTEL L0ZZ-%T-T10%
€5°9€0'% 8TAd INVED QIVY LAHACx =
ZLTLET'T HSVET INAHAIAOE - IDYVALNOD ¥8ZZ-0T~T0%
€L°9L EDTAI0 TYEENED - SEITAANS 6T2Z-0T-T0%
.8Z°.%Z9 SNOII¥DINNHHODZTIL L0ZZ-0T-T0%
£8°260°C HOVLSOd 90ZZ-0T-TO0¥%
€9°2LT INIVW INSHAINOE - SIOVIINOD £02Z-0T-T0%
9L°68 TENS ATOIHEA - SHITIANS -Z0ZZ-0T-10%
Z6°9TS’T SHIDIHEA - SUYIVATI ¥ TONUNZINIVNH T0ZZ-0T-T0%
L8°0TIL’S ATDUNYW AINOQOD IdAA* *
00-0LS THAVAL SHEWIAN qI70d 00€Z-80-TO%
0L 8ZE ASVET ILNAWAINOE - IDWILNCD ¥8ZZ-80-T0%
0z zv HDIA40 TYHENID. - $EITS4NS 6TZZ-80-T0%
S6°¢€8T SNOILYD INOAWHODETHI L0ZZ-80-TO0%
L1°1T INIVH INAWAINOH - SIDOVALNCD €£0Z2-80-T0%
65°9LT TENE TIDIHEA - SATIdANS z0ZZ-80-10%
T9°2ZV'T DNINOZ » DNINNVI4 IdHGxx
€T %8¢ HSYHET INEWEIN0E - LOYILNCD ¥8ZZ-L0~TO0%
6T 98 EDIJIO TVIEEANED - SIITIANS 6TZZ-LO-TO%
09°9L SNOIIYDINQWWNODTTAL L02ZZ-L0-TO¥%
T6°9%S ONISSHEAAAY TYINd LAEA* *
00-0ST SANNATE 0L22-S0-T0%
00-szzT ONINIVIEL ALZOTIWH 992z~50-10%
00°052’1T VaANNOA ALINOWAOD HNXA - IDVILNOD €%ZZ-50-10%
L5°5ST SNOILYDINOWNODTTAL LOZZ-S0-TO%
80-00zZ SONTATING/ANYI 40 INZE %02Z-5S0-T0%
66 T9T'LT NOTLVSNEAWOD INIWAOTIWINA 80TZ-S0—~T0%
0% -SET’€ SHIFYIVS JTHLO LOTZ-S0-TO0%
96°LLS'TT NOISSIWWOD XINNOD LA s *
¥6°L60°2LT aNnd TYEIANID TELOLx =

¥8°8ZL 0SLT

»» TYLOL GNVIED +x

SIIAIID

SLIGAQ

' TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TZ0T/£Z/L0 QIININA SYDTHD NOILNEIAILSIA

9%:CS* 0T

1z/81/8

ERS =g}



00" S§9°LLS ADIAAQ TYEANAD - SHITAANS 612Z-02-T0%
00" TT"ZC¢t SNOILVO INOWWODITIL ’ L0ZZT-0Z-TO0¥%



00~
00°

00-°
00"
o]0 0y
00°
00-
00"
00"

00°
00"
00°

00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
06"

00~
00~
60"
00-

00~
00"
00"
00~
00"

]
00~
00°
.00°
00"
[eJoi
00°

00"
00"
00°
00°
[sleln

00°
00°
00"
00"

00-
00-

00"
00"

00°

00°%2 ENVYI0Id/SYD TYANIYN . - SHILITILO 602Z-€S-T0%
§9°99¢€’T YIVA ALNOOD IIHT» *
LT 2ZTS ISVAT ININAINOE - LOVELNOD v8TC-0S-T0¥%
ZLTEBPL'T TYNOILYONAH - SHITTddNS vTTT-0S-T07%
TO0"ZT AOTAA0 TYIYINED - SATTIIENS 6T2Z-0S-TO0¥
¥¥-50Z°€ SNOTLYO INQWWODITAL L0ZZ-0S-T0%
08°9¢€% SHHAOTINA - THAYIL S0CZ-0S~T0¥
IS %L9’8 TEAd HIOIHIA - SHITAINS Z0¢Z-05-T0%
S9° %85 'PT AJTIAHS ALNNOD IdAAx%
0E"%T HDTAA0 TYIANTD - SEITAANS 61CC-6%-T0¥
05°2TT SNOILVOINAWWODHTHL L0CZ-6%-TOV
08°92T NOILVILSININAY INYID LAFd > *
ST 2s¢ HSYHET INIWIINOE - IOVIAINOD ¥82Z-0%-T0%
g60-2iT SHEJ/SENA/SNOILATIDSENS 692Z-0%-T0%
057289 SNOTLVD INAWKODETAL L0ZZ-0%-TO0%
28 91T TINA FETIOIHIA - SHIIIINS "2022-0%-10%
€¥ TLE SHIDIHIA - SYIVIEY ® FONYNALNIVA T0ZC-0%-T0%
06-zeL’'T FOSSISSY ALNNOD LA *
T7°8T8 NALS/QIING-SEIVAEE ¥ FONUNTINIVIH STCZ-LE-T0¥
. ¥0°S9 ANVIOHd /SYD TVAQIVN - SEILTTIILIN 602Z-LE~-TOF
8€ FLT SNOTLYD INOWWODHTIAL LOZZ-LE-TO0D
€8°LS0°T INIVH ¥ELNED ¥WOINHS XLIVIEOW IdHAx »
9 L8L N¥LS/ATING-SATYATT 3 EONYNIINTIYA STZZ-9€-T107%
80°LTT YEIVM - SHILITILN 0TZZ-3€-T0¥ "
85789 ANYI0IE /S¥D TYEALVN - SEILITILIA 6022-9¢-T07%
SLTTSZ SNOII¥D INANKODHTIL L0ZZ-9€-T0%
€0°9€2’'T INIVH YELNED ¥YOINIS VYIDNWISH LI » +
69°9LZ ASVAT INAIWAINDE - IDVILNOD 782Z-0E-T0¥
00°T8¢€ SHOIA¥ES YIHLO - LIVHELINOD TLZZ-0E-TO%
zL-zee ADTAA0 TYIINED - SHITIANS 6TCC-0E-TO¥
00°82¢ JIN0OHE/XTI4/N3Ind 812C-0E-T0¥
88°9%9 SNOIIVD INQWHODHITHL L0CZ-0E-T0%
1 667¢EC TENg FTIDIHIA - SHITIINS C0CZ-0€~-T0%
8Z°886'T TIINSTIAL AINOOD fiRcicler Ty
70 9%9 OALS/ATINH-SYTVIAE B HONYNILNIVA STITZT-LZ-T0%
zE €6 YELEM - SHILTITIILO 0TZZ-LZ-TO¥
sz L8 INVAOUI /SVO TVANLYN -~ SEILITILAO 60TZ-LZ-TOV
62769 SNOILVOINQWWODATHL L0CZ-LZ-T0¥
T6°588 LINIVA JHINAD JYOINHS JIVNIV.INOOW LAHT > *
85°8¢6 - QJLS/ATIING-SUIVATI ¥ FONYNILNIVA mwmmlﬁwlﬁow
09756 AIYM - SHILITIIN . 0TZZ-%Z-TO0¥%
LE' PO INYA0Ed/SYD THANLYN - SIILITIILN 602C-vC-T0¥%
§9°880°T HONVNAINIVH 9078 IJ3d HITYIH Ldd0x*
20 ESe’T NALS/TTINT-SUIVAET ? EONYNILNIVIH STCT-£2-T0%
zT0"€5¢€’T INIVH DINITD HITVAH ¥IYNIVINOOW PUTCRG (€9
T0°9s¢ ADIAL0 TIVIANAD - SHITAANS 6TZC-TZ2~-10%
TO"S8SZ | SNOIIOHTA LITd*
60°0¢¢ SHEL/SEANA/SNOIIAIEDSENS mmNNloNIHo¢
SLITID SLIFHd

TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/E€Z/L0 CQIINIVA SADITHD NOILNDEIYLSIA

9%:25:01

1Z/81/8

:9%3eq



00 - 997869 DMHW\Q_HHDmanHﬂmmM R HINYNILNIVA STZTZ-£S-TO0¥
00~ 8T 0%S WALYM - SHILITIIO 01ZZ-€S-T0%



602z-19-20%

00° 9% LS ANVIOUd /S¥D TYIALYN - SIILITILN

00" 9%°.88"% JOHS av¥0oy ZLNNOD LAEd*» *
00~ ¥6°Z8LT HSYET ININAIN0E/JIAavdED L0SZ-09-20%
00° L8°0%T Mwmﬁﬁ.HzmimHDOm - ILOVALNOD ¥822-09-20%
00-" 6L70CT ALEAVS - SALIEANS 8%ZZ-09-20%
00" 6L°86E'T AFANTHOVA-SUIVATE ¥ HONYNILNIVIN Y¥2C-09-20%
00° 0E€°8%%°T SWJOAINQ -~ SHAITIANS 9€ZT-09-20¥
00° 66" %91 ADITII0 TYEEINED - SHITIANS 6TTZ-09-C0%
00" 02 98T FALYH - SETLITIIN 0T2Z-09-20%
00- IF LPT T SNOTIIYD INOWWNODITAL L0ZZ-09-20%
00° 66°99¢C INIVA INZWJINDE - SIOVALNOD £02Z-09-20%
00" ¥6 21V 9T E0d  HEIDIHEA - SHEITIENS Z0ZZ-09-20%
00~ ZL Y6L'S SHTIDIHEA - SYIVAEI ¥ FDONUYNIINIVA T0ZZ-09-207
00" ¥6°%96°'6C INFHIIYIEA - TF0E ALNAOD LIAA >+
00" 0%°ZS8 %€ aNnd avod TELOL* +
00" 99°18 SNOTLIYD INANNOD TTHL L0ZZ-06-10%
[¢Jo)y 99°18 FOaNc dIvdodd LAId* *
00" 00" TS¢E SADTANES TYNOISSHAOUd - IOVALNOD - ZLZZ-T8-TOY
00" Z8°TST SHOIAYAS YHHLO - LIOYIINOD 1.2Z-28-T10%
00° '66°¥8C ’ ALTAYS - SAITI4A0S 8¥ZC-T8-T0¥
00” 77 61T TENNSY - SYIVATY ¥ HONUNILINIVH 6€ETT-2Z8-TO0¥
00" LET9FT ONISIIIHACY/DNIHSITING /ONTINTEE T22Z-28-10%
00" SZ°SET QLS /QTIING-SUYIVATY 3 ADNYNIILNIVN STZZT-Z8-T0¥%
00-° 69" 65T FEI¥M -~ SHILITIIN 0TZZ-28-10%
00° 6Z°9¢C ANYI0dd /SYD TTANLYN ~ SEILITILO 602Z-C8-TO0¥%
oo- 0% ¥8% SNOILVOINQWNODHETEL L0TZ-2Z8-T0%
0c- z0° €97 THNd TIOIHEA - SHITLA0S Z20ZZ-28-T0%
00" g0°8¢c¢g SHTDIHAA - SYIVAIY 3 FONUNILNIVA T0ZZ-C8-T07%
00" 0% 6SL°T ADVIWAVHd - SAITIJ40S - 9TTZ-28-10%
00" z5°6Z5°'% SEDIAYES TYWINY IdAd >+
00° 66768 AIEAVS - SHITIANS 8vZZ-G9-T0%
00~ 8% SSZ SWIOAINN - SHITIANS 9€2ZC-599-T0¥
00" ZH 685 06T HIYMLIOS . 82CZ-99-T0%
ao- L5°28 FOIJI0 TYIINED - SHIIIANS 612Z-99-T0%
00" 90° €68 SADIAYAS LI - LOYIINOD £€TZZ-5S9-T07%
00° 9v 6€T’2 SNOILYOINQWWNODETAL LOTZT-S9-T0%
00~ 06°2%7% TE0d FIOINEA - SHITIANS Z0ZZ-S9-T0¥%
00" 68" VL SHIDIHAA - SYIVIEY B HONUNAINIVA TOZZ-S9-T0%
00" LL T L9S'¥ET AONYNZINIVA 3 SNOILVIEJO prcicle s
00" ST VL6 QIS /ATING-SIIVATT 3 IONYNHINTIVN STZTZT-9S-TO0¥%
00" €6°2CT ) AFIYM - SHILTITLIO 0TZZ-95-10%
00~ [A ANVIONd /SYD TTINLYN - SEILITILO 602C-95-T10%
00" 09-9L SNOT.LVDINOWWODHTHL L0ZT-9S-TO07%
00" 0T"0TZ'T AINIOLLY IITT > »
00~ Z9°8TE HSVET ININIINOT - LOYIALNOD ¥82Z-495-T0%
00~ 00°0S SHHd /SANA/SNOILIITIDSENS 69ZC-9S-T0¥
00" 6€°8 HOTAAC TVIENTD - SHEITddNS 6TZZ-GG-T0¥%
00" 1T LEE SNOIILVDINOWHODETAL LOTZT-SS-TO%
00~ 70" 8L INIVH INFWIINOE - SLOVIINOD £0CZ-95-T0%
00- 9T Z6L INTHLIVAEd FONYNIE IAAd > »
00" T8 20T ¥FI¥d - SEITIEOS 6Z22-¢S-T0%

SLIAIED SLIgHd

120Z/8T/80 OL TT0Z/€T/L0 CQIINI™EL SADIHD ‘NoIlnaI¥YLSIa

9%:25:0T TZ/81/8

91e(d



00-°

. 007

60°SLT L

ain § ILDIELSIA

IVILOL* *

00°0€8°%

ALYM - SEILITILO

0TZZ-19-20%



120Z/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/EZ/L0 QHINTYA SOFHD

00" 00-0%€ BWEOJINQ - SHITALAS 9¢€2T-T6-T1¥
00- 9z 9TT’T X¥1 ESIDXH H¥Id 3%/T LIIEd* *
00- 9T 91I1’T ANNA NOILDILOEd FIIA ALNNOD TELOL* +
00° 8T°0¢9 DNINTVIL HIZOTAWE 98CZ-05-01%
00" 82°0¢9 AATIHHS ZLNNCD IIHA > >
00~ wN.onA aNOA ZOHBUMBONN BECR IYLOL *
00° 00°0%¢ SWEOAINN - SHITALNS 9€ZZ-T16-60%
00° §98°¢€8 WHIYM - SEILTIILO 0TICZ-T6-607
00" 06°08T ANVAOUd/SYD TYINLYN - SHILITILO 6022-T6-607
007 L6° 88T SNOILYD INONANODITAL L0ZZ-T6-607
" 00° €S TV THOL JTOTHHA - SHITIANS Z02Z-T16-60%
00° 5Z°S€g8 INHWILOTIVY HAIA HLWLS iRciciary
00° STT5€E8 adn ¥ LOIELSIA TYIOL* *
00° 00°0%¢ SHIOAINA - SAIIIINS 9€TZ-T6-807
00~ YLTVTVC TYOIAEN - SdITdAns 0€ZC-16-80%
0o~ 2€°91T9 JAIVM - SHILITILN 0TZZ-16-80%
00~ 2% °8S ANVIOUd /SYD TYAQLYN - SHILITILD 602Z-16-80%
G0~ §9°21Z SNOILVOINNWWODHTAL L0ZZ-16-80%
00" 66 E€LT TAINd FATOIHAA - SHITTAdNS 202Z2-16-80%
00" ZLTLTL SHIDIHIA - SYIVAHd ¥ HONYNILLNIVH T0ZZ-16-80%
00" ZETELY'T INGRLOTTY HIIdA JLVLS LdEdx ¥
00- Z6 €LY T TaA € LOI¥LSIA N TYLOL * +
00~ 00°0%€ SWIOAINO - SHITI4NS 9€TZ-16-L0%
00" $0°08 ANVIOUd/SYD TVANLYN - SHILITILO 602C-T6~-L0T
00- S0 PET ALIDTELOHATH - SITILITILO 80CZ~T6-L0%
00° €L 76T SNOILVIINNWNODETAL LOTT-T6-LO0T
00" 96719 TEINA dTOIHAA - SHITAANS 202C-16-L0%
0c* 08°018 INHALOTIY HYTA HIV.LIS LI % >
00" 08°0T8 adp T IOI¥ELSIA TELOL * *
00° 00°0%¢ SWEOAINN - SHITILAS 9€22-T6-90%
00° 297 8¢S TYOIAER - SHITIANS 0€ZT-T6-30%
00" 72 ¥8¢ YALYM - SAILITILG 0TCZ-16-907
00° z0°82C CANYA0¥d /SYD TYANLYN ~ SIILITILO 60TC-T6-907%
00° T0"62C SNOIILTD INONWWODHTIL LOTZ-T6-20%
00° [AARA TEQ4 HIDIHENA - SEITIANS 202Z-T6-907
00~ L6°85€ SHIDIHIA - SEIVAEI B IONUNILNIVH TOZZ-T6-90%
o0o0- 8Z°68L°T LNFWLOTTIY HAITA HLVLS IdTqx =
o]el 8Z°68L'T ain ¢ LOIALSIA TYLOL*
00" 00" 0%¢ SHWIOITINN - SHITAANS 9¢ZT-16-50%
00" §6°L8CT TYOIAENW - SHITINS 0€CZT-16-50%
00" Sv°€9% JELEM - SHILITIIN 0TZZ-16-90%
00" 9% v9 INVA0EA/SYD TYIALYN - SHILITILO 6022-16-507
00- T ¥CS SNOTIVOINQWRODTTIL L0ZZ-16-50%
00° 85 FE0’T . THENS TITIDTHAA - SAIT4IOS 202Z-T6-S0%
00~ 05°095'% STIDIHIA - SYIVATY ¥ ZONUNZINIVH TOTZ-T6-S0%
00" 60°SLT L INFWLOTIV JYId ALVLS LI *
SLIQIID SLISIC -
NOCILNEg§IdLsSIdA 9%:25:0T 1Z/8T/8- :e3ed



00°

00~

00°0SE‘T

JI¥4 ALNOOD

TELOL* »

‘9z sLL'T

SHADIATES ddHLO

IOVELNOD

TLZZ-C6-T1¥



00-
00"
00-
00"
00"

006"

00"
00°

00"

00"
00"

00"

G0~
00"
00"

00°
00"
00"
00"

00°

co-
00~
g0~
co-

00"

00"
00"
00°
0o-
00°
00~
00~

00~

00~
00°

ALEAVS - SEITAANS

8%2Z-¢8-%09

00°0SZ
ST ¥8T- SNOIIV¥DINAWWODITEL L0ZZ-€8-%09
6% IET TINd FTOIHEA - SEITAANS 20ZZ-£8-%09
S8°62CL SHIDIHAA - SYIVATE ¥ HONYNIINIYH T0ZZ-£8-%09
69°96€"T XYL SWH/SNOILLVDINOWNKOD . LAEdx»
65°96€"T aNnd ASNIIFA TIAID TYLOL* *
YT €00’¢€ ALIAVS - SEITIANS 8%22-90-009
TT €00°€ INFNIDYNYN ASTI hfsscle e
%1°€00’€E WYID0dd ALIAYS TYLOL* x
- 00°000°9 ONIANQI ddIM §59Z-82-LZY
00°000°9 INTHEDYNYH AONTDITNT LIdEdxx
00°000°9 ONIANNA JAIM TILOL* *
09°99% SNOILUYDINNWWODHIHEL L0ZT~¥L-0TF
¥r°69z°'2 THNI FIDIHEA - SHEITIANS z0ZZ-%L-0T%
vL-SEL'T SYINOSTIVd A0 NOILVILIOISNTIL TAEA* =
€T°09% dIN0H/XTd/Nand 8TZZT~E€L-0TF
6S°LL SNOIIVDINOHWODETEL L0TZ-EL-0ZY
69°T% THNS FTIDIHEA ~ SHITIAONS z0ZZ-€£L-02%
I%° 089 DNTIHOLINOW ALINNWWOD LIAAx+
€8¢ TYDIGAN HIVANT €LTZ-2L-0Z%
00°0S6 % SHIVINI 40 =YD ZLTZ-ZTL-0TZY
€87 €56°% TIYD HIVANI STINHANL LT * *
0T°8ss SNOIL¥DINQWNODITHL L0ZZ-0L-02F
65 TLT'9 IYOIAEN HELVHNI €LTZ-0L-02%
68°6TT 69 SHIVANT A0 TEYD TLIZT-0L-0T%
85°6%T 9L YYD HIVANT LINAY IAdAAx
95 617 %8 aNad TIve TYLOL x x
00°0%€ SWHOAINA -~ SITITIENS 9€zz-16~81%
8T 99 YAIYM ~ SIILITILN 0TZZ-T6-81%
Sy 6E ANYAOEd /SYD TVINIVN - SHILITILIO 60ZZ-T16-81L¥%
£9°6€v INSWIOTTY H¥II HIVIS LdExx
€9°GET aiA 9 IDI™LSIA TYLOLx x
61°882 SEOIANHES ¥IHIO - LOYAINOD TLZZ-T6-€I¥V
. 00°00T SEAA/SENA/SNOILAIEDSENS 692Z-T6-€T¥%
TZ°C%S N¥LS/ATING-SHTIVAEE ¥ HONVNHLNIVH SIZZ-T6-€TH
69°80T°1T : SNOIIVDINNWWODHTHL L0ZEZ-T6-€TY
TT 6€S’'T TENA FIDIHEA - SHITIANS z0TZ-T6-€T¥%
6€°506 SAIOIHAA - SYIVATE B HONYNILNIVH T0Z2-T6-€T¥%
6S°€8% ¥ INTHIOTTY FITd HIVLS LdAQ* *
65°€8Y ¥ NIWQY INTWLIVIEA TITA TYLOL * *
00°0S€‘e SETIDNAE - SAII4ANS 9%22-€5-2T¥
00-o0se’e JIVI ALNQOD LIdAA s >

'SLIAHED SITERA
NOILZNeE€IJILSIA 9%:2S 0T 1IT/8I/8 :o3eQ

TZ0Z/8T/80 OL IZ0T/€Z/L0 QAINIYA SIDIHD



€0°989°¢€ 0zXd INVID TYO0T IMA IAHEd* *

00" IO 8TT‘¥Y aNQd WYED0odd IMd . THLOL *



‘TZ0Z/8T/80 OL TZ0Z/€Z/L0 CAINI¥A SADEHD

"NOIXINnNEgI¥YLSIA

9%:25 0T TT/8T/8

ra7eq

00" 0% €81 SNOTLYD INAKHODETAL L0ZZ-98-069
00" 0% €8T 0Zd IDVAINOD AQ IART**
00" TT°852 ISYAT INEWAIADE - IDVMEINOD | ¥822-60-069
00" TT 85T III& dNIM LIEdxx
00" . TS T¥ INVED FONSTIOIA DILSTHOQ TYLOLx *
00" 579981971 ZJ0AYE ATHVE € EONVMIOL 0052-9%-9€9
00" $5°5%8°9PT : SNVOT Yamn Ia=dxx
00" © 35 ev8TovT aNod EDTA¥ES 1€95a TILOLx*
00" 00°0L6°T SEDIANHS TYNOISSEAOEd - IOVIINOD ZLTZT-L9-SE9
00- 00°0L6°T TZAd INVED HOTISOL ETINEANL AIXD LAAT* »
00" 15 €vE SEDIANAS TYNOISSHAOEd - LOVALINOD ZLTT-60-5€9
00" 157 €%T ® ) II1d GNIM IdHa=%
00" TS €TZ € INYSD HOILSAC TIINEANL TYLOT %
00" cg-ges SEOIAYES WEHIO - IOVEINOD TLZZ-LS-TEY
00" £e-€€8 NY¥D0¥d §,NZZILID YOINES 1A *
00° €€ €€8 aNad. 8, NAZILTD ¥OINHS TYLOS % %
00" 80°0€S'T QLS /TIING-SAIVATE ® HDONYNILNIVR STZZ-L8-0€9
00" 80°0€ST DINTTID TYOIAHN YZNYIEASHE LIEEAx*
00" 80°0€5°T DINITD VZNVAEdSH TYLOL#»
00" LY LP9'9 FEENTHOVH 3 INAWETAOE - 0D LT9Z-76-029
00" . £€°8€9°8Z IONEISNODEY/NOIIDNEISNOD Q¥0d-0D £192-76-029
00" 88 T89°€S SINAHAAOYAWT ONYI ¥ @Y - 0D Z192-%6-029
00" 80°€11°2 QUIS/CIING-SATVETY ¥ EONUNIINIVI S12Z-76-029
00" 9L°080°T6 X1 SIATEOEE SSO¥H HANIDOYLSYIINI fidetc(a O
00" . 9L°080'16 IND FEAIONILSVEANI ALNNOD TYLOL+ %
00" 00°208°L SEDTA¥ES TUNOISSHIOEd - IOVIINOD ZLTT-LT-9T9
00" " 00°z0S‘L TZAd INVED YOHIY IIAGs *
00" 00°205°L INVED YOHAY TYLOL+ *
00" 60" 9€T EOVMOLS ENTHOVH ONIIOA 80£2-02-219
00" 0s°60€ ESYIT INEWIINOHE - IOVALNOD $822-0Z~CT9
00" 607 LZY INIVH ENAWAIAOE - SIDVILNOD £022~02-2T9
00" 89°2L8 NIETO AINACD I *
00" 89°ZL8 aNnd INZHATAOE S, JATTO TYLOLx*
00" 867 1€ TENI TIDIHHEA - SHITEANS z02T-60-509
00" 86°1¢€ IIId aNIM L&A *
00" 00°00%. SEDIAYES TYNOISSHIOHd - IDTVEINOD ZLTZ-£0-S09
00" 00°00% 0ZXd INVED NOIINGI¥ISTIA ING IAATx»
00" 8T 0%9°'€ SADIATIS TUNOISSHIOE - IDVEINOD ZLZZ-20-509
00" §8° 5% SNOII¥D INNHHODTTIL L0ZZ-20-509
SIIATID SITEAG



00"

00°000°0S

SNOILVIFOYddY HATLVISIOHIT

TELOL* *




[eXe T8 8ZL OGL’T ** STIYLOL MNVE +«»

00° 78 8ZL'OSL T JINVE S0 TOXNVE
006" - SYT69L DONINIVIL THAOTINE 992¢-98-TT6
00~ S¥"69L INVID ONINIVAL ¥Yiad LA * *
00° 627252 FSYHT INZWAINOE - LOWILNOD ¥82C-08-TT6
00- LE9%E SHOIAYIS IYNOISSHIOYd - LOVALNOD CTLZT-08-116
00" 00°0ST . SHEEA/SHENG/SNOILATIDSENS 6922-08-116
00" 9z 8LS'T NILS/ATING-SITVIRE 3 FONVYNILNTI YR mHNNnowlﬂﬂm
6o~ TLTEE ENVA0Id /SYD TYINLVN - SHILITILO 6022-08-T16
00° 8T 8L0°T SNOIILVOINOWAODHTIEL L0ZTZ-08-T1T6
00" s9°¢8 SHEXOTANE -~ THAVEL S0CZ-08-T16
00~ 67" T2S’'¢E YHINGID HOLVISIC-TIT6E LAHT* »
00~ ¥6° 0627 . aNNg TT6-ADNEDIANHT TYLOL+ +
00" . . T8°ST8‘T ALAAYS - SHITI4NS 8%72C-8L-6C8
00° I8°5I8'C HATLVILINT SSINIAVHEA SHILID HOA LAHT > *
00~ I8°518°¢ AILVILINI SSENIQYHY SHILID HOQAWN TYLOL * +
00" . $6°SZZ'IT0’T SEIVANI 40 HIVD ZLTZ-0L-5C8
00- ¥6°SZT'TIT0 T . HAVD HLVWNI II0aY prciclerEs
0o- ¥6°52Z 110 T NINIDIOINZ SHOLSND. ® NOILTIDIWNI TYLOL > >
00° 007000709 Z0Z dS¥HOUNd JINOE aV¥Od DI TLLZH' S69Z-69-€08
00~ 00°0000S . SIDALCEd HATIVISIODHT LIHA » »

SLIAHEAD SLIgAEq

Tz0Z/81/80

0% TZ0Z/E€Z/L0 QHINTIAd SADHHD

NOIILNdId¥LSIdA

9%:z5:0T 1Z/81/8

:a3ea



Agenda Item
No. 10



Agenda Item
No. 11-A4



Agenda Item
No. 12-A



8/12/2021 srtbwe_microgrant_program

Small Rural Tribal
BODY WORN CAMERA PROGEAM
(/sp/srtbwc_microgrant_program)

Application -

Save Draft Mark Complete Close

The Bureau of Justlce Assistance (BJA) of the Office of Justice Programs (OJP), U.S. "’
Department of Justice (DOJ) and Justice & Security Strategies (JSS) are seeking applications
for a new federal micfo-grant program that funds the implementation or expansion of body-worn
camera (BWC) programs for small, rural, and tribal law enforcement agencies (SRT).

Funding under this program supports agencies seeking to establish or expand comprehensive
BWC programs and have specified plans to implement this technology in a manner that
maximizes the benefits of BWCs. As part of their submission, applicants will provide information
.on their plans to deploy this technology, as well as specific ways it will be used to enhance the
applicant agency’s mission.

BWC programs are an important tool that could be an integrated part of a jurisdiction’s holistic
problem-solving and community-engagement strategy, helping to increase both trust and
communication between the police and the communities they serve. BWCs can be highly
effective, providing an objective audio and visual record of interactions that can capture
empirical evidence in the event of a crime, police-citizen interaction, or use-of-force incident.

This micro-grant program is competitive and requires a 1:1 match. Funds must be used to
purchase body-worn cameras and may include expenses reasonably related to BWC program
implementation. Federal funds shall not be used to pay for data storage costs associated with
body-worn camera footage. Funding can be used to support pilot BWC programs, establish new
BWC implementation, or expand existing programs. Funding is capped at $2,000 per camera.

Applications must be submitted by 11:59 pm ET on August 31, 2021.

We anticipate that this will be a highly competitive solicitation, and applicants are s‘trongly
encouraged to apply and submit before the deadline.

- The online application for the micro-grant program is user-friendly. It consists of approximately
30 questions requiring yes/no answers, multiple choice answers with drop-down menus, brief
narratives, and a budget section.

https:/iwebportalapp.com/sp/task_item_primary_input/srtbwc_microgrant_program?path=29210801 1/14



8/12/2021 srtbwe_microgrant_program

Once your application has been reviewed by BJA and JSS, you will receive application status
notifications through your submission portal. BJA and JSS may ask for additional mformatlon at
any time during the application process.

For additional and detailed instructions regarding the current micro-grant solicitation, application
review process, as well as financial and grant administration information, please click here.
(https://www.srtbwe.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/SRT-BWC-Application-Instructions.pdf)

Agency Information

Agency *
- [ Torrance County Sheriff's Office , US-NM © v

If your agency is not listed in the dropdown, please type "Other" and select it from the dropdown list.

Agency Address
PO BOX 498

Agency City
ESTANCIA

Agency State
US-NM

Agency Zip
87016

Is the agency address correct? *

Yes
O No

What is'your agency'ORI? * | ‘ ‘
NNOSOOOOO e e e e e e e

If you do not ha\)e 4an‘ ORIQ ‘p‘Iﬂeavlse; ;er;c;, N/A.

Whlch of the followmg best descrlbes your agency‘7 *

| County Shern‘fs Department ' - v

Please check only one.

https:/iwebportalapp.com/sp/task_item_primary_input/srtbwe_microgrant_program?path=29210801 2/11



8/12/2021 - srtbwe_microgrant_program
Which of the followihg descriptions is applicable to your agency? *
Please check all that apply.
(0 Small Agency (1 — 10 current sworn officers)

4 Small Agency (11 — 50 current sworn officers)
4 Rural Agency

(J Tribal Law Enforcement (Federally recognized)
‘(J None of the above |

Click here to find out if our agency qdalifies as a rural agency.
(https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/rural-health)

For agencies seeking to qualify based upon a rural designation, please click on the fink
above. This link will bring you to the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA)
federal agency website for you to verify your county and/or address information as rural.
After you have verified your eligibility, please return to this submission portal to complete
your application. For more information on rural eligibility, please refer to the detailed
instruction package here. (https://www.srtbwc.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/SRT-
BWC-Application-Instructions.pdf)

How many full-time sworn police officers/deputies does your agency currently
employ? * '

20

Does your agency currently use body-worn cameras? *

Yes
O No

How many body-worn cameras does your agency have? * _
What was the source of funding for those cameras? *

Please check all that apply.

() Federal funding

& State funding

¥ Local funding

(J Private funding
(J Other

Please provide a brief description of the source of funding. *

https:/iwebportalapp.com/sp/task_item_primary_input/srtbwc_microgrant_program?path=29210801 311



8/12/2021

equ1pment planning, and tralnlng

Under thls grant program how many cameras do you antlmpate needlng? *

Who oversees all of your agency operations (i.e., Chief, Sheriff, Commissioner,

Dlrector etc )’? *

{
i
X

Operatlons Contact F|rst Name |

g < ecsmpenr SRS

Operatlons Contact Last Name -

' Rivera

Operations Contact Title *

| Sheriff |

Who is the Pomt of Contact for thls appllcatlon’? * : '

Same as Proﬂle

Did an outside entity, such as a consultant or vendor assist with the completlon of -

this application? *

O Yes
No

Can your agency commit to providing matching funds for this project? *

Yes
O No

Body-Worn Camera Information

| leferent from Proflle

srtbwe mlcrogrant program

Local and State funds were used to purchase the body-worn cameras currently used by the
Torrance County Sheriff's Office (TCSO). The Torrance County Board of County Commissioners
allocates local funds to the TCSO. State funds were from the Law Enforcement Protection Fund
(LEPF) distribution. LEPF funds are distributed annually by the State of New Mexico to all NM law .
enforcement agencies per state statute based on department size. The funds can be used for

hitps:/iwebportalapp.com/sp/task_item_primary_input/sttbwe_microgrant_program?path=29210801

Word Count: 78 / 100

% Marty '

411



8/12/2021 . srtbwe_microgrant_program

The following statements are common reasons that agencies would like to purchase body-
worn cameras. Please identify the top three statements that best fit your agency's interest

in BWCs.

1 nghest prlorlty

Purchasrng BWCs erl address state or local Iegal requrrements or mandates for body—worn came v ]
N R P v rnon - R S SO i
2 Next hlghest prlorlty

‘ BWCs WI” encourage offrcer complrance wrth my agency 8 polrcres and procedures S v ‘

3 Thlrd hlghest prrorlty

I BWCs wrll assrst in reducmg Iawsurts agarnst my agency ' ‘ ' v

Does your state require body-worn cameras for officers? *

Yes
O No
O Don't Know

Please brlefly descrrbe how th|s reqwrement affects your agency

Srnce September 2020, the State of New Mexico requires Iaw enforcement ofﬂcers to use body-
worn cameras to help provide video evidence, prevent unlawful use of force, and hold officers
accountable. The law also requires law enforcement agencies to create policies and procedures
regarding body-worn camera programs. The Torrance County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) can be held
. liable if these cameras are broken and not working correctly. The TCSO has 20 operational body-
‘; worn cameras. A full staff consrsts of 21 offrcers The TCSO owns six addrtronal cameras, but

+ essranibin S o s e

Word Count 89 l 100

Do you know who erI serve as the PrOJect D|rector for your BWC program? *

Yes ’ ' v

Who in your agency will be serving as the Project Director (| e. prowde management
oversrght of the pro;ect) for your BWC program‘? *

LR

Drfferent from Profrle v,

.PrOJect Dlrector Frrst Name

| Stephanre

PrOJect Dlrector Last Name

Dunlap

https:/iwebportalapp.com/sp/task_item_primary_input/srtbwc_microgrant_program?path=29210801 5/11



8/12/2021 srtbwc_microgrant_program
PrOJect Dlrector Rank or Agency Role

{ Lca. .__l i

t Admmlstrator
Approximately how long has the Project Director served in your agency? *

_ ‘ 10 or more years _ o v '

- Has the Project Director managed similar technology projects in the past? *

Please check all that apply.
() In-Car Video |
F4 Computer or IT Systems
() Communications Systems (Ex: Radios)

() Other
(0 The Project Director has not managed any similar technology projects in the past.

Does the Project Director have experience with any of the following tasks? *

Please check all that apply.

fa Staff Supervision

4 Budget Management
A Project Timelines

¥ Training
F4 Vendor Relations or Procurement

f3 Community Relations
(J Other
(0 The Project Director does not have any experience with the above listed tasks.

How does your agency plan to purchase your body-worn cameras’? *

Seek pncmg from 3 or more vendors ‘ v,
i i

How much time will be spent for training on BWCs per officer/deputy before
deployment occurs'? ¥

1-5 hours per officer/deputy ‘ ' v

What topics does your agency plan to cover during your BWC training?. *

Please select all that apply.

§4 State Statutes
Equipment and Technology Operations
(J Other

https:/iwebportalapp.com/sp/task_item_primary_input/srtbwe_microgrant_program?path=29210801 : 6/11



8/12/2021 . srtbwc_microgrant_program
"~ What types of training WI|| your agency use? *

Please select all that apply.

O Roli-call training

(J Academy Training

7) Refresher or Annual Trainings : |
(J Other

What method of training will be used by your agency? *

Please select all that apply.

4 Lectures

) Web-based

() Field on the job training
() Scenario-based

() Other

Can your agency commit to the development of a training plan for BWC users that at
the minimum includes BWC operations, BWC policy, and any state or local laws and
regulations affecting BWC deployment and use? *

Yes

O No

Does your agency currently have a body-worn camera program or plan for a BWC
program? *

® Yes
O No

Does your agency have a technology system or a plan for a technology system to
manage the BWC footage? *

Yes

O No

Does your agency have a formally approved BWC policy? *
Yes A

O No
“Does your agency currently employ In-Car Video (ICV)? *

O Yes
No

https:/iwebportalapp.com/sp/task_item_primary_input/srtbwc_microgrant_program?path=29210801 7/11



8/12/2021 srtbwc_microgrant_program

' Has your agency worked with your local or state prosecutor’s office in the
development of your body-worn camera program? *

O Yes

No

Has your agency worked with members or organizations within the community in the

- development of your body-worn camera program? *
O Yes | . %
No |

Grant Management Experience

Within the last 5 years, has your agency received a federal grant for any purpose, -
other than the Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest Partnership? *

- @ Yes
O No
O Don't Know

Approximately, how much in federal funds has your agency received in the past 5
years’? *

8500 ooo+ | vi

Did this grant originate from an agency within the U.S. Department of Justice? (i.e.,
from the Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS), National Institute
of Justice (NIJ), Office for Victims of Crime (OVC), the Bureau of Justice Assistance
(BJA), Office on Violence Against Women (OVW) and/or Office of Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency Prevention (OJJDP)). *

Yes
O No

Please prowde a brlef descrlptlon of the DOJ fundmg

Dunng the past f|ve years the TCSO has recelved DOJ funding through the Jomt Law Enforcement
Operations Task Force (US DOJ through the US Marshals Service), HIDTA State and Local Task
Force Agreement (US DOJ, Drug Enforcement Administration), and the Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) (Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) thro'ugh the New Mexico |
Department of Public Safety).

Worct Count: éo / 100

Has your agency ever received a state or local grant for any purpose? *

Yes

https:/iwebportalapp.com/sp/task_item_primary_input/srtowc_microgrant_program?path=29210801 ' » 8/11



8/12/2021 sribwc_microgrant_program

O No
O Don't Know

How much in TOTAL state or local funds has your agency received in the past 2
years’? * -

: Less than $1o 000 : "
Please provrde a bnef descrlptlon of the fundmg

The TCSO has not recelved any local or-state grants other than federal grants that were passed
through a state agency. New Mexico also distributes funds to the TCSO through the Law
Enforcement Protection Fund (LEPF), but these are not grant funds. LEPF funds are mandated by
State statute to provide equitable distribution of money to local law enforcement agencies to
enhance departments' efficiency and effectiveness. Distribution amounts are based on department
size. Within the last two years, the TCSO received $57,400 from the LEPF. '

Word Count: 85 I100

Does your agency have a pending application(s) with other potential funding
sources for BWC? *

O Yes
No

If you were to receive funding under this program, how would your agency plan to
fund this body-worn camera program after the grant ends? *

~ Please check all that apply.
Agency budget |
O Apply for additional federal or state grants
(3 Apply for private funds
CJ We do not have any plans
) Other

Data Collectioh and Reporting

Will your agency commit to routinely reporting the number of officer-involved citizen
complaints? * :

Yes

O No

Is your agency willing to cooperate with a program evaluation or a research study on
digital evidence management” *

@ Yes
O No

hitps:/webportalapp.com/sp/task_item_primary_input/srtbwc_microgrant_program?path=29210801 . : /11



8/12/2021 srtbwc_microgrant_program

Will your agency commit to routinely reporting the number of officer-involved uses
of force? *

Yes
O No

Project Narrative

In this section, please describe how funding from this BWC program will assist each of the
following entities: - '

A.) Your agency;
B.) Your community; and
C.) Your criminal justice partners.

Project Narrative * ' _ .

in development.

~ Word Count: 2/ 600

Budget
This will be automatically calculated from the budget form. No manual entry is required.

Total Request Amount
s 00— (2,000 |
Total Match Amount

L -

Save Draft Mark Complete Close

https://webportalapp.com/spitask_item_primary_input/srtbwc_microgrant_program?path=29210801 10/14



Agenda Item
No. 12-B



Agenda Item
No. 12-C



Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Meeting: 8/25/2021 Department: Sheriff

Item: 12C Prepared By: Stephanie Dunlap
Reviewed by: Janice Y. Barela

Jeremy Oliver

£ST, 1909
Yew ene

Title: Torrance County Sheriff’s Office Community and Court
Services Reorganization

Sponsor:
Sheriff

Action:
Motion to Approve Reorganization of the TCSO Transport/Civil Division to Community
and Court Services Division (CCS)

Summary:

During our assessment of Department functions and needs, we concluded that since Core Civic
reopened, the Transport division was no longer necessary in the capacity it was created. While
there is still a need for the personnel, the job duties and responsibilities needed to be changed to
reflect our current needs. The reasoning for these changes were due to our evaluation. We found
that the current positions could be better put to use to handle the civil functions of the Sheriff’s
Office, provide support to the patrol division as needed and to transport inmates when necessary.
The current staffing can meet these needs and changes/additional duties with the proper training.
Because there is no position that we could directly transfer the personnel into, the transport
positions would have to be vacated and new positions for Community and Court Services Staff
would have to be created. Because these would technically be new positions, the current staff
would have to re-apply for the new positions. In considering this change, new policies were
created defining the roles and responsibilities of the new positions.

Significant Issues:

Currently there is very little to no separation between the Patrol Division (certified deputies) and
the Transport/Civil Division (un-certified). Liability due to current legislation has increased,
leading the Sheriff’s Office towards reducing the probability of unnecessary legal actions.
Speaking with New Mexico Counties, we were advised that having uncertified personnel in the
field, carrying weapons, and driving marked Police Units, increases the liability significantly for
not just the Sheriff’s Office but the County as well. If uncertified personnel in marked Police
Units are waved down out of jurisdiction, and decide to act, there are significant liability issues
that arise for the Sheriff’s Office and Torrance County, as we put untrained personnel in marked
Police Units without the proper certification to handle such instances.



Proposed Salaries:

CSA - $17.00/hr - $35,360.00 (Salary)

CSA - $17.00/hr - $35,360.00 (Salary)

Certified Patrol Deputy - $22.44/hr - $46,675.20 (Salary)
Certified Patrol Deputy - $22.44/hr - $46,675.20 (Salary)
Certified Patrol Deputy - $22.44/hr - $46,675.20 (Salary)
Total: $210,745.60

Total Savings in Salaries: $1,378.40

Current personnel in the Transport/Civil Division, wishing to-reapply, and if hired would start
out at $17/hr as they will require little to no additional training. Any new hires will start out at
$15/hr, as they will require both training for the entirety of the position, to include transporting
of prisoners, civil process and court security. After a successful 1-year probation, a new hire will
increase to $16/hr. Certified deputies in this budget will follow the same salary increase as the
Patrol Deputies paid out of the Sheriff’s main budget.

Manager’s Recommendation:

Manager is respectfully reminding Commissioners of their comments in a prior Commission
Meeting regarding restructuring of the Sheriff’s Office. The Commission expressed a possible
interest in laying off the five (5) Transport Division positions and, without increasing the budget,
hiring four (4) additional Patrol Deputy positions, which are certified positions. This would
increase the level of service the Sheriff’s Office could provide the residents and traveling public
in Torrance County, as well as provide a higher level of security when transporting inmates and
while staying with inmates during their hearings in Magistrate and District Courts. It would also
limit the County’s overall liability. This restructuring would allow for 24-hour coverage.

Commissioners’ Prior Discussion:

Certified Patrol Deputy - $22.44/hr - $46,675.20 (Salary)
Certified Patrol Deputy - $22.44/hr - $46,675.20 (Salary)
Certified Patrol Deputy - $22.44/hr - $46,675.20 (Salary)
Certified Patrol Deputy - $22.44/hr - $46,675.20 (Salary)
Total: $186,700.80 |

Total Savings in Salary: $25,438.40



Agenda Item
No. 12-D



L

2
:ameusig
=0 rz”
) o8- L [red
%) :oweN S, I0JROSIWpPY

o[ewa} Jopusdsuen=f
SJeur JOpUSSSUBI=¢

MYM=6
UMOIDI)=8

spewiaj=7 | Jopue[S] SYIoBd=/

anyM dtuedsiH=¢

upuj saneN dwedsiH=
yoed duedsiH=¢
UBdLISWY UBOLY Y AJoR[g=T

ploy yjesy [ejusi pue [eSIpSN =i
suonoues Areujdiosi(] =¢
Aj1oe) oy Jo ALmdds pue AJoges sy} 0} Jeal) e st jewu] =7

BYO =5

Sjelli=] ; UBOLIOWY SAIEBN=0 ueisy=| SSA[asWIaY] 03 Jo5uep B 10 SISYI0 01 JeSay) € SI Sjeuluj =|

RENTETSY FNTRIT G | IJUSWIIB ] 10] UOSERY

adglL 1207/10/90 S S I ST | LLL6VOLO

aglL 1202/92/90 S -9 I €€ | ¥9¥L1080
agl 120Z/¥1/9 € 6 I 123 9997T1T
1202/2¢/9 120Z/v1/9 s s 1 X4 $L69679
1202/02/9 120T/P1/9 5 6 ! 134 8079
agl 120T/LI9 S 6 I SL ¥TOISLS
agl . 120T/1/9 S S I ST €1€L0TC
agl 120T/¢/9 13 < I £C LO9ETLS
120T/L/9 12OT/LL/S s S |5 LS LS66181
1202/9T/S 120T/EL/S 23 5 4 133 6ThHS9S
1202/61/S 120T/€1/5 € 4 [4 8¢ S19€$9S
120T/61/S 120T/EL/S 13 S [4 6C €67£69S
1202/1/9 120T/EL/S ¢ - $ 1 X4 L09€TLS
120T/9Ty | - 1C0TSTY s 4 [4 33 L1%118S
1202/61/S 120C/0T/y ¢ 6 ! 133 109£59S
120T/1Ty 120T/9/v 3 S [4 6C €67£69S
120Z/C1/v 1202/5/Y 5 4 (4 €C | LI¥II8S

pasesey ‘ padeld Aed JEIWAIB]J J0J Uosedy Anrayd JApuar) ady soqun

e fruedy

J9)UI)) UOHUIII(] PDUBLIO,



)

q\u\\_&\
) -0 -o;Q
5HFPTpF ORI SOWEN S JORISIIWpY

:amyeudig

AMYM tuedsIH=¢ 1Yo =S

ofews] JopuaSsuen=y AYM=6 upuf sanepN stuedsig=y PioY yijeay [ejuot pue [B3IPSN =

afeWl IopusSsueli=¢ umouwjuN=g yoelg osuedsipi=¢ suonsues Areufjdiasiq =¢

dewd]=g | JOPUB[S] JYIDBJ=/ UBOLISWY UBOLY Y/ OB[H=C Ajjioey ay1 Jo A1andss pue K}aJes Y3 03 JLAIY) © S ABWU] =T

SelWl=] | UBDLIDWY SAIBN=9 uRISY=] _ SOA[oswISY} 03 1o3UEp B 10 SISYIO O] JeANY) B SI SJRWIL] =]

LI3pusn) FNTRITOLG | $IUIWIIL J I0] WOSEIY
120T/ST/LO 120¢/92/90 13 6 l 143 1SL70ET]
adi 120T/67/90 S S I 145 PLSTOTI0
agl 120T/L0/90 S 6 I 177 7818STH0
adl 120¢/64/90 S S [ 6t L98580S0
pasesy paselg ase(q JUEITWIIL]J 10] UOSEIY LApuayy Jopuan) EY:3% soquinu
e foualy

TZ0T put SA9MER() SUTLIOASY

J10d9y A[19)deN() SUISNOL] PajoLIIsoy

J93UI)) UOLUII(] DURLIO T,




Agenda Item
No. 12-E



Agenda Item
No. 12-F



Agenda Item
No. 12-G



Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Meeting 8/25/2021 Department: Finance

Item 12G Prepared By: Jeremy Oliver
Reviewed by: Janice Y. Barela

EST, 1905
MEXY

Title: Motion to Approve Reclassification of Mechanic position to
operator/Mechanic and Increase Pay

Sponsor:
Road/Finance

Action:
Motion to Approve Reclassification of Mechanic position to Operator/Mechanic and Increase
Pay.

Summary:

When creating the salary schedule the mechanic position was currently filled. At the current
time, it is vacant. When evaluating the potential salary and job duties we feel that it makes sense
to make the position comparable to the operator position with additional duties, much in the
same way as the operator /trainer position. The job description is currently written to show
operator duties as well.

Background:

Without having a complete understanding of the day-to-day operations of the Road Department,
Finance helped in creating the salary schedule for the Road Department. While in the process of
creating this schedule, working it into the budget for budget hearings, and going over it with all
the employees of the Road Department, the old mechanic resigned from his position. During the
review it was not brought to the attention that this position may have been underfunded with
respect to comparable work/job description within the Torrance County Road Department. Now
that the position is being advertised, there have been no applications. There was some interest
from operations within the Road Department; however, with the current structure, it would end
up being a pay cut, but an increase in responsibilities.

Significant Issues:

In the current budget there would not have to be any adjustments to the budget. Vacancy savings
would be enough to cover the positions increase for the remainder of FY 22. In FY 23 an
additional $4,969 would need to be added to the Road Department’s budget.



Financial:
An additional $4,969 would be needed in future years to budget the position for its max earning
capacity.

Manager’s Recommendation:
Approve



old

Hourly -

Yearly

FICA

PERA

RHC.

Total

$18.00

$37,440.00

$2,864.16

$3,669.12

$748.80

$44,722.08

New

Hourly

Yearly

FICA

PERA

RHC

Total

$20.00

$41,600.00

$3,182.40

$4,076.80

$832.00

$49,691.20

Difference

$4,969.12




Agenda Item
No. 12-H



Torrance County Board of Commissioners
Meeting 8/25/2021 Department: Finance &

Item 12H Purchasing
Prepared By: Noah J. Sedillo

Reviewed By: Janice Y. Barela

Title: Motion to approve Professional Services Contract with John
Shomaker & Associates, Inc. for Geohydrologic Consulting Services
for the Estancia Basin Water Planning Committee — RFP TC-FY21-
01.

Action:
Motion to Approve.

Summary:

As Fiscal Agent for the Estancia Basin Water Planning Committee (EBWPC), the County
facilitated an RFP for Geohydrologic Consulting Services which monitors basin water levels via
water wells that are not in use in order to capture undisturbed water levels in various parts of the
basin.

The published RFP received two (2) responsive proposals from the following:
1. HydroResolutions, Inc
2. John Shomaker & Associates, Inc.

The evaluation committee comprised of EBWPC members and a Torrance County representative
recommend the award to John Shomaker & Associates, Inc via the points scored to each
respective firm (see attached score table). The contract is recommended for four (4) years as a
professional services agreement pursuant to Section 13-1-150 NMSA 1978.

Significant Issues:

EBWPC was created by an MOU between Bernalillo County, Santa Fe County, and Torrance
County. The data gathered is useful for basin water monitoring, especially since the basin water
levels continue to drop.

Financial:

There are no significant financial issues. The funding for this committee is supplemented from
financial assistance from the adjacent counties and municipalities within the basin. Torrance
County contributes in-kind services only.

Manager Recommendation:
Approve



RFP TC-FY21-01 - Geohydrologic Consulting Services

Total Points Available
Evaluator 1
Evaluator 2

Evaluator 3

Total Points Scored

NM Resident Business Preference -
Additional 5% of total points shall be
awarded - pursuant to NMSA 13-1-21(D)

Total Score (including NM Resident

Business Preference

Hydroresolutions, LLC

John Shomaker & Associates, Inc.

1,000

Total Points Available
965 Evaluator 1 957
765 Evaluator 2 747
1,000

Evaluator 3 967

Total Points Scored v 2671

NM Resident Business Preference - Additional 5% of total
points shall be awarded - pursuant to NMSA 13-1-21(D)

Total Score (including NM Resident Business Preference 2821




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONT RACT

RFP TC-FY21-01
Geohydrological Professional Services

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the County of
Torrance, hereinafter referred to as the "County” and John Shomaker & Associates,
Inc., hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor”, and is effective as of the date set forth
below upon which it is executed by the Purchasing Agent and the Board of County
Commissioners.

IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES:

1.

Scope of Work.

The Scope of Work includes, but may not be limited to (any additional scope shall be
approved concurrently, in writing, by County and Contractor prior to work being
completed):

Coordination/handoff with incumbent consultant.

Maintaining contact and ad hoc promotion of the program with Basin landowners to
expand the network and/or identify potential replacement monitoring locations.
Coordinate field efforts and access with private landowners.

Conduct quarterly monitoring of the 18 existing well locations including both hand
measurement and transducer download and maintenance (but not replacement), plus up to
six additional locations to be determined, with frequency of monitoring rounds being
subject to funding availability,

Maintenance of data in a database format (to be determined) compatible with GIS data
display) to allow ready use by outside organizations.

Preparation of an annual report (hard copy and electronic submit).

Data sharing with other organizations and consultants and parties, as directed by
EBWPC.

Assistance with grant funding applications.

Compensation,

A. The County shall pay to the Contractor in full payment for services
satisfactorily performed per the “Schedule of Consulting Fees 2020” to be
invoiced according to milestones, deliverables, and services rendered upon
contract award. The total amount payable to the Contractor under this
Agreement, excluding gross receipts tax and expenses, shall not exceed
$23,198.40. In no event will the Contractor be paid any amount in excess of the
specified total amount payable without this  Agreement being amended in
writing.




B. Payment is subject to availability of funds pursuant to the
Appropriations Paragraph set forth below and to any negotiations between the
parties from year to year pursuant to Paragraph 1, Scope of Work. All invoices
MUST BE received by the County no later than fifteen (15) days after the
termination of the Fiscal Year in which the services were delivered. Invoices
received after such date WILL NOT BE PAID.

C. Contractor must submit a detailed statement accounting for all services
performed, specified on a minimum .of a quarter hour basis, and expenses
incurred. If the County finds that the services are not acceptable, within thirty
days after the date of receipt of written notice from the Contractor that payment
is requested, it shall provide the Contractor a letter of exception explaining the
defect or objection to the services, and outlining steps the Contractor may take
to provide remedial action. Upon certification by the County that the services
have been received and accepted, payment shall be tendered to the Contractor
within thirty days after the date of acceptance. If payment is made by mail, the
payment shall be deemed tendered on the date it is postmarked. However, the
County shall not incur late charges, interest, or penalties for failure to make
payment within the time specified herein.

D. - The payment of taxes due for any money received under this Agreement
shall be the Contractor's sole responsibility and shall be reported under the
Contractor's Federal and State tax identification number(s).

Term.

This professional services agreement is for one (1) year from the date of
award. This professional services contract will be exclusive to one year, with
no automatic renewal. However, Torrance County reserves the right to renew
this contract for up to three (3) additional one (1) year terms as provided by
this Contract or law and with the concurrence of contractor. In accordance
with Section 13-1-150 NMSA 1978, no term for a professional services
contract, including extensions and renewals, shall exceed four (4) years,
except as set forth in Section 131-150 NMSA 1978. This procurement will
result in a single source award.

Termination. :
A. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either of the parties
hereto upon written notice delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days

~prior to the intended date of termination. Except as otherwise allowed or

provided under this Agreement, the County’s sole liability upon such
termination shall be to pay for acceptable work performed prior to the
Contractor’s receipt of the notice of termination, if the County is the terminating
party, or the Contractor’s sending of the notice of termination, if the Contractor
is the terminating party; provided, however, that a notice of termination shall
not nullify or otherwise affect either party’s liability for pre-termination defaults



under or breaches of this Agreement. The Contractor shall submit an invoice
for such work within thirty (30) days of receiving or sending the notice of
termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated
immediately upon written notice to the Contractor if the Contractor becomes
unable to perform the services contracted for, as determined by the County or
if, during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor or any of its officers,
employees or agents is indicted for fraud, embezzlement or other crime due to
misuse of government funds or due to the Appropriations paragraph herein.
THIS PROVISION

IS NOT EXCLUSIVE AND DOES NOT WAIVE THE COUNTY’s OTHER
LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CAUSED BY THE CONTRACTOR'S
DEFAULT/BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

B. Termination Management. Immediately upon receipt by either the
County or the Contractor of notice of termination of this Agreement, the
Contractor shall: 1) not incur any further obligations for salaries, services or any
other expenditure of funds under this Agreement without written approval of
the County; 2) comply with all directives issued by the County in the notice of
termination as to the performance of work under this Agreement; and 3) take
such action as the County shall direct for the protection, preservation, retention
or transfer of all property titled to the County and records generated under this
Agreement. Any non-expendable personal property or equipment provided to
or purchased by the Contractor with contract funds shall become property of the
County upon termination and shall be submitted to the County as soon as
practicable. :

5. Appropriations.

The terms of this Agreement are contmgent upon sufficient appropriations and
authorization being made by the Board of County Commissioners for the performance
of this Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorization are not made by the
Board of County Commissioners, this Agreement shall terminate immediately upon
written notice being given by the County to the Contractor. The County's decision as to
whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be accepted by the Contractor and
shall be final. If the County proposes an amendmient to the Agreement to unilaterally
reduce funding, the Contractor shall have the option to terminate the Agreement or to
agree to the reduced funding, within thirty (30) days of receipt of the proposed
amendment.

6. Status of Contractor.

The Contractor and its agents and employees are independent contractors performing
professional services for the County and are not employees of the County of Torrance.
The Contractor and its agents and employees shall not accrue leave, retirement,
insurance, bonding, use of county vehicles, or any other benefits afforded to employees
of the County of Torrance as a result of this Agreement. The Contractor acknowledges
that all sums received hereunder are reportable by the Contractor for tax purposes,
including without limitation, self-employment and business income tax. The




Contractor agrees not to purport to bind the County of Torrance unless the Contractor
has express written authority to do so, and then only within the strict limits of that
authority .-

7. Assignment.
The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement or assign any

claims for money due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written
approval of the County.

8. Subcontracting.

The Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the services to be performed under
this Agreement without the prior written approval of the County. No such subcontract
shall relieve the primary Contractor from its obligations and liabilities under this
Agreement, nor shall any subcontract obligate direct payment from the County. In all
cases, the contractor is solely responsible for fulfillment of this Agreement.

9. Release. ,

Final payment of the amounts due under this Agreement shall operate as a release of
the procuring agency of the County, its officers and employees, and the County of -
Torrance from all liabilities, claims and obligations whatsoever arising from or under
this Agreement.

10. Confidentiality.
Any confidential information provided to or developed by the Contractor in the
performance of this Agreement shall be kept confidential and shall not be made
available to any individual or orgamzatlon by the Contractor without the prior written
approval of the County.

11. Product of Service -- Copyright.

All materials developed or acquired by the Contractor under this Agreement shall
become the property of the County of Torrance and shall be delivered to the County no
later than the termination date of this Agreement. Nothing developed or produced, in
whole or in part, by the Contractor under this Agreement shall be the subject of an
application for copyright or other claim of ownership by or on behalf of the Contractor.

12. Conflict of Interest; Governmental Conduct Act.
A. The Contractor represents and warrants that it presently has no interest
and, during the term of this Agreement, shall not acquire any interest, direct or
indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance or
services required under the Agreement. -

B. The Contractor further represents and warrants that it has complied with,
and, during the term of this Agreement, will continue to comply with, and that
this Agreement complies with all applicable provisions of the Governmental
Conduct Act, Chapter 10, Article 16 NMSA 1978. Without in anyway limiting



changed circumstances, in addition to other remedies available to the County
and notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, the County may
immediately terminate the Agreement.

D. All terms defined in the Governmental Conduct Act have the same
meaning in this Article 12(B).

13. Amendment. -
This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by instrument in
writing executed by the parties hereto and all other required signatories.

14. Merger.
This Agreement incorporates all the Agreements, covenants and understandings

between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such covenants,
Agreements and understandings have been merged into this written Agreement. No
prior Agreement or understanding, oral or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall
be valid or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement.

15.  Penalties for violation of law. :
The Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199, NMSA 1978, imposes
civil and criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the New Mexico criminal
statutes impose felony penalties for illegal bribes, gratuities and kickbacks.

16.  Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The Contractor agrees to abide by all federal, state and county laws and rules and
regulations, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In accordance with all such
laws, the Contractor assures that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of
race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical or mental handicap, or
serious medical condition, spousal affiliation, sexual orientation or gender identity, be
excluded from employment with or participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity performed under
this Agreement. If Contractor is found not to be in compliance with these requirements
during the life of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to take appropriate steps to correct
these deficiencies.

17.  Applicable Law. ‘ :
In any action, suit or legal dispute arising from this Agreement, the Contractor agrees
that the laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern and that venue will lie in the
Seventh Judicial District Court in Torrance County. By execution of this Agreement,
Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of New
Mexico over any and all lawsuits arising under or out of any term of this Agreement.

18.  Workers Compensation.
The Contractor agrees to comply with state laws and rules applicable to workers
compensation benefits for its employees. If the Contractor fails to comiply with the




Workers Compensation Act and applicable rules when required to do so, this
Agreement may be terminated by the County.

19.  Records and Financial Audit,

The Contractor shall maintain detailed time and expenditure records that indicate the
date; time, nature and cost of services rendered during the Agreement’s term and effect
and retain them for a period of three (3) years from the date of final payment under this
Agreement. The records shall be subject to inspection by the County, the Department
of Finance and Administration and the State Auditor. The County shall have the right
to audit billings both before and after payment. Payment under this Agreement shall
not foreclose the right of the County to recover excessive or illegal payments

20. Disclaimer and Hold Harmless.

Torrance County shall not be liable to the Contractor, or the Contractor’s successors,
heirs, administrators, or assigns, for any loss, damage, or injury, whether to Contractor's
person or property, occurring in connection with Contractor's performance of
Contractor's duties according to this Agreement. Contractor shall hold the Torrance
County harmless from all loss, damage, and injury, including court costs and attorney
fees, incurred by Torrance County in connection with the performance by Contractor
of Contractor s duties according to this Agreement.

21, Indemnification.

The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County of Torrance from
all actions, proceeding, claims, demands, costs, damages, attorneys’ fees and all other
liabilities and expenses of any kind from any source which may arise out of the
performance of this Agreement, caused by the negligent act or failure to act of the
Contractor, its officers, employees, servants, subcontractors or agents, or if caused by
the actions of any client of the Contractor resulting in injury or damage to persons or
property during the time when the Contractor or any officer, agent, employee, servant
or subcontractor thereof has or is performing services pursuant to this Agreement. In
the event that any action, suit or proceeding related to the services performed by the
Contractor or any officer, agent, employee, servant or subcontractor under this
Agreement is brought against the Contractor, the Contractor shall, as soon as practicable
but no later than two (2) days after it receives notice thereof, notify the legal counsel of
the County of Torrance and the New Mexico Association of Counties by certified mail.

22,  Invalid Term or Condition. A
If any term or condition of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Agreemen_t shall not be affected and shall be valid and enforceable.

23. Enforcement of Agreement.

A party's failure to require strict performance of any provision of this Agreement shall
not waive or diminish that party's right thereafter to demand strict compliance with that
or any other provision. No waiver by a party of any of its rights under this Agreement




shall be effective unless express and in writing, and no effective waiver by a party of
any of its rights shall be effective to waive any other rights.

24. Authority.

If Contractor is other than a natural person, the individual(s) signing this Agreement on
behalf of Contractor represents and warrants that he or she has the power and authority
to bind Contractor, and that no further action, resolution, or approval from Contractor
is necessary to enter into a binding contract.

25.  Lobbying,

No federal appropriated funds can be paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
CONTRACTOR, or any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any County, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congtess,
or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any
Federal contract, or the making of any Federal grant, the making of any federal loan,
the entering into of any cooperative agreement, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. If any funds other than federal appropriated
funds have been paid or will be paid to any person influencing or attempting to influence
an officer or employee of any County, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection of this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and
submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with
its instructions.

26.  Approval of Contractor Personnel. .
Personnel proposed in the Contractor's written proposal to the County are considered
material to any work performed under this Agreement. No changes of personnel will be
made by the Contractor without prior written consent of the procuring agency of the
County. Replacement of any Contractor personnel, if approved, shall be with personnel
of equal ability, experience and qualifications. The Contractor will be responsible for
any expenses incurred in familiarizing the replacement personnel to insure their being
productive to the project immediately upon receiving assignments. Approval of -
replacement personnel shall not be unreasonably withheld. The procuring agency of the
County shall retain the right to request the removal of any of the Contractor's personnel
at any time.

27.  Survival.

The agreement paragraphs titled ‘“Patent, Copyright, Trademark, and Trade Secret
Indemnification” and “Indemnification” shall survive the expiration of this agreement.
Software licenses, leases, maintenance and any other unexpired agreements that were
entered into under the terms and conditions of this agreement shall survive this
agreement

28.  Succession.
This agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the
parties.



29. Force Majeure.

A party shall be excused from performance under this agreement for any period that the
party is prevented from performing as a result of an act of God, strike, war, civil
disturbance, epidemic, or court order, provided that the party has prudently and
promptly acted to take any and all steps that are within the party's control to ensure
performance. Subject to this provision, such non-performance shall not be deemed a
default or a ground for termination.

30. Mediation.

In the event a dispute arises as to the rights and obligations among the patties hereto,
the parties agree to attempt to resolve the dispute through mediation as a condition
precedent to seeking legal and equitable remedies. The parties agree to evenly split the
~ costs of any such mediation services. The parties shall mutually agree upon the choice
of mediator. In the event the parties have not agreed upon a mediator within twenty
(20) days of written notice to the other regarding the dispute, then a list of seven
potential mediators will be obtained from the New Mexico Association of Counties and
the parties shall utilize a striking process until a mediator is agreed upon.-

31.  Notice to Proceed.

It is expressly understood that this Agreement is not binding upon the County until it is
executed by the Board of County Commissioners after voting on the contract at a public
meeting. The Contractor is not to proceed with its obligations under the Agreement until
the Contractor has received a fully signed copy of the Agreement.

32, - Attorney’s Fees.

In the event this Agreement results in dispute, mediation, litigation, or settlement
between the parties to this Agreement, the prevailing party of such action shall NOT be
entitled to an award of attorneys' fees and court costs.

33. Cooperation.
All parties hereto will fully cooperate with the other and their respectwe counsel,

accountant, and agents in connection with any steps required to be taken under this
Agreement.

34. Incorporation and Order of Precedence.

Request for Proposals No. TC-FY21-01 and the contractor's proposal are incorporated
by reference into this agreement and are made a part of this agreement. In the event of
any conflict among these documents, the following order of precedence shall apply:

Any contract amendment(s), in reverse chronological order; then

this contract itself; then

the Request for Proposals; then

the Contractors Best and Final Offer(s), in reverse chronological order;
then

B



35.

5. the contractor’s proposal; then

6. the contractor's standard agreement terms and conditions (which may
ormay not  have been submitted as part of the contractor's
proposal).

Patent, Copyright, Trademark and Trade Secret Indemnification.

A. The contractor shall defend, at its own expense, the County of Torrance
against any claim that any product or service provided under this agreement

‘infringes any patent, copyright or trademark in the United States or Puerto Rico,

and shall pay all costs, damages and attorneys' fees that a court finally awards
as a result of any such claim. In addition, if any third party obtains a judgment
against the County of Torrance based upon the contractor's trade secret
infringement relating to any product or service provided under this agreement,
the contractor agrees to reimburse the County of Torrance for all costs,
attorneys' fees and the amount of the judgment. To qualify for such defense
and/or payment, the County of Torrance shall:

1. give the contractor prompt written notice of any claim;

i. allow the contractor to control the defense or settlement of the claim;
and '

1. cooperate with the contractor in a reasonable way to facilitate the
defense or o

settlement of the claim.

B. If any product or service becomes, or in the contractor's opinion is likely
to become the subject of a claim of infringement, the contractor shall at
its option and expense:

1. provide a procuring agency of the County the right to continue
using the product or
service;

ii. replace or modify the product or service so that it becomes non-

infringing; or

iii. accept the return of the product or service and refund an
amount equal to the depreciated value of the returned product or service, less
the unpaid portion of the purchase price and any other amounts which are due
to the contractor. The contractor's obligation will be void as to any product or
service modified by the procuring agency of the County to the extent such

modification is the cause of the claim.



36. Professional Liability Insurance,

Contractor agrees to maintain in full force throughout the duration of the Agreement a
professional liability insurance policy with a minimum coverage of $1,000,000.00 per
occurrence/ $2,000,000.00 aggregate.

37. Contractor's Payment of Property Taxes.

Contractor acknowledges that County has established a policy of ensuring that all
individuals and businesses that benefit financially from County through contract are
current in paying their property tax obligations to mitigate the economic burden
otherwise imposed upon County and its taxpayers. Contractor warrants and certifies that
it is presently not delinquent in the payment of its property tax obligations, and that it
will not become delinquent during the term of this Contract.

38. Termination For Failure to Comply with All County Tax Requirements.
Without limiting the rights and remedies available to County under any other provision
of this contract, failure of Contractor to cure a tax delinquency within 10 days of notice
shall be grounds upon which County may terminate this Contract.

39. Notices.

Any notice required to be given to either party by this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be delivered in person, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first class or
certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows:

To the County: Janice Y. Barela, County Manager // PO Box 48// Estancia, NM
87016

To the Contractor: John Shomaker & Associates, Inc / 2611 Broadbent Pkwy NE //
Albuquerque, NM 87116 :



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the
date of signature by the Board of County Commissioners below.

By: Date:

Vice President
John Shomaker & Associates, INC

Printed Name: Steve T. Finch, Jr.

Address: 2611 Broadbent Pkwy NE, Albuquerque, NM 87116

By: Date:

Torrance County Manager
Printed Name: Janice Y. Barela

Address: 205 S Ninth Street, Estancia, NM 87016

By: Date:

Torrance County Purchasing Agent
Printed Name: Noah 1. Sedillo

Address: 205 S Ninth Street, Estancia, NM 87016



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED, ADOPTED AND PASSED on this 25" day of August, 2021.

Ryan Schwebach
Chairman, District II

Kevin McCall
Commissioner, District I

LeRoy Candelaria
Commissioner, District ITI

Approved as to form only:

John M. Butrick
Torrance County Attorney

Attest:

Yvonne Otero
Torrance County Clerk



SCHEDULE OF CONSULTING FEES 2020

HOURLY RATES

Hydrogeologic investigations, field services, meetings, preparation of reports;
telephone consultation; and travel time.

Senior Principal Hydrogeolo@ist ...........ccooevveeeeoeeeeeenennn, $240.00/hr
Principal Hydrogeologist/Geochemist/Hydrologist .................. 175.00/hr
Senior Hydrogeologist/Geochemist ...........ccocoovevvevceeeeeerei, 130.00/hr
Project Hydrogeologist/Hydrologist ............cccoceevevveceveeceennnn, 105.00/hr
Staff Hydrogeologist Level IT .........c.ccooovvveveeoeeeeieeeeeeee, 90.00/hr
Staff Hydrogeologist Level I/Geologist .........ccccocveeveeeeeeerenn, 85.00/hr
GIS/AutoCAD ANALYSt ..ovovivieiieeecceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 90.00/hr
GIS/AutoCAD Technician .........ccoccoveeiieoveiieieeceeeeeeees 80.00/hr
Report or Graphics SpecialiSt ..........cococveeevieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeenn, 75.00/hr
Project ASSISHAIT s isissmmnmsmsmarmmesnsasessnsmmsnsesmen ssasssas ssepsessy susses 50.00/hr
AdMINISTIAIOT .ottt e, 60.00/hr
EXPENSES
Per Diem (lodging and meals) ............ccccocovvvreemeeeeereer, $150.00"
Meals, full day, no overnight Stay ...........cccococevovereeeeeeeererenn, 39.00"
Meals, half day, no overnight Stay ............coocooeeeeereeeeereeee, 25.00°
Lodging (in lieu of per diem) ........c.cococooveivoeeeeieeeeeeeeeees, at cost
Automobile, per Mile ..........ococvoiiiiiiiieieeeeeee e, 0.60
Automobile, rental ..o, at cost plus fuel
Field-Office Trailer, rental ...........cocococoveveveiviiiieeeen, cost plus 10%
Field Meters, Computers, Well Sounders each per day ................. 15.00
Water-Level Transducer and Logger, per day ...........cccocovevvvevnenn.... 75.00
Submersible Pump (Grundfos), per day .........cccocovevereeeerernnn., 100.00
Bennett Pneumatic Sample Pump, per sample...............c.cococovvnnn... 250.00
Photocopies, €aCh .......ccoeoiiuiiieiicceecceeeee e, 0.06

" subject to increase or decrease based on location of project and State per diem rates

All fees and expenses are subject to New Mexico Gross-Receipts tax. Lodging and meals will be invoiced at
a daily per diem rate, or at cost, as negotiated. Travel by public transportation, and all third-party charges such
as drilling, contract labor, rental equipment, and laboratory work will be invoiced at actual cost plus 10 percent.
Terms are net 30 days. Interest at 1.5 percent per month may be charged on past-due balances.

Unless otherwise agreed beforehand, original manuscripts, field notes, and other such materials will remain
the property of John Shomaker & Associates, Inc. Information specifically related to work done for a client
will be considered confidential.

2611 Broadbent Pkwy NE, Albug, NM 87107 JOHN SHOMAKER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
505-345-3407 + www.shomaker.com WATER-RESOURCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS



TC-FY21-01 /April 16, 2021
APPENDIX C

COST RESPONSE FORM

Torrance County RFP TC-FY21-01
GEOHY ROLOGICAL PROF ESSIONAL SERVICES

State gross receipts and local option taxes (if any) shall not be inicluded in the Total Proposed
Annual Cost. Such taxes shall be separately reimbursed by the County, if applicable.

OFFEROR NAME: John Shomaker & Associates, Inc.

" TOTAL PROPOSED ANNUAL COST §  23,198.40

42



Agenda Item
No. 12-1



Mew Mexico veeanrment of

TRANSPORTATION '

ACHITEEEY FOH EVLRY oM

MEMORANDUM
Date: June 29, 2021
To: Michael R. Sandoval, Cabinet Secretary
Through: leff Barela, Traffic Safety Division Director (ﬁ/ é?l[”
Jedl ftateda Cun 20,2021 94 l'JmH)ﬂ
From: Kimberly Wildharber, Staff Manager, TSD
~Subject: ustification for Community DW! Program (CDW1) Project Agreement

batweon the New Mexico Department oFTransnortann Traffic Safety
Division and Torrance County _ !

John Vargas, TSD program manager Phone # 505-231-6784 will aversee this project, The
agreement provides State Community DW| (CDWI) Funds to Torrance County as shown below.!

AGENCY
Torrance County

CDWI PN
02-CD-05-103

FY 22 CDWI 5
$1,518.00

Funding for the CDWI project comes from a $75.00 fee imposed on convicted drunk drivers,!
as allowed by NMSA 1978, Section 31-12-7(B), and NMAC 18.20.6. Funds available for CDWI‘
programs are dependent upon the ‘fees’ imposed and collected from each County. TSD
distributes CD\NI funds in proportion to the fees collected by the courts and law enforcement. 1

i (
Counties submit applications detailing their agency’s plan to expend funding to TSD on an,
annual basis upon notification of funding available. The Counties use the funding to conduct
enforcement activities to include DWI checkpoint and saturation patrols, DWI prpventton
activities such as programs in the schools, public information, and education programs aimed.
at drivers, and DWI offender programs. The Counties are encouraged to sub-contract W|th
local governments within their County to conduct allowable activities. Counties may allocate
their funding to the New Mexico State Police who will conduct activities in the Counties they
receive allocated funding from. |

i
!

The term of all these agreements is from date.of execution to June 30, 2022.

a

General Office P.O Box | 1459 Santa Feo MNM 87504

Michelle Lujan
Grisham
Governor

Michael . Sandaval
Cabinet Secretary

Coranaissioners

Jenaifer Bandoval
Commissioner, Viee-Chairman
Pristrict 1

Bruce Ellis
Commissioner
District 2

Hilma E. Chynoweth
Commissioner
Disteier 3

“Walter G Adams

Commizsioner, Chaitman
Disteict 4

Thomas C. Taylor
Commissionoy
District

Charles Lundstrom
Commissioner, Sgeretary
District 6



QOffice of Gen_eral Counsel Contr_act Brief Form

Date: June 29, 2021From: John Vargas Location: Traffic Safety Division
Phone: 505-231-6784 - Agency: NMDOT
Contractor: Torrance County '

Project No.: 02-CD-05-103

NEW.CONTRACT
_.. Copy of RFP, if applicable
__ Copy of approved sole source justification
__ Copy of approved small purchase justification
__ Copy of Contract Brief signed by Contract Administration

AMENDMENT TO EXISTING CONTRACT

__ Scope of Work

___Additional Compensation

___ Time extension
Note: For amendments please attach a copy of the original agreement any previous
amendments, and a copy of the RFP. (If applicable)

X EXEMPT FROM PROCUREMENT PROCESS (university: other educattonal institutions;
other state agency, bureau; local public bodies).

The Office of General Counsel's policy for turnaround time is ten (10) working days. Please
indicate below if there are extenuating circumstances, which require immediate review of
this agreement.
' Attorney Review Comments

The aftached agreement is being returned for revisions or corrections. Please call at (505)
469-6411 if you have any questions.

____Please make corrections on pages _

| have signed the agreement with the understanding that you will make the corrections
indicated on the agreement submitted for review or discussed with you.

____Please make corrections on pages and return the marked copy to the receptionist for
further review and approval.

Other Comments



CONTRACT NUMBER:
VENDOR NUMBER: 0000054405

GRANT AGREEMENT

This grant agreement (“Agreement”) is between the New Mexico Department of

Transportation (“Department”) and Torrance County (“Grantee”), collectively referred to as “the
Parties.” The Department and the Grantee agree as follows:

1.

Award. The Department hereby awards the Grantee funding for the following Project:
Community Driving While Impaired (CDWI), Project No. 02-CD-05-103, $1,518.00,
(Project).

Scope of Work. The Grantee shall perform the professional services stated in Exhibit A.

Payment. To be reimbursed for eligible expenses, the Grantee must submit timely,
properly prepared reimbursement requests as provided in the Department's CDWI
Manual. The Grantee acknowledges that the Department will not pay for any expenses
incurred prior to both Parties signing the Agreement, after termination of the Agreement,
or in excess of the amount of the award noted in Section 1. The Grantee must submit its
final reimbursement request no later than thirty (30) days after termination of this
Agreement.

Records and Audit. The Grantee shall strictly account for all receipts and disbursements
related to this Agreement. The Grantee shall record costs incurred, services rendered and
payment received, and shall maintain these financial records during the Agreement and
for three (3) years from the date of submission of the final reimbursement request. On
request, the Grantee shall provide the financial records to the Department and the state
auditor, and shall allow the Department and the state auditor to inspect or audit these
financial records during business hours at the Grantee's principal office during the
Agreement and for three (3) years after termination. If the financial records provided by
the Grantee are insufficient to support an audit by customary accounting practices, the
Grantee shall reimburse the Department for any expense incurred related to the
insufficient documentation within thirty (30) days of written notice from the Department.
If an audit or inspection reveals that funds were used for expenses not directly related to
the Project, or otherwise used inappropriately, or that payments were excessive or
otherwise erroneous, the Grantee shall reimburse the Department for those funds or
payments within thirty (30) days of written notice.

Officials Not to Benefit. The Parties intend that no member of the New Mexico legislature
or the United States Congress, or any public official, public employee or tribal council
member, in that person’s individual capacity, will benefit from this Agreement,

Termination. The Department may terminate this Agreement for any reason, by giving



the Grantee thirty (30) days written notice. On receipt of a notice of termination, the
Grantee shall suspend work unless otherwise directed by the Department in writing. The
Grantee may only terminate this Agreement based on the Department’s uncured,
material breach of the Agreement, and by giving the Department thirty (30) days written
notice. The Parties acknowledge that termination will not nullify obligations incurred
prior to termination.

Appropriations. The Grantee acknowledges that:

a.

this Agreement is contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations
being made by the Congress of the United States or the New Mexico state
legislature;

if sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made, this Agreement will
terminate upon written notice by the Department to the Grantee; and

the Department will not expend any funds until they are approved for
expenditure, and the Department’s determination as to whether approval has
been granted will be final. :

‘Compliance with Law. The Grantee, its employees, agents and contractors, shall comply
with the following:

a.

Title VI and Title Vii of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in
Employment Act of 1967, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the ADA
Amendments Act of 2008, the Environmental Justice Act of 1994, the Civil Rights
Restoration Act of 1987, and 49 C.F.R. Section 21.

All federal and state laws, rules, and regulations, and executive orders of the
Governor of the state of New Mexico pertaining to equal employment
opportunity, including the Human Rights Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 28-1-1
through 28-1-15, In accordance with such, the Grantee states that no person, on
the grounds of race, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, spousal affiliation, serious medical condition, age or disability, will be
excluded from employment with or participation in, denied the benefits of, or
otherwise subjected to, discrimination in any activity performed under this
Agreement. [f the Grantee it is found to be in violation of any of these
requirements, the Grantee shall take prompt and appropriate steps to correct
such violation.

State laws applicable to workers compensation benefits for the Grantee’s
employees, including the Workers’ Compensation Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 52-
1-1 through 52-1-70, and related regulations.

Notices. Fora notice under this Agreement to be valid, it must be in writing; be delivered
by hand, registered or certified mail return receipt requested and postage prepaid, fax or
e-mail; and be addressed as follows:



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.
17.

18.

to the Department at: - to the Grantee at:

New Mexico Dept. of Transportation Torrance County
Attn: Traffic Safety Division Attn: Tracey Master
P.O. Box 1149 P.O. Box 48

Santa Fe, NM 87504 Estancia, NM 87016

Severability. The Parties intend that if any provision of this Agreement is held to be
unenforceable, the rest of the Agreement will remain in effect as written.

Tort Claims. Neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other
party's acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in
connection with the Agreement is subject to the immuniities and limitations of the New -
Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 41-4-1, et seq., as amended. This paragraph
is intended only to define the liabilities between the Parties and it is not intended to
modify in any way, the Parties' liabilities as governed by common law or the New Mexico
Tort Claims Act.

Jurisdiction and Venue, The Grantee acknowledges the jurisdiction of the courts of the
state of New Mexico for any adversarial proceeding arising out of this Agreement, and
that venue for any such proceeding will be in the First Judicial District Court for the county
of Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Project Responsibility. The Grantee acknowledges that it bears sole responsibility for
performing the services referred to in Section 2, and that the Department is not
responsible for any services except as expressly stated in this Agreement.

Term. This Agreement takes effect upon signature of all Parties, with the date of
execution being that of the latest of executed signatures. The Agreement terminates at
midnight on June 30, 2022, unless terminated earlier as provided in Section 6 or Section
7, or modified by amendment as set forth in Section 16. If the Grantee does not deliver
the signed Agreement to the Department within sixty (60) days of the Department’s
signature, the Agreement will be voldable by the Department. '

Applicablg Law. The laws of the state of New Mexico, without giving effect to its choice
of law principles, govern all adversarial proceedings arising out of this Agreement.

Amendment. No amendment of this Agreement will be effective unless it is in writing
and signed by the Parties..

No Third-party Beneficiary. This Agreement does not confer any rights or remedies on
anyone other than the Department and the Grantee.

Merger. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties with
respect to the subject matter of the Agreement and supersedes all other agreements,
whether written or oral, between the Parties, provided that this Agreement does not
supersede the Grantee’s rights under any other grant agreement.



Each party is signing this agreement on the date stated opposite that party’s sighature, This
Agreement will be fully executed once signed by all parties, with the date of execution being
that of the latest of executed signatures, :

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By: ‘ Date:
Cabinet Secretary or Desighee '

TORRANCE COUNTY

By: R | _ Date:

Title:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency,

oy: 7 /’""{ - Date; . Jul1, 2021

Assistant General Counsel
Department of Transportation

* Approved as to form and legal sufficiency..

By: ' Date:

Counsel for Torrance County



Exhibit A :
SCOPE OF WORK, TRAINING, REIMBURSEMENT A_ND REPORTING

COMMUNITY DRIVING WHILE IMPAIRED PROGRAMS (CDWI) PROIECT NO. 02-CD-05-103

1. Scope of Work. The Grantee shall conduct the following activities as required below:

a. Utilizing funding from the Department, to purchase “Smart Cholice Ride Service”
' promotional items to be distributed at community events.

2. Definitions. For purposes of this exhibit, the following definitions apply:
a. “program Manager” means the staff person at the Department assigned to
monitor, coordinate and oversee program areas and project activities.

b. “Agency Coordinator” means the person assigned by the Grantee to assume
direct responsibility for administering all phases of the project agreement.

3. Training and qualifications. The Agency Coordinator must attend Department training
as required by the Department. The Grantee shall notify the Department of any changes
in the Agency Coordinator designation. The Grantee's officers must have law
enforcement certifications in all areas necessary to conduct the services noted in
paragraph 1 of this Scope of Work.

4, Reimbursement. The Department will pay the Grantee for the actual cost of activities
listed in this Scope of Work. The Grantee should submit claims for reimbursement no
later than ten (10) days after the end of each month. The Department will pay the
Grantee for the following:

a. the actual costs of items hsted in this Scope of Work; and

b. conference and training fees, per diem, and other related costs required under
the grant and approved by the Department in advance.

5. Reporting. The Grantee must submit quarterly activity reports by October 31, 2021,
January 31, 2022, April 30, 2022 and July 31, 2022. Quarterly activity reports should
summarize the Grantee’s goals and accomplishments for the fiscal year funded under
this Agreement. Further, the report should detail how the Grantee’s activities
contributed to meeting the Department’s highway safety targets, missions and goals.

6. Funding. Funding for this CDWI Project comes from a $75.00 fee imposed on convicted
drunk drivers, as allowed by NMSA 1978, Sections 31-12-7(B) and NMAC 18.20.6. The
Grantee may transfer funds between budget categories only with prior written approval
from the Department. The Project’s itemized budget is as follows:

Personal Services S 0.00
Contractual Services $ 000
Commodities $ 1,518.00
Indirect S 0.00

Other S 0.00



TOTAL $1,518.00

7. Equipment. The Grantee may only purchase equipment under this Agreement with prior
approval of the Department.



New Mexico Traffic Safety Division Project Information Sheet

Contract Number;

Government Unit;

Torrance County

Contract term:

( ~ 06/30/2022)

Vendor Number:

000000000054405

Address ID;

Grantee Contact Info

Project Director and Title: | Tracey Master

Phone: | 505-705-0332 | E-mail: | TMaster@tcnm.us

Torrance County

Agency Name:

Address: | P.O. Box 48 ,
City, State ZIP: | Torrance, NM 87016
TSD Contact Info
Program Manager:. | John Vargas | Phone: | 505-231-6784
TSD Finance: | Avalon Wright Phone: | 505-660-8103
Budget Breakdown
Funding | Project Number Amount Fund Source

COWI | 02-CD-05-103 | $1.518.00

20800 State CDWI

Total | $1,518.00

. Purchase Order Number:

PO Entered by TSD Finance:

Date:

PO Approved by Contracts:

Date:




Agenda Item
No. 12-J



Agenda Item
No. 12-K



Agenda Item
No. 13-4



TORRANCE COUNTY ORDINANCE NO., 94-12
(Amended April 13, 2016)

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE EFFICIENT AND SANITARY
DISPOSAL: AND COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE IN TORRANCE
COUNTY; REGULATING SOLID WASTE, LITTER AND CONSTRUCTION
&DEMOLITION  DEBRIS; ESTABLISHING A SOLID WASTE
MANAGEMENT FEX AND PROVIDING A PENALTY, SEVERABILITY AND

EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Togrance County Board of Commissioners finds that it is necessary fo provide for the
efficient and sanitary collection, recycling, transportation and disposal of solid waste and construction and
demolition debris and confrol of lifter in Torrance County, to provide for the safety; preserve the health;
promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the county and its

citizens; and

WIIEREAS, the Torrance County Board of Commissioners participated in establishing the Totrance
County Solid Waste Authority, which is now known as the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, for the
putpose of providing a coordinated county-wide program, for the collection of solid waste in cooperation
with the incorporated municipalities of Moriarty, Estancia, Mountainair, Encino, and Willard; and,

WHEREAS, the Torrance County Board of Commissioners has determined that it is necessary to adopt the
powers enummerated in Sectionr 11-1-1 et seq. NMSA 1978 (Repl Pamp. 1983) for the storage, recycling,

collection and disposal of solid waste; and,

WHEREAS, the Torrance County Board of Commissioners finds that it is necessary to provide a
coordinated county-wide program of management of solid waste and construction and demolition debris in
cooperation with Federal and State Agencles, and that # is necessary that a solid waste management
program be implemented in order to protect the environment; provide for the safety; preserve the health;
promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the county its citizens;

and,
WHEREAS, the Torrance County Board of Commissioners finds that a system of solid waste collection is

necessary in order to protect the environs of Torrance County from illegal dumping occasioned by the lack
of & countywide system of refuse collection containers, and to protect the environment and promote the

preservation of the natural beauty of Torrance County lands; and,

WHEREAS, the Torrance County Board of Commissioners finds it necessary to assess a fee, (hereinafier
the Solid Waste Management Fee), to pay for the solid waste collection and disposal system described

herein and to provide for a mechanism for collection of said fee,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Torrance County Board of Commissioners as follows:

SECTION 1: SHORT TITLE
This Ordinance shall be known as the “SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE,” and shall be

RIS

. 2 TN s 2
referred to herein as “this Ordinance. wWeE ‘
ey B QQ ¢
SENEE Coje,
SRIN R,
i ;'.';:@U e A,
. r, o,
TORRANCE CoOUNTY el
LINDA JARAMILLO, CLERK e
002160893 o
Book 334 Page 2962 fam S
1 aof 9 \.—%"‘ A‘?"?
0471372016 04:38:20 BM RS
BY LINDARK AU
I3 f AN

1 rygggy ot




SECTION2:  AUTHORITY

This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority granted to counties to provide for the safety and
preserve the health of the residents of the county as set forth in Section 4-37-1 NMSA 1978; the authority
provided in Sections 4-56-1 through 4-56-3 NMSA. 1978 which authorizes the county to establish and
majntain, manage and supervise a system of storage, collection and disposal of all refuse; and the authority
provided in Sections 3-36-1 through 3-36-7 NMSA. 1978 which enables the county to attach liens for

unpaid charges established by ordinance,
SECTION 3:  INTERFRETATION AND CONFLICT

The regulations provided herein are held to include the minimum standards necessary to carry out the
putposes of this Ordinance, This Ordinance is not intended to interfere with, abrogate ox annul any other
valid ordinances. Where the provisions of this Ordinance conflict with other tules, regulations, agresments
or other County ordinances or resolutions, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be controlling, Where this
Ordinance fmposes greater resirictions than those imposed by other rules, regulations, agreements or other
County ordinances or resolutions, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be controlling.

SECTION 4:  DEFINITIONS:

A, Word Construction — Words used in the present tense include the future; words in the masculine
include the feminine; and words in the singular include the plural,

B. Definitions — the following definitions apply to this Ordinance

1. “Clean Fill is broken concrete, brick, rock, stone, glass, reclaimed asphalt pavement, or
uncontaminated soil generated from comstruction and demolition activities.
Reinforcement materials which are an integral part, such as rebar, are included. Cloan fill
must be free of other solid waste or hazardous waste.

2. “Code Enforcement Officer™ is the person appointed by the County Commission upon
recammendation of the Sheriff’s office to enforce portions of this Ordinance.

3, “Composting” is the process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is
catried out under controlled conditions, The process stabilizes the organic fraction into a
waterial which can be easily and safely stored, handled and used in an environmentally

acceptable manner,

4,  “Construction and Demolition (C&D) Debris” is material generally considered fo be
water insoluble and nonhazardous in nature, including, but not limited to, steel, glass,
brick, concrete, asphalt roofing materials, pipe, gypsum wallboard, and lumber ffom the
construction or destruction of a structure project and includes rocks, soil, tres remains,
trees and other vegetative matter that normally results from land clearing. If construction
and demolition debris is mixed with any other types of solid waste, it loses its
classification as construction and demolition debris. Construction and demolition debris
does not include asbestos or Hquids including, but not Hmited to, waste painis, solvents,
sealers, adhesives or potentially hazardous materials. _

5. “County Commission” is the Torrance County Board of Cornmissioners, the duly
constituted governing body of Torrance County.

6. “County Manager” is the chief administrative assistant to the Torrance County Board of
Commissioners.

TORRANCE COUNTY
LINDA JARAMILLO, CLERK

002160893

Book 334 Page 2953

"2 of 9 2

04/13/2016 04:38120 PM

BY

LINDARK




TORRANCE
LINDA JARAMILLO, CLERK
002160893

Book 334

3 of

9

10.

11

12,

13,

14,

15.

16.

"Greenwaste” means landscape trimmings, including limbs and branches of 1 inch in
diameter or greator. Does not include brush or tree stumps,

“Hazardous waste" includes material listed in 40 CFR 261 classified as Toxic, Reactive,
Ignitable, or Corrosive.

"Hauler” is any person transporting solid waste by whatever means for the purpose of
disposing of the solid waste in a solid waste facility, except that the term does not include
an individual transporting solid waste generated on or from lis residential premises for

the purpose of disposing of it in a solid waste facility;

“Litter” is solid waste or debris found in public areas or generated while traveling in a
motor vehicle.

“Owner” is the property owner, whethér residing on said propesty or not, the property
being located within Torrance County and outside the corporate boundaries of the
municipalities of Moriarty, Es_tancia, Mountainair, Encino and Willard,

“Person” is any individual, partmership, company, corporation, firm, association, trust,
gstate, state and federal agency, institution, county, city, fown, villags, or municipality or
other legal entity, however organized.

“Premises” is defined as a structure, whether designed for residential or comumercial use,
located on any property within Torrance County and outside the corpotate Hmits of the
municipalities of Moriarty, Bstancia, Mountainair, Encino and Willard.

“Residence” is any habitable dwelling or each single wnit of multi-unit habitable
dwellings. )

“Responsible party” is defined as the owner of any premises.

“Solid Waste” is any garbage, refuse, sludge from a waste treatment plant, water supply
treatment plant or air pollution. control facility and other discarded material, including
solid, liquid, semisolid or contained gaseous material resulting from industrial,
commercizl, mining, and agricultural operations and from community activities. “Solid

Waste” does not tnclude:

a) waste from the extraction, beneficiation and processing of ores and waste
materials, including phosphate rock and overburden from the mining of urantum
ore, coal, copper, molybdenum and ofher ores and minerals;

b) agricultural waste, including, but not limited to, manures and other crop residues
retirned to the soil as fertilizer or soil conditioner;

¢) sand and gravel;

d) solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage or solid or dissolved materials in
irrigation return flows or industridl discharges that are point sources subject to
permits under Section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C.
Section 1342 or source, special muclear or by-product material as defined by the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954, 42 U.8.C. Section 2011 et seq,;

) any matetial regulated by Subtitle C of the federal Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, or substances regulated by the federal Toxic Substance Control Act.

COUNTY

Pagae 2954

04/13/2016 04138:20 PM

BY

LINDARK




17. “Solid Waste Facility means any public or private system, facility, location,
improvements on the land, structures or other appurtenances or methods used for
processing, transformation, recycling, or disposal of solid waste, including landfill
disposal facilities, transfer stations, convenience centers, resource recovery facilities, and
incinetators, or any facility that processes, recycles, fransforms, transfers, or otherwise
handles low level or high level radicactive waste or transuranic wastes, and other
facilities not specified. A “Solid Waste Facility” does not include & residential
“backyard” composting pile that composts organic solid waste generated on-site or any
facility or person accepting, stockpiling, or using clean fill material as long as:

a) the clean fill material does not create a public nuisance or adversely affect the
environment;

b) the material is not placed in a watercourse or in any other manner inconsistent with
the Water Quality Control Commission regulation 2-201 “Disposal of Refuse.”

SECTIONS:  ACCUMULATION OF SOLID WASTE, LITTER, AND C&D DEBRIS: REMOVAL:

PENALTY

A. No person shall permit to accumulate any solid waste on property owned, leased or occupled by

that person within two hundred (200) feet of another occupied premises, except in covered water-
tight containers made of metal or plastic,

No person shall throw, place, dump, or dispose of any solid waste, litter, or C&D debris on any
road, street, guiter, sidewalk or alley, or on any public property or another’s private propexty.

No person (whether owner, tenant, lessee, manager or other person) shall permit any solid waste,
litter, or C&D debris or any composition or residue theteof which is in an unsanitary condition or

hazardous to public health to remain upon the property.

No person shall cast, place, sweep or deposit any solid waste, litter, or C&D debris in such a
manner that it may be cartied or deposited by the elements upon any road, street, sidewalk, alley,
sewer, parkway or other public place or private property within the County.

Any accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris in violation of the terms of this Ordinance
is hereby declared to be a nuisance and is unlawful.

Subject to any limitations or otherwise provided by law, the Shertff or his designated Code
Enforcement Officer is authorized, upon issuance of a warrant, to inspect and enter any property
where he has reasonable cause to suspect that unlawful accumulations of solid waste, refuse, litter,

or C&D debris may exist.

1) If, upon the basis of such inspection, the Sheriff finds that a violation of Subsections A-E
of this Sectidn exists, he shall notify in writing the owner or any other petson with an
interest in or control of the property (whether, tenant, lessee, manager or other person) to
correct such violation within a designated period of time, from ten (10) days up to thirty

(30) days.

2) Upon the failure, neglect or refusal of any petson, owner, tenant, lesses, manager or
occupant to properly correct any such violations within the time presecribed (or within
five [5] days of the return of such prescribed notice as undeliverable if the notice is
served by mail), the County Commission may contract for the correction of the unlawful
accumulation, or order ifs cotrection by the County, af the expense of the person, owner,
tenant, lessee, manager or oceupant in charge of the propesty.

TORRANCE COUNTY
LINDA FARAMILLO, GLERXK

002160893

Book 334 Page 2965 4

4 of
04/13/2016 0

BY

LINDARK

9

4:138120 pM




@. Ifthe Sheriff finds that the vwnlawful accumulation of solid waste, [itter, or C&D debris presents a

H,

clear and present danger to the public health, safety and welfare, and immediate measures are
required to alleviate this clear and present danger, the County Manager may waive the ten (10) day

notification perfod.

Costs for correction of an unlawful accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris shall be
determined on the basis of mwan-hours worked, equipment utilized in the clean-up at a customary
rental rate per day, plus any direct costs paid by the County to correct the violation. The cost of
correction shall be & lien upon the property and shall remain in full force and effect for the amount

due plus other costs and attorney fees.

The County Manager or her designee shall maintain files of the fnspections, notices and actions
taken pwrsuant to this Section, Costs incurred by the County in undertaking corrective actions
shall be documented. The files shall be considered public records.

SECTIONG6:  SOLID WASTE, LITTER AND C&D DEBRIS PRE-COLLECTION PRACTICES

A,

E.

Solid waste and recyclables are to be properly stored on the premises where they are generated, or
shall be placed and maintained in Couvaty containers at a Torrance County Collection Station or
other refuse and solid waste disposal facility(jes) franchised, licensed and/or permitted in
conformance with applicable state law, state regulations, and this Ordinance.

Solid waste {ransported for disposal at a Torrance County Collection Station shall be secured in
garbage bags, with tarps, or straps as necessary to prevent fugitive waste,

Hazardous waste may, at the sole discretion of the solid waste anthority, be accepted for disposal
at Torrance Coundy collection stations only in household quantities, and only in secure containers.

Wood ash which has not cooled or which may otherwise be capable of rekindling or igniting a fire
if brought in contact with combustible mmaterials may not be disposed at Torrance County

collection stations.

No garbage, solid waste, or debris shall be burned within the county,

SECTION 7: SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. Haulers are expressly prohibited from using County solid waste containers for the disposal of solid

waste and C&D debris.

The owner of every mobile home park shall provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic
yards of solid waste weelkly per mobile home space. If the County Manager or her designee
determines that additional confainers are necessary, she may order such additional containers as
may be required to prevent the accumulation of solid waste or litter,

The owner of every multi-family residential development consisting of five (5) or more units shall
provide for the collection of not Jess than .5 cubic yards of solid waste weekly per vesidential unit,
If the County Manager or her designee determines that additional containers are necessary, she
may order such additional containers as may be required to prevent accuraunlation of solid waste or

litter.

Any person using a County solid waste container shall comply with the mles and regulations
established from time to time by the County Commission for the use, care and location of such
confainers and shall keep the lide and covers furnished for such containers closed at all times
except when they are being filled or emptied.

TORRANCE COUNTY
LINDA JARAMILLQ,

002160893

CLERK

Book 334 Page 2956 5

5 of

9

04/23/2046 04138:20 PM

BY

LINDARK




E. Any solid waste, lifter or C&D debris deposited in the County solid waste containers shall be
reduced in size to no more than four (4°) feet in length,

B, In the event that the County solid waste container s {ull, solid waste shall not be placed on the
ground or in proximity to the containers so as to constitute a litter or healfh hazard or become

blown and scattered,

G. No person shall impede access to a County solid waste container other than when necessary to
remove and deposit solid waste,

SECTION 8:  DAMAGE TQ SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. No person, including children, shall be on top of or ingide the County solid waste containess,

B. No person shall intentionally damage any County solid waste container.

C. Any person who damages a County solid waste container shall be liable to the County for the cost,
repair, or replacement of such container, in addition to the penalties provided in Section 16 of this

Ordinance.

SECTION 9:  HAZARDQUS WASTE AND GREENWASTE

A. Hazardous wastes in greater than household quantities shell not be disposed at Torrance County
collection stations. Such waste shall be disposed of in accordance with any applicable county,
state and federal Jaws or regulations, at the expense of the person accumulating such waste.

B. Greenwaste shall only be disposed at designated Torrance County collection stations.

SECTION 10: CONSTRUCTION SITES AND TRANSPORATION OF MATERIALS

A. Any person who has securcd a state building permit shall, prior to commencement of any
construction activity in the County, furnish or place on that propetty a container or fenced area of
suitable size and design to contain all solid waste, litter, or C&D debris which may be disturbed or
removed from the premises or property by the wind or elements,

B. No person generating solid waste or C&D debris shall allow solid waste or Htter of any kind to be
blown or be carried by the elements from the premises or property for which the building permit

was secured,

C. Any person engaged in construction or demolition shall remove the solid waste, litter, and C&D
debris, including structural parts, from the consiruction site and contain their elements from
scattering in the same manner as set out above, C&D debris or solid waste shall be removed and
disposed on within five (5) days of completion to an approved solid waste or C&D debuis facility.

SECTION 11:  SCAVENGING PROHIBITED

A. No person shall remove, collect, or distutb solid waste or C&D debris stored in or disposed in a
solid waste facility or solid waste container unless authorized by the County,

B. No person shall remove any solid waste or C&D debris fiom a solid waste container and scatter
the same upon any public or private property.

TORRANCGE COUNT Y
LINDA JARAMILLO, CLERK
002160893
Book 334 Page 2967
& of 9
04/13/2016 04:38:20 PN
BY LINBARK 6




SECTION 12: REGULATIONS ADOPTED

The laws of the State of New Mexico dealing with solid waste meanagement and alt regulationy
promulgated and published pursuant to those laws for the New Mexico Environment Department or
any division thereof; (or any successor depatiment, agency or division), along with any subsecuent
revisions or amendments to such laws or regulations, are hereby adopted and incorporated herein by
reference and made a part of this Ordinance; provided, however, the penalty provisions herein shall
apply to violations prosecuted under this Ordinance,

SECTION 13:  SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FEE

A,

Payment of the solid waste management fee shall be the obligation of the responsible party for
each residence located in the inincorporated area of Torrance County.

The County Commission shall set fees for solid waste management based on the actual or
projected cost to collect, ransport and recycle or dispose of such solid waste. Unmet actual costs
resulting from unpaid fees or certain discounts defined and approved by the County Commission

shall be the responsibility of the County Commission,

If there are multiple residences on a property, the solid waste management foe shall be assessed on
each such residence,

The solid waste management fee, and any subéequent modification thereof, shall be established
and adopted through resolution by the County Commission.

Any responsible party owning or possessing a vacant residence may be entitled to a reduction of
the solid waste management fes, according to administrative guidelines established and adopted
through resolution.by the Cownty Comumission. Any property owner falsely certifying that a
residence is vacant is in violation of this Ordinance, and is subject to penalties set forth in Section

16.A.

SECTION 14: LIENS

A

All fees arising under this Ordinance shall be payable by the responsible party of the residence
being served at the time the rate or charge acerues and becomes due, The County of Torrance
shall be entitled to a lien upon the residence and upon the tract or parcel of land being served for
failure to pay such fees pursuant to the authority granted under Section 3-36-1 et seq. NMSA
1978, which lien shall be a first and prior lien on the property coequal with municipal Hens
pursuant to Section 3-36-2 NMSA 1978, but subject ouly to the len of genoral state and connty

taxes.

The lien provided for in this section shall be enforced in the manner prescribed in Sections 3-36-7
NMSA 1978. For purposes of this section, such action shall be taken by the Torrance County
Clerk. In any proceedings whers pleadings are required, it shall be sufficient to declare that the
general purpose of said len is for the service supplied for the collection, transportation and

disposal of solid waste.

The charges and fees imposed herein are the obligation of the responsible party of the premises,
regardless of whether occupied by an owner, tenants or others, and the County may file a len
against the propetty for such charges, penalties, costs of enforcement, including attorney’s fees

ineurred in filing the lien.

TORRANCE COUNTY
LINDA JARAMILLO, CLERK

0021608893

Book 334 Page 2958

04/13/2016 04:38:20 pM

BY

7 of 9

LINDARK




SECTION 15: POWERS OF THE COUNTY

In conneetion with the operation of a solid waste collection system, the Torrance County Board of
Comimissioners may:

A. Execute confracts on behalf of the County, with any municipality, county, or other unit of
government, including the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, or any private entity for the
collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste generated in the tnincorporated

arcas of Torrance County,

B. Regulate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C&D debris by
any person within the unincorporated areas of Torrance County.

C. Establish, assess and collect fees directly or through its authorized agent from responsible parties
in amounts designated herein,

D. Coordinate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C&D debris
in consultation with the New Mexico Depariment of Bnvironment,

E. Develop, or authorize any contractor, including the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, for the
collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste generated in the unincorporated
areas of Torrance County, to develop, operating policies and procedures for the implementation of

the provisions of this Ordinance.

SECTION 16: PENALTIES

A, Persons violating the Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed THREE
HUNDRED ($300.00) DOLLARS and/or NINETY (90) days in jail for each separate offense,
except as set forth in Paragraphs B and C below.

B, Persons violating this Ordinance by discarding or disposing of solid waste or litter on public or
private property in any manner other than by disposing of it in an authorized container,
convenience cenfer, or Jandfill shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed ONE
THOUSAND ($1,000.00) DOLLARS.,

C. Each violation shall constitute a separate offense. FEach day an offense continues shall also
constifute a separate offense,

SECTION 17: SEVERABILITY

If any article, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, provision or portion of any article,
section, subsection, paragraph, senience, clause, phrase or provision in this Ordinance is, for any reason,
held to be unconstitutional, invalid or void, the remaining portions shall not be affected since it is the
express intention of the Torrance County Board of Commissioners to pass such article, section, subsection,
paragtaph, sentence, clause, phrase or provision and overy part thereof separately and independently from

every other part.
SECTION 18: EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall be recorded and authenticated by the County Clerk following adoption by the Board
of County Commissioners. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be thirty days after the Ordinance has

been recorded,

TORRANCE COUNTY
LINDA JARAMILLO, CLERK

002160893
Book 334 Page 2959
8 of 9
04/13/2016 04:38:20 PM 8

BY LINDARK




Commissioners of Torrance County, New Mexico,

titée;

\\“,a I
Y v s

'\\\f\"‘ ’,‘:, 2 (:

4 e -'t..‘
,“‘\(,l‘ ...LQQ"‘):;
w5 ..
S 8 --."."T?v’x"’«g
. K ! b o, #%
s G
[
LY
L ﬁ:CJ:
RN & T
v g
.,‘;_ ":!,_::vbv
TR IR
) fii‘., K h'\‘-{f’%
ity ot v
"’m ﬁ‘:“’ ‘-.,‘”-~~ '\;ﬁ% ‘:'\ﬁ".P
LTI B A o
i1y SR ELN
feeiyd
ATTEST:

4}”’!.5/‘)
Lﬁﬁa’ﬁg}ﬁf}}o/ ‘
County €lerk .~

-

T ORRANCE COUNTY
LINDA JARAMILLO, CLERK
002160893
Book 334 Page 2960

9 of 9
04/13/2016 04:38:¢20 PM
BY LINDARK

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13% day April of 2016, by the Board of Coﬁnty

o -
S T 5

> el

[ A

Leroy Candelaria
Chairman

,,,,-"“' .A/f,/

_Jifn Frost

f'-‘ ’-"'/.
f:' f/;)i/z;.’ 7')/2__.’ %'4
('/" ember

W\J/ 1

Tnlia DiCharme
Member




TORRANCE COUNTY
Ordinance No. 2021-
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS

WHEREAS, the current version of the Torrance County Solid Waste Management Ordinance was last revised in
2016; and,

WHEREAS, the 2016 version of the Ordinance is substantially identical to the original version passed in 1994, it did
not adjust for departmental authority over personnel tasked with enforcement of portions of this Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, Planning & Zoning Department personnel are utilized to enforce portions of this Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, funding for equipment, supplies, vehicle maintenance, and vehicle fuel to enforce portions of this
Ordinance is derived from the Planning & Zoning budget; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Director or Department Head has supervisory authority of department
personnel; and,

WHEREAS, discarded appliances are considered to be solid waste; and,

WHEREAS, wording of the Interpretation and Conflict section of 2006 version of the Ordinance conflicts
with itself.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Torrance County Board of Commissioners as follows:

SECTION 1: SHORT TITLE

This Ordinance shall be known as the “SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE,” and shall be referred
to herein as “this Ordinance.”

SECTION 2: AUTHORITY

This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority granted to counties to provide for the safety and preserve
the health of the residents of the county as set forth in Section 4-37-1 NMSA 1978; the authority provided in
Sections 4-56-1 through 4-56-3 NMSA ,1978 which authorizes the county to establish and maintain, manage
and supervise a system of storage, collection and disposal of all refuse; and the authority provided in Sections
3-36-1 through 3-36-7 NMSA 1978 which enables the county to attach liens for unpaid charges established by

ordinance.

SECTION 3: INTERPRETATION AND CONFLICT

The regulations provided herein are held to include the minimum standards necessary to carry out the
purposes of this Ordmance ThlS Ordmance 1s not mtended to interfere with, abrogate or annul any other valid

ordmances

Whenever any provisions ofthls Ordmance are
more or less restrlctlve than other laws, ordinances, or Torrance County resolutions, then whichever is the more
restrictive shall govern.



SECTION 4: DEFINITIONS:

A. Word Construction - Words used in the present tense include the future; words in the masculine
include the feminine; and words in the singular include the plural.

B. Definitions — the following definitions apply to this Ordinance

. “Clean Fill is broken concrete, brick, rock, stone, glass, reclaimed asphalt pavement, or
uncontaminated soil generated from construction and demolition activities.
Reinforcement materials which are an integral part, such as rebar, are included. Clean fill must be
free of other solid waste or hazardous waste.

2. “Code Enforcement Officer” is the person employed as the Planning & Zoning department head or
Director or his assigns currently known as “Zoning Enforcement Officer”, as appointed by the
County Commission upon adoption of revisions to the Torrance County Ordinance 90-3 dated
May 11, 2016. i i i i i

3. “Composting” is the process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is
carried out under controlled conditions. The process stabilizes the organic fraction into a
material which can be easily and safely stored, handled and used in an environmentally
acceptable manner.

4. “Construction and Demolition (C&D) Debris” is material generally considered to be
water insoluble and nonhazardous in nature, including, but not limited to, steel, glass, brick,
concrete, asphalt roofing materials, pipe, gypsum wallboard, and lumber from the construction
or destruction of a structure project and includes rocks, soil, tree remains, trees and other
vegetative matter that normally results from land clearing. If construction and demolition
debris is mixed with any other types of solid waste, it loses its classification as
construction and demolition debris. Construction and demolition debris does not include
asbestos or liquids including, but not limited to, waste paints, solvents, sealers, adhesives or
potentially hazardous materials.

5. “County Commission” is the Torrance County Board of Commissioners, the duly
constituted governing body of Torrance County.

6. “County Manager” is the chief administrative assistant to the Torrance County Board of
Commissioners.

7. "Greenwaste" means landscape trimmings, including limbs and branches of 1 inch in
diameter or greater. Does not include brush or tree stumps.

8. “Hazardous waste" includes material listed in 40 CFR261 classified as Toxic, Reactive,
Ignitable, or Corrosive.

9. "Hauler” is any person transporting solid waste by whatever means for the purpose of
disposing of the solid waste in a solid waste facility, except that the term does not include an
individual transporting solid waste generated on or from his residential premises for the
purpose of disposing of it in a solid waste facility;

10. “Litter” is solid waste or debris found in public areas or generated while traveling in a
motor vehicle.

11. “Owner” is the property owner, whether residing on said property or not, the property
being located within Torrance County and outside the corporate boundaries of the
municipalities of Moriarty, Estancia, Mountainair, Encino and Willard.



12. “Person” is any individual, partnership, company, corporation, firm, association, trust,
estate, state and federal agency, institution, county, city, town, village, or municipality or
other legal entity, however organized,

13. “Premises” is defined as a structure, whether designed for residential or commercial use,
located on any property within Torrance County and outside the corporate limits of the
municipalities of Moriarty, Estancia, Mountainair, Encino and Willard.

14. “Residence” is any habitable dwelling or each single unit of multi-unit habitable
dwellings,

15. “Responsible party” is defined as the owner of any premises.

16. “Solid Waste” is any garbage, refuse, discarded appliances, sludge from a waste treatment
plant, water supply treatment plant or air pollution control facility and other discarded
material, including solid, liquid, semisolid or contained gaseous material resulting
from industrial, commercial, mining, and agricultural operations and from community
activities.

“Solid Waste” does not include:

a) waste from the extraction, beneficiation and processing of ores and waste
materials, including phosphate rock and overburden from the mining of uranium
ore, coal, copper, molybdenum and other ores and minerals;

b) agricultural waste, including, but not limited to, manures and other crop residues
returned to the soil as fertilizer or soil conditioner;

c¢) sand and gravel;

d) solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage or solid or dissolved materials in
irrigation return flows or industrial discharges that are point sources subject to
permits under Section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C.
Section 1342 or source, special nuclear or by-product material as defined by the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954,42 U.S.C. Section 2011 et seq.

e)any material regulated by Subtitle C of the federal Resource Conservation and

Recovery Act, or substances regulated by the federal Toxic Substance Control Act.

17. “Solid Waste Facility means any public or private system, facility, location,
improvements on the land, structures or other appurtenances or methods used for
processing, transformation, recycling, or disposal of solid waste, including landfill
disposal facilities, transfer stations, convenience centers, resource recovery facilities, and
incinerators, or any facility that processes, recycles, transforms, transfers, or otherwise
handles low level or high level radioactive waste or transuranic wastes, and other
facilities not specified, A “Solid Waste Facility” does not include a residential
“backyard” composting pile that composts organic solid waste generated on-site or any
facility or person accepting, stockpiling, or using clean fill material as long as:

a) the clean fill material does not create a public nuisance or adversely affect the
environment;

b) the material is not placed in a watercourse or in any other manner inconsistent with
the Water Quality Control Commission regulation 2-201 “Disposal of Refuse.”



SECTION 5: ACCUMULATION OF SOLID WASTE. LITTER. AND C&D DEBRIS: REMOVAL:
PENALTY

A. No person shall permit to accumulate any solid waste on property owned, leased or occupied by
that person within two hundred (200) feet of another occupied premises, except in covered water—
tight containers made of metal or plastic.

B. No person shall throw, place, dump, or dispose of any solid waste, litter, or C&D debris on any
road, street, gutter, sidewalk or alley, or on any public property or another’s private property.

C. No person (whether owner, tenant, lessee, manager or other person) shall permit any solid waste,
litter, or C&D debris or any composition or residue thereof which is in an unsanitary condition or
hazardous to public health to remain upon the property.

D.  No person shall cast, place, sweep or deposit any solid waste, litter, or C&D debris in such a
manner that it may be carried or deposited by the elements upon any road, street, sidewalk, alley,
sewer, parkway or other public place or private property within the County.

E.  Any accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris in violation of the terms of this Ordinance
is hereby declared to be a nuisance and is unlawful.

F. Subject to any limitations or otherwise provided by law, the Sheriff, his Deputy erhis-
i : , the Zoning Director, or his designated Zoning Officer is
authorized, upon issuance of a warrant, to inspect and enter any property where he has reasonable
cause to suspect that unlawful accumulations of solid waste, refuse, litter, or C&D debris may exist.

1) If, upon the basis of such inspection, the Sheriff, his Deputy, the Zoning Director, or his
Zoning Enforcement Officer finds that a violation of Subsections A-E
of this Section exists, he shall notify in writing the owner or any other person with an
interest in or control of the property (whether, tenant, lessee, manager or other person) to
correct such violation within a designated period of time, fiem from ten (10)daysupto thirty
(30) days. :

2) Upon the failure, neglect or refusal of any person, owner, tenant, lessee, manager or
occupant to properly correct any such violations within the time prescribed (or within
five [5] days of the return of such prescribed notice as undeliverable if the notice is
served by mail), the County Commission may contract for the correction of the unlawful
accumulation, or order its correction by the County, at the expense of the person, owner,
tenant, lessee, manager or occupant in charge of the property.

G. If the Sheriff his Deputy, the Zoning Director, or his Zoning Enforcement Officer finds that the
unlawful accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris presents a clear and present danger to
the public health, safety and welfare, and immediate measures are required to alleviate this clear
and present danger, the County Manager may waive the ten (10) day notification period.

H. Costs for correction of an unlawful accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris shall be
determined on the basis of man-hours worked, equipment utilized in the clean-up at a customary
rental rate per day, plus any direct costs paid by the County to correct the violation. The cost of
correction shall be a lien upon the property and shall remain in full force and effect for the amount
due plus other costs and attorney fees.

[ The County Manager or her designee shall maintain files of the inspections, notices and actions
taken pursuant to this Section. Costs incurred by the County in undertaking corrective actions
shall be documented. The files shall be considered public records.



SECTION 6: SOLID WASTE. LITTER AND C&D DEBRIS PRE-COLLECTION PRACTICES

A. Solid waste and recyclables are to be properly stored on the premises where they are generated, or
shall be placed and maintained in County containers at a Torrance County Collection Station or
other refuse and solid waste disposal facility(ies) franchised, licensed and/or permitted in
conformance with applicable state law, state regulations, and this Ordinance.

B. Solid waste transported for disposal at a Torrance County Collection Station shall be secured in
garbage bags, with tarps, or straps as necessary to prevent fugitive waste.

C. Hazardous waste may, at the sole discretion of the solid waste authority, be accepted for disposal
at Torrance County collection stations only in household quantities, and only in secure containers.

D. Wood ash which has not cooled or which may otherwise be capable of rekindling or igniting a fire
if brought in contact with combustible materials may not be disposed at Torrance County
collection stations.

E. No garbage, solid waste, or debris shall be burned within the county.

SECTION 7: SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. Haulers are expressly prohibited from using County solid waste containers for the disposal of solid
waste and C&D debris,

B. The owner of every mobile home park shall provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic
yards of solid waste weekly per mobile home space. If the County Manager or her designee
determines that additional containers are necessary, she may order such additional containers as
may be required to prevent the accumulation of solid waste or litter.

C. The owner of every multi-family residential development consisting of five (5) or more units shall
provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic yards of solid waste weekly per residential unit.
If the County Manageér or her designee determines that additional containers are necessary, she
may order such additional containers as may be required to prevent accumulation of solid waste or
litter.

D. Any person using a County solid waste container shall comply with the rules and regulations
established from time to time by the County Commission for the use, care and location of such
containers and shall keep the lids and covers furnished for such containers closed at all times
except when they are being filled or emptied.

E. Any solid waste, litter or C&D debris deposited in the County solid waste containers shall be
reduced in size to no more than four (4°) feet in length. -

F. In the event that the County solid waste container is full, solid waste shall not be placed on the
ground or in proximity fo the containers so as to constitute a litter or health hazard or become
blown and scattered.

G. No person shall impede access to a County solid waste container other than when necessary to
remove and deposit solid waste. :

SECTION 8: DAMAGE TO SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. No person, including children, shall be on top of or inside the County solid waste containers.



B. No person shall intentionally damage any County solid waste container.

C. Any person who damages a County solid waste container shall be liable to the County for the cost,

repair, or replacement of such container, in addition to the penalties provided in Section 16 of this
Ordinance.

SECTION 9: HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GREENWASTR

A. Hazardous wastes in greater than household quantities shall not be disposed at Torrance County
collection stations. Such waste shall be disposed of in accordance with any applicable county,
state and federal laws or regulations, at the expense of the person accumulating such waste.

B. Greenwaste shall only be disposed at designated Torrance County collection stations.

SECTION 10: CONSTRUCTION SITES AND TRANSFORATION OF MATERIALS

A. Any person who has secured a state building permit shall, prior to commencement of any
construction activity in the County, furnish or place on that property a container or fenced area of
suitable size and design to contain all solid wasts, litter, or C&D debris which may be disturbed or
removed from the premises or property by the wind or elements.

B. No person generating solid waste or C&D debris shall allow solid waste or litter of any kind to be

blown or be carried by the elements from the premises or property for which the building permit
was secured.

C. Any person engaged in construction or demolition shall remove the solid waste, litter, and C&D
debris, including structural parts, from the construction site and contain their elements from
scattering in the same manner as set out above. C&D debris or solid waste shall be removed and
disposed on within five (5) days of completion to an approved solid waste or C&D debris facility.

SECTION 11:  SCAVENGING PROHIBITED

A. No person shall remove, collect, or disturb solid waste or C&D debris stored in or disposed in a
solid waste facility or solid waste container unless authorized by the County.

B. No person shall remove any solid waste or C&D debris from a solid waste container and scatter
the same upon any public or private property.

C. The owner of every multi-family residential development consisting of five (5) or more units shall
provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic yards of solid waste weekly per residential unit.
If the County Manager or her designee determines that additional containers are necessary, she

may order such additional containers as may be required to prevent accumulation of solid waste or
litter.

D. Any person using a County solid waste container shall comply with the rules and regulations
established from time to time by the County Commission for the use, care and location of such
containers and shall keep the lids and covers furnished for such containers closed at all times
except when they are being filled or emptied.

E. Any solid waste, litter or C&D debris deposited in the County solid waste containers shall be
reduced in size to no more than four (4°) feet in length.

F. In the event that the County solid waste container is full, solid waste shall not be placed on the
ground or in proximity to the containers so as to constitute a litter or health hazard or become



blown and scattered.

G. No person shall impede access to a County solid waste container other than when necessary to
remove and deposit solid waste,

SECTION 8§: DAMAGE TO SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. No person, including children, shall be on top of or inside the County solid waste containers,

B. No person shall intentionally damage any County solid waste container,

C. Any person who damages a County solid waste container shall be liable to the County for the cost,
repair, or replacement of such container, in addition to the penalties provided in Section 16 of this

Ordinance.

SECTION 9: HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GREENWASTB

A. Hazardous wastes in greater than household quantities shall not be disposed at Torrance County
collection stations. Such waste shall be disposed of in accordance with any applicable county,
state and federal laws or regulations, at the expense of the person accumulating such waste.

B. Greenwaste shall only be disposed at designated Torrance County collection stations.

SECTION 10: CONSTRUCTION SITES AND TRANSFORATION OF MATERIALS

A. Any person who has secured a state building permit shall, prior to commencement of any
construction activity in the County, furnish or place on that property a container or fenced area of
suitable size and design to contain all solid waste, litter, or C&D debris which may be disturbed or
removed from the premises or property by the wind or elements.

B. No person generating solid waste or C&D debris shall allow solid waste or litter of any kind to be
blown or be carried by the elements from the premises or property for which the building permit
was secured.

C. Any person engaged in construction or demolition shall remove the solid waste, litter, and C&D
debris, including structural parts, from the construction site and contain their elements from
scattering in the same manner as set out above. C&D debris or solid waste shall be removed and
disposed on within five (5) days of completion to an approved solid waste or C&D debris facility.

SECTION 11:  SCAVENGING PROHIBITED

A. No person shall remove, collect, or disturb solid waste or C&D debris stored in or disposed in a
solid waste facility or solid waste container unless authorized by the County.

B. No person shall remove any solid waste or C&D debris from a solid waste container and scatter
the same upon any public or private property.



SECTION 12: REGULATIONS ADOPTED

The laws of the State of New Mexico dealing with solid waste management and all regulations
promulgated and published pursuant to those laws for the New Mexico Environment Department or
any division thereof, (or any successor department, agency or division), along with any subsequent
revisions or amendments to such laws or regulations, are hereby adopted and incorporated herein by
reference and made a part of this Ordinance; provided, however, the penalty provisions herein shall
apply to violations prosecuted under this Ordinance. ’

SECTION 13:  SQLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FEE

A. Payment of the solid waste management fee shall be the obligation of the responsible party for
each residence located in the unincorporated area of Torrance County.

B. The County Commission shall set fees for solid waste management based on the actual or
projected cost to collect, transport and recycle or dispose of such solid waste. Unmet actual costs
resulting from unpaid fees or certain discounts defined and approved by the County Commission
shall be the responsibility of the County Commission.

C. If there are multiple residences on a property, the solid waste management fee shall be assessed on
each such residence.

D. The solid waste management fee, and any subsequent modification thereof, shall be established
and adopted through resolution by the County Commission.

E. Any responsible party owning or possessing a vacant residence may be entitled to a reduction of
the solid waste management fee, according to administrative guidelines established and adopted
through resolution by the County Commission. Any property owner falsely certifying that a
residence is vacant is in violation of this Ordinance, and is subject to penalties set forth in Section
16. A.

SECTION 14: LIENS

A. All fees arising under this Ordinance shall be payable by the responsible party of the residence
being served at the time the rate or charge accrues and becomes due. The County of Torrance
shall be entitled to a lien upon the residence and upon the tract or parcel of land being served for
failure to pay such fees pursuant to the authority granted under Section 3-36-1 et seq. NMSA
1978, which lien shall be a first and prior lien on the property coequal with municipal liens
pursuant to Section 3-36-2 NMSA 1978, but subject only to the lien of general state and county
taxes.

B. The hen provided for in this section shall be enforced in the manner prescribed in Sections 3-36-7
NMSA 1978. For purposes of this section, such action shall be taken by the Torrance County
Clerk. In any proceedings where pleadings are required, it shall be sufficient to declare that the
general purpose of said lien is for the service supplied for the collection, transportation and
disposal of solid waste.

C. The charges and fees imposed herein are the obligation of the responsible party of the premises,
regardless of whether occupied by an owner, tenants or others, and the County may file a lien
against the property for such charges, penalties, costs of enforcement, including attorney’s fees
incurred in filing the lien.



SECTION 15: POWERS OF THE COUNTY

In connection with the operation of a solid waste collection system, the Torrance County Board of
Commissioners may:

A. Execute contracts on behalf of the County, with any municipality, county, or other unit of
government, including the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, or any private entity for the
collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste generated in the unincorporated
areas of Torrance County.

B. Regulate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C&D debris by
any person within the unincorporated areas of Torrance County.

C. Establish, assess and collect fees directly or through its authorized agent from responsible parties
in amounts designated herein;

D. Coordinate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C&D debris
in consultation with the New Mexico Department of Environment,

E. Develop, or authorize any contractor, including the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, for the
collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste generated in the unincorporated
areas of Torrance County, to develop, operating policies and procedures for the implementation of
the provisions of this Ordinance.

SECTION 16: PENALTIES

A. Persons violating the Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed THREE
HUNDRED ($300.00) DOLLARS and/or NINETY (90) days in jail for each separate offense,
except as set forth in Paragraphs B and C below.

B. Persons violating this Ordinance by discarding or disposing of solid waste or litter on public or
private property in any manner other than by disposing of it in an authorized container,
convenience center, or landfill shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed ONE
THOUSAND ($1,000.00) DOLLARS.

C. Each violation shall constitute a separate offense. Each day an offense continues shall also
constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 17:  SEVERABILITY

If any article, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, provision or portion of any article, section,
subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or provision in this Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be
unconstitutional, invalid or void, the remaining portions shall not be affected since it is the express intention of the
Torrance County Board of Commissioners to pass such article, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase
or provision and every part thereof separately and independently from every other part.

SECTION 18:  EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall be recorded and authenticated by the County Clerk following adoption by the Board of County
Commissioners. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be thirty days after the Ordinance has been recorded.



ORIGINALLY PASSED APPROVED AND SIGNED the }_Z_day ofﬁﬁgf » 1994, by the Board of County
Commissioners of Torrance County, New Mexico.

AMENDED on the __13th _ day of April, __2016 , by the Board of County Commissioners of
Torrance County, New Mexico.

AMENDED on the 25" day of August 2021, by the Board of County Commissioners of Torrance County,
New Mexico.

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

County Attorney Date Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Vice Chair

Leroy Candelaria, Member

ATTEST:

Yvonne Otero, County Clerk

Date:




TORRANCE COUNTY
Ordinance No. 2021-
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS

WHEREAS, the current version of the Torrance County Solid Waste Management Ordinance was last revised in
2016; and,

WHEREAS, the 2016 version of the Ordinance is substantially identical to the original version passed in 1994, it did
not adjust for departmental authority over personnel tasked with enforcement of portions of this Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, Planning & Zoning Department personnel are utilized to enforce portions of this Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, funding for equipment, supplies, vehicle maintenance, and vehicle fuel to enforce portions of this
Ordinance is derived from the Planning & Zoning budget; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Director or Department Head has supervisory authority of department
personnel; and,

WHEREAS, discarded appliances are considered to be solid waste; and,

WHEREAS, wording of the Interpretation and Conflict section of 2006 version of the Ordinance conflicts
with itself.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Torrance County Board of Commissioners as follows:

SECTION 1: SHORT TITLE

This Ordinance shall be known as the “SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE,” and shall be referred
to herein as “this Ordinance.”

SECTION 2: AUTHORITY

This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority granted to counties to provide for the safety and preserve
the health of the residents of the county as set forth in Section 4-37-1 NMSA 1978; the authority provided in
Sections 4-56-1 through 4-56-3 NMSA ,1978 which authorizes the county to establish and maintain, manage
and supervise a system of storage, collection and disposal of all refuse; and the authority provided in Sections
3-36-1 through 3-36-7 NMSA 1978 which enables the county to attach liens for unpaid charges established by

ordinance.

SECTION 3: INTERPRETATION AND CONFLICT

The regulations provided herein are held to include the minimum standards necessary to carry out the
purposes of this Ordinance. This Ordinance is not intended to interfere with, abrogate or annul any other valid

Ordinance confl other mle on oreemen or—other

ordinances. Where-the-pro vistons-of this-Ordina 5 with-o tes—regulationsag 010

mposes-greater restrictions-than-those-imposed-by-other rules regulation ~agreements or other County ordinanee
orreselutions;the provisiens-of this-Ordinance shall- be-controlling. Whenever any provisions of this Ordinance are

more or less restrictive than other laws, ordinances, or Torrance County resolutions, then whichever is the more
restrictive shall govern.




SECTION 4:

DEFINITIONS:

A. Word Construction - Words used in the present tense include the future; words in the masculine

include the feminine; and words in the singular include the plural.

B. Definitions — the following definitions apply to this Ordinance

L.

(O8]

“Clean Fill is broken concrete, brick, rock, stone, glass, reclaimed asphalt pavement, or
uncontaminated soil generated from construction and demolition activities.
Reinforcement materials which are an integral part, such as rebar, are included. Clean fill must be
free of other solid waste or hazardous waste.

. “Code Enforcement Officer” is the person employed as the Planning & Zoning department head or

Director or his assigns currently known as “Zoning Enforcement Officer”, as appointed by the
County Commission upon adoption of revisions to the Torrance County Ordinance 90-3 dated
May 11, 2016. heri i his-Ordinanee

“Composting” is the process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is
carried out under controlled conditions. The process stabilizes the organic fraction into a
material which can be easily and safely stored, handled and used in an environmentally
acceptable manner.

“Construction and Demolition (C&D) Debris” is material generally considered to be

water insoluble and nonhazardous in nature, including, but not limited to, steel, glass, brick,
concrete, asphalt roofing materials, pipe, gypsum wallboard, and lumber from the construction
or destruction of a structure project and includes rocks, soil, tree remains, trees and other
vegetative matter that normally results from land clearing. If construction and demolition
debris is mixed with any other types of solid waste, it loses its classification as
construction and demolition debris. Construction and demolition debris does not include
asbestos or liquids including, but not limited to, waste paints, solvents, sealers, adhesives or
potentially hazardous materials.

“County Commission” is the Torrance County Board of Commissioners, the duly
constituted governing body of Torrance County.

“County Manager” is the chief administrative assistant to the Torrance County Board of
Commissioners.

"Greenwaste" means landscape trimmings, including limbs and branches of 1 inch in
diameter or greater. Does not include brush or tree stumps.

“Hazardous waste" includes material listed in 40 CFR261 classified as Toxic, Reactive,
Ignitable, or Corrosive.

"Hauler” is any person transporting solid waste by whatever means for the purpose of
disposing of the solid waste in a solid waste facility, except that the term does not include an
individual transporting solid waste generated on or from his residential premises for the
purpose of disposing of it in a solid waste facility;

10. “Litter” is solid waste or debris found in public areas or generated while traveling in a
motor vehicle.

11. “Owner” is the property owner, whether residing on said property or not, the property
being located within Torrance County and outside the corporate boundaries of the
municipalities of Moriarty, Estancia, Mountainair, Encino and Willard.



12. “Person” is any individual, partnership, company, corporation, firm, association, trust,
estate, state and federal agency, institution, county, city, town, village, or municipality or
other legal entity, however organized,

13. “Premises” is defined as a structure, whether designed for residential or commercial use,
located on any property within Torrance County and outside the corporate limits of the
municipalities of Moriarty, Estancia, Mountainair, Encino and Willard.

14. “Residence” is any habitable dwelling or each single unit of multi-unit habitable
dwellings,

15. “Responsible party” is defined as the owner of any premises.

16. “Solid Waste” is any garbage, refuse, discarded appliances, sludge from a waste treatment
plant, water supply treatment plant or air pollution control facility and other discarded
material, including solid, liquid, semisolid or contained gaseous material resulting
from industrial, commercial, mining, and agricultural operations and from community
activities.

“Solid Waste” does not include:

a) waste from the extraction, beneficiation and processing of ores and waste
materials, including phosphate rock and overburden from the mining of uranium
ore, coal, copper, molybdenum and other ores and minerals;

b) agricultural waste, including, but not limited to, manures and other crop residues
returned to the soil as fertilizer or soil conditioner:

c) sand and gravel;

d) solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage or solid or dissolved materials in
irrigation return flows or industrial discharges that are point sources subject to
permits under Section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act,33 U.S.C.
Section 1342 or source, special nuclear or by-product material as defined by the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954,42 U.S.C. Section 2011 et seq.;

e)any material regulated by Subtitle C of the federal Resource Conservation and

Recovery Act, or substances regulated by the federal Toxic Substance Control Act.

17. “Solid Waste Facility means any public or private system, facility, location,
improvements on the land, structures or other appurtenances or methods used for
processing, transformation, recycling, or disposal of solid waste, including landfill
disposal facilities, transfer stations, convenience centers, resource recovery facilities, and
incinerators, or any facility that processes, recycles, transforms, transfers, or otherwise
handles low level or high level radioactive waste or transuranic wastes, and other
facilities not specified, A “Solid Waste Facility” does not include a residential
“backyard” composting pile that composts organic solid waste generated on-site or any
facility or person accepting, stockpiling, or using clean fill material as long as:

a) the clean fill material does not create a public nuisance or adversely affect the
environment;

b) the material is not placed in a watercourse or in any other manner inconsistent with
the Water Quality Control Commission regulation 2-201 “Disposal of Refuse.”



SECTION 5: ACCUMULATION OF SOLID WASTE. LITTER. AND C&D DEBRIS: REMOVAL:
PENALTY

A. No person shall permit to accumulate any solid waste on property owned, leased or occupied by
that person within two hundred (200) feet of another occupied premises, except in covered water—
tight containers made of metal or plastic.

B. No person shall throw, place, dump, or dispose of any solid waste, litter, or C&D debris on any
road, street, gutter, sidewalk or alley, or on any public property or another’s private property.

C. No person (whether owner, tenant, lessee, manager or other person) shall permit any solid waste,
litter, or C&D debris or any composition or residue thereof which is in an unsanitary condition or
hazardous to public health to remain upon the property.

D. No person shall cast, place, sweep or deposit any solid waste, litter, or C&D debris in such a
manner that it may be carried or deposited by the elements upon any road, street, sidewalk, alley,
sewer, parkway or other public place or private property within the County.

E.  Any accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris in violation of the terms of this Ordinance
is hereby declared to be a nuisance and is unlawful.

F. Subject to any limitations or otherwise provided by law, the Sheriff, his Deputy erhis-

designated-CodeEnforcement-Officer, the Zoning Director, or his designated Zoning Officer is

authorized, upon issuance of a warrant, to inspect and enter any property where he has reasonable
cause to suspect that unlawful accumulations of solid waste, refuse, litter, or C&D debris may exist.

1) If, upon the basis of such inspection, the Sheriff, his Deputy, the Zoning Director, or his
Zoning Enforcement Officer finds that a violation of Subsections A-E
of this Section exists, he shall notify in writing the owner or any other person with an
interest in or control of the property (whether, tenant, lessee, manager or other person) to
correct such violation within a designated period of time, fiefa from ten (10) days up to thirty
(30) days.

2) Upon the failure, neglect or refusal of any person, owner, tenant, lessee, manager or
occupant to properly correct any such violations within the time prescribed (or within
five [5] days of the return of such prescribed notice as undeliverable if the notice is
served by mail), the County Commission may contract for the correction of the unlawful
accumulation, or order its correction by the County, at the expense of the person, owner,
tenant, lessee, manager or occupant in charge of the property.

G. If the Sheriff his Deputy, the Zoning Director, or his Zoning Enforcement Officer finds that the
unlawful accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris presents a clear and present danger to
the public health, safety and welfare, and immediate measures are required to alleviate this clear
and present danger, the County Manager may waive the ten (10) day notification period.

H. Costs for correction of an unlawful accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris shall be
determined on the basis of man-hours worked, equipment utilized in the clean-up ata customary
rental rate per day, plus any direct costs paid by the County to correct the violation. The cost of
correction shall be a lien upon the property and shall remain in full force and effect for the amount
due plus other costs and attorney fees.

L The County Manager or her designee shall maintain files of the inspections, notices and actions
taken pursuant to this Section. Costs incurred by the County in undertaking corrective actions
shall be documented. The files shall be considered public records.



SECTION 6: SOLID WASTE. LITTER AND C&D DEBRIS PRE-COLLECTION PRACTICES

A. Solid waste and recyclables are to be properly stored on the premises where they are generated, or
shall be placed and maintained in County containers at a Torrance County Collection Station or
other refuse and solid waste disposal facility(ies) franchised, licensed and/or permitted in
conformance with applicable state law, state regulations, and this Ordinance.

B. Solid waste transported for disposal at a Torrance County Collection Station shall be secured in
garbage bags, with tarps, or straps as necessary to prevent fugitive waste.

C. Hazardous waste may, at the sole discretion of the solid waste authority, be accepted for disposal
at Torrance County collection stations only in household quantities, and only in secure containers.

D. Wood ash which has not cooled or which may otherwise be capable of rekindling or igniting a fire
if brought in contact with combustible materials may not be disposed at Torrance County

collection stations.

E. No garbage, solid waste, or debris shall be burned within the county.

. SECTION 7: SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. Haulers are expressly prohibited from using County solid waste containers for the disposal of solid
waste and C&D debris.

B. The owner of every mobile home park shall provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic
yards of solid waste weekly per mobile home space. If the County Manager or her designee
determines that additional containers are necessary, she may order such additional containers as
may be required to prevent the accumulation of solid waste or litter.

C. The owner of every multi-family residential development consisting of five (5) or more units shall
provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic yards of solid waste weekly per residential unit,
If the County Manager or her designee determines that additional containers are necessary, she
may order such additional containers as may be required to prevent accumulation of solid waste or
litter.

D. Any person using a County solid waste container shall comply with the rules and regulations
established from time to time by the County Commission for the use, care and location of such
containers and shall keep the lids and covers furnished for such containers closed at all times
except when they are being filled or emptied.

E. Any solid waste, litter or C&D debris deposited in the County solid waste containers shall be
reduced in size to no more than four (4°) feet in length. :

F.In the event that the County solid waste container is full, solid waste shall not be placed on the
ground or in proximity to the containers so as to constitute a litter or health hazard or become
blown and scattered.

G. No person shall impede access to a County solid waste container other than when necessary to
remove and deposit solid waste,

SECTION 8: DAMAGE TO SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. No person, including children, shall be on top of or inside the County solid waste containers.



B. No person shall intentionally damage any County solid waste container.
C. Any person who damages a County solid waste container shall be liable to the County for the cost,

repair, or replacement of such container, in addition to the penalties provided in Section 16 of this
Ordinance.

SECTION 9: HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GREENWASTB

A. Hazardous wastes in greater than household quantities shall not be disposed at Torrance County
collection stations. Such waste shall be disposed of in accordance with any applicable county,
state and federal laws or regulations, at the expense of the person accumulating such waste.

B. Greenwaste shall only be disposed at designated Torrance County collection stations.

SECTION 10: CONSTRUCTION SITES AND TRANSFORATION OF MATERIALS

A. Any person who has secured a state building permit shall, prior to commencement of any
construction activity in the County, furnish or place on that property a container or fenced area of
suitable size and design to contain all solid waste, litter, or C&D debris which may be disturbed or
removed from the premises or property by the wind or elements.

B. No person generating solid waste or C&D debris shall allow solid waste or litter of any kind to be

blown or be carried by the elements from the premises or property for which the building permit
was secured.

C. Any person engaged in construction or demolition shall remove the solid waste, litter, and C&D
debris, including structural parts, from the construction site and contain their elements from
scattering in the same manner as set out above. C&D debris or solid waste shall be removed and
disposed on within five (5) days of completion to an approved solid waste or C&D debris facility.

SECTION 11:  SCAVENGING PROHIBITED

A. No person shall remove, collect, or disturb solid waste or C&D debris stored in or disposed in a
solid waste facility or solid waste container unless authorized by the County.

B. No person shall remove any solid waste or C&D debris from a solid waste container and scatter
the same upon any public or private property.

C. The owner of every multi-family residential development consisting of five (5) or more units shall
provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic yards of solid waste weekly per residential unit,
If the County Manager or her designee determines that additional containers are necessary, she

may order such additional containers as may be required to prevent accumulation of solid waste or
litter.

D. Any person using a County solid waste container shall comply with the rules and regulations
established from time to time by the County Commission for the use, care and location of such
containers and shall keep the lids and covers furnished for such containers closed at all times
except when they are being filled or emptied.

E. Any solid waste, litter or C&D debris deposited in the County solid waste containers shall be
reduced in size to no more than four (4°) feet in length.

F. In the event that the County solid waste container is full, solid waste shall not be placed on the
ground or in proximity to the containers so as to constitute a litter or health hazard or become



blown and scattered.

G. No person shall impede access to a County solid waste contajner other than when necessary to
remove and deposit solid waste.

SECTION 8: DAMAGE TO SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. No person, including children, shall be on top of or inside the County solid waste containers.

B. No person shall intentionally damage any County solid waste container.

C. Any person who damages a County solid waste container shall be liable to the County for the cost,
repair, or replacement of such container, in addition to the penalties provided in Section 16 of this

Ordinance.

SECTION 9: HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GREENWASTB

A. Hazardous wastes in greater than household quantities shall not be disposed at Torrance County
collection stations. Such waste shall be disposed of in accordance with any applicable county,
state and federal laws or regulations, at the expense of the person accumulating such waste.

B. Greenwaste shall only be disposed at designated Torrance County collection stations.

SECTION 10: CONSTRUCTION SITES AND TRANSFORATION OF MATERIALS

A. Any person who has secured a state building permit shall, prior to commencement of any
construction activity in the County, furnish or place on that property a container or fenced area of
suitable size and design to contain all solid waste, litter, or C&D debris which may be disturbed or
removed from the premises or property by the wind or elements.

B. No person generating solid waste or C&D debris shall allow solid waste or litter of any kind to be
blown or be carried by the elements from the premises or property for which the building permit
was secured.

C. Any person engaged in construction or demolition shall remove the solid waste, litter, and C&D
debris, including structural parts, from the construction site and contain their elements from
scattering in the same manner as set out above, C&D debris or solid waste shall be removed and
disposed on within five (5) days of completion to an approved solid waste or C&D debris facility.

SECTION 11:  SCAVENGING PROHIBITED

A. No person shall remove, collect, or disturb solid waste or C&D debris stored in or disposed in a
solid waste facility or solid waste container unless authorized by the County.

B. No person shall remove any solid waste or C&D debris from a solid waste container and scatter
the same upon any public or private property.



SECTION 12: REGULATIONS ADOPTED

The laws of the State of New Mexico dealing with solid waste management and all regulations
promulgated and published pursuant to those laws for the New Mexico Environment Department or
any division thereof, (or any successor department, agency or division), along with any subsequent
revisions or amendments to such laws or regulations, are hereby adopted and incorporated herein by
reference and made a part of this Ordinance; provided, however, the penalty provisions herein shall
apply to violations prosecuted under this Ordinance,

SECTION 13:  SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FEE

A. Payment of the solid waste management fee shall be the obligation of the responsible party for
cach residence located in the unincorporated area of Torrance County.

B. The County Commission shall set fees for solid waste management based on the actual or
projected cost to collect, transport and recycle or dispose of such solid waste. Unmet actual costs
resulting from unpaid fees or certain discounts defined and approved by the County Commission

- shall be the responsibility of the County Commission.

C. If there are multiple residences on a property, the solid waste management fee shall be assessed on
each such residence.

D. The solid waste management fee, and any subsequent modification thereof, shall be established
and adopted through resolution by the County Commission.

E. Any responsible party owning or possessing a vacant residence may be entitled to a reduction of
the solid waste management fee, according to administrative guidelines established and adopted
through resolution by the County Commission. Any property owner falsely certifying that a
residence is vacant is in violation of this Ordinance, and is subject to penalties set forth in Section
16. A,

SECTION 14: LIENS

A. All fees arising under this Ordinance shall be payable by the responsible party of the residence
being served at the time the rate or charge accrues and becomes due. The County of Torrance
shall be entitled to a lien upon the residence and upon the tract or parcel of land being served for
failure to pay such fees pursuant to the authority granted under Section 3-36-1 et seq. NMSA
1978, which lien shall be a first and prior lien on the property coequal with municipal liens
pursuant to Section 3-36-2 NMSA 1978, but subject only to the lien of general state and county
taxes.

B. The hen provided for in this section shall be enforced in the manner prescribed in Sections 3-36-7
NMSA 1978. For purposes of this section, such action shall be taken by the Torrance County
Clerk. In any proceedings where pleadings are required, it shall be sufficient to declare that the
general purpose of said lien is for the service supplied for the collection, transportation and
disposal of solid waste.

C. The charges and fees imposed herein are the obligation of the responsible party of the premises,
regardless of whether occupied by an owner, tenants or others, and the County may file a lien
against the property for such charges, penalties, costs of enforcement, including attorney’s fees
incurred in filing the lien.



SECTION 15: POWERS OF THE COUNTY

In connection with the operation of a solid waste collection system, the Torrance County Board of
Commissioners may:

A. Execute contracts on behalf of the County, with any municipality, county, or other unit of
government, including the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, or any private entity for the
collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste generated in the unincorporated
areas of Torrance County.

B. Regulate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C&D debris by
any person within the unincorporated areas of Torrance County.

C. Establish, assess and collect fees directly or through its authorized agent from responsible parties
in amounts designated herein;

D. Coordinate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C&D debris
in consultation with the New Mexico Department of Environment.

E. Develop, or authorize any contractor, including the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, for the
collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste generated in the unincorporated
areas of Torrance County, to develop, operating policies and procedures for the implementation of
the provisions of this Ordinance.

SECTION 16: PENALTIES

A. Persons violating the Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed THREE
HUNDRED ($300.00) DOLLARS and/or NINETY (90) days in jail for each separate offense,
except as set forth in Paragraphs B and C below.

B. Persons violating this Ordinance by discarding or disposing of solid waste or litter on public or
private property in any manner other than by disposing of it in an authorized container,
convenience center, or landfill shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed ONE
THOUSAND ($1,000.00) DOLLARS.

C. Each violation shall constitute a separate offense. Each day an offense continues shall also
constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 17:  SEVERABILITY

If any article, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, provision or portion of any article, section,
subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or provision in this Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be
unconstitutional, invalid or void, the remaining portions shall not be affected since it is the express intention of the
Torrance County Board of Commissioners to pass such article, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase
or provision and every part thereof separately and independently from every other part.

SECTION 18:  EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall be recorded and authenticated by the County Clerk following adoption by the Board of County
Commissioners. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be thirty days after the Ordinance has been recorded,



ORIGINALLY PASSED APPROVED AND SIGNED the ___ day of
Commissioners of Torrance County, New Mexico.

, 1994, by the Board of County

AMENDED on the __13th  day of April, __2016 , by the Board of County Commissioners of
Torrance County, New Mexico.

AMENDED on the 25" day of August 2021, by the Board of County Commissioners of Torrance County,
New Mexico.

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

County Attorney Date Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Vice Chair

Leroy Candelaria, Member

ATTEST:

Yvonne Otero, County Clerk

Date:




TORRANCE COUNTY
Ordinance No. 2021-
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS

WHEREAS, the current version of the Torrance County Solid Waste Management Ordinance was last revised in
2016; and,

WHEREAS, the 2016 version of the Ordinance is substantially identical to the original version passed in 1994, it did
not adjust for departmental authority over personnel tasked with enforcement of portions of this Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, Planning & Zoning Department personnel are utilized to enforce portions of this Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, funding for equipment, supplies, vehicle maintenance, and vehicle fuel to enforce portions of this
Ordinance is derived from the Planning & Zoning budget; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Director or Department Head has supervisory authority of department
personnel; and,

WHEREAS, discarded appliances are considered to be solid waste; and,

WHEREAS, wording of the Interpretation and Conflict section of 2006 version of the Ordinance conflicts
with itself.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Torrance County Board of Commissioners as follows:

SECTION 1: SHORT TITLE

This Ordinance shall be known as the “SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE,” and shall be referred
to herein as “this Ordinance.”

SECTION 2: AUTHORITY

\
This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority granted to counties to provide for the safety and preserve
the health of the residents of the county as set forth in Section 4-37-1 NMSA 1978; the authority provided in
Sections 4-56-1 through 4-56-3 NMSA ,1978 which authorizes the county to establish and maintain, manage
and supervise a system of storage, collection and disposal of all refuse; and the authority provided in Sections
3-36-1 through 3-36-7 NMSA 1978 which enables the county to attach liens for unpaid charges established by
ordinance.

SECTION 3: INTERPRETATION AND CONFLICT

The regulations provided herein are held to include the minimum standards necessary to catry out the
purposes of this Ordinance. This Ordinance is not intended to interfere with, abrogate or annul any other valid
ordinances. Whenever any provisions of this Ordinance are more or less restrictive than other laws, ordinances, or
Torrance County resolutions, then whichever is the more restrictive shall govern.

SECTION 4: DEFINITIONS:

A. Word Construction - Words used in the present tense include the future; words in the masculine
include the feminine; and words in the singular include the plural.

Page1of 10



B. Definitions — the following definitions apply to this Ordinance

1. “Clean Fill is broken concrete, brick, rock, stone, glass, reclaimed asphalt pavement, or
uncontaminated soil generated from construction and demolition activities.
Reinforcement materials which are an integral part, such as rebar, are included. Clean fill must be
free of other solid waste or hazardous waste.

2. “Code Enforcement Officer” is the person employed as the Planning & Zoning department head or
Director or his assigns, currently known as “Zoning Enforcement Officer”, as appointed by the
County Commission upon adoption of revisions to the Torrance County Ordinance 90-3 dated
May 11, 2016.

3. “Composting” is the process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is
carried out under controlled conditions. The process stabilizes the organic fraction into a
material which can be easily and safely stored, handled and used in an environmentally
acceptable manner,

4. “Construction and Demolition (C&D) Debris” is material generally considered to be
water insoluble and nonhazardous in nature, including, but not limited to, steel, glass, brick,
concrete, asphalt roofing materials, pipe, gypsum wallboard, and lumber from the construction
or destruction of a structure project and includes rocks, soil, tree remains, trees and other
vegetative matter that normally results from land clearing. If construction and demolition
debris is mixed with any other types of solid waste, it loses its classification as
construction and demolition debris. Construction and demolition debris does not include
asbestos or liquids including, but not limited to, waste paints, solvents, sealers, adhesives or
potentially hazardous materials,

5. “County Commission” is the Torrance County Board of Commissioners, the duly
constituted governing body of Torrance County.

6. “County Manager” is the chief administrative assistant to the Torrance County Board of
Commissioners.

7. "Greenwaste" means landscape trimmings, including limbs and branches of 1 inch in
diameter or greater. Does not include brush or tree stumps.

8. “Hazardous waste" includes material listed in 40 CFR261 classified as Toxic, Reactive,
Ignitable, or Corrosive.

9. "Hauler” is any person transporting solid waste by whatever means for the purpose of
disposing of the solid waste in a solid waste facility, except that the term does not include an
individual transporting solid waste generated on or from his residential premises for the
purpose of disposing of it in a solid waste facility;

10. “Litter” is solid waste or debris found in public areas or generated while traveling in a
motor vehicle.

11. “Owner” is the property owner, whether residing on said property or not, the property
being located within Torrance County and outside the corporate boundaries of the
municipalities of Moriarty, Estancia, Mountainair, Encino and Willard.

12. “Person” is any individual, partnership, company, corporation, firm, association, trust,
estate, state and federal agency, institution, county, city, town, village, or municipality or

Page 2 of 10



other legal entity, however organized,
AY
13. “Premises” is defined as a structure, whether designed for residential or commercial use,
located on any property within Torrance County and outside the corporate limits of the
municipalities of Moriarty, Estancia, Mountainair, Encino and Willard.

14. “Residence” is any habitable dwelling or each single unit of multi-unit habitable
dwellings,

15, “Responsible party” is defined as the owner of any premises.

16, “Solid Waste” is any garbage, refuse, discarded appliances, sludge from a waste treatment
plant, water supply treatment plant or air pollution control facility and other discarded
material, including solid, liquid, semisolid or contained gaseous material resulting
from industrial, commercial, mining, and agricultural operations and from community
activities.

“Solid Waste” does not include:

a) waste from the extraction, beneficiation and processing of ores and waste
materials, including phosphate rock and overburden from the mining of uranium
ore, coal, copper, molybdenum and other ores and minerals;

b) agricultural waste, including, but not limited to, manures and other crop residues
returned to the soil as fertilizer or soil conditioner;

¢) sand and gravel,

d) solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage or solid or dissolved materials in
irrigation return flows or industrial discharges that are point sources subject to
permits under Section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C.
Section 1342 or source, special nuclear or by-product material as defined by the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954,42 U.S.C. Section 2011 et seq.;

e)any material regulated by Subtitle C of the federal Resource Conservation and

Recovery Act, ot substances regulated by the federal Toxic Substance Control Act.

17. “Solid Waste Facility means any public or private system, facility, location,
improvements on the land, structures or other appurtenances or methods used for
processing, transformation, recycling, or disposal of solid waste, including landfill
disposal facilities, transfer stations, convenience centers, resource recovery facilities, and
incinerators, or any facility that processes, recycles, transforms, transfers, or otherwise
handles low level or high level radioactive waste or transuranic wastes, and other
facilities not specified, A “Solid Waste Facility” does not include a residential
“backyard” composting pile that composts organic solid waste generated on-site or any
facility or person accepting, stockpiling, or using clean fill material as long as:

a) the clean fill material does not create a public nuisance or adversely affect the
environment;

b) the material is not placed in a watercourse or in any other manner inconsistent with
the Water Quality Control Commission regulation 2-201 “Disposal of Refuse.”

Page 3 of 10



Page 4 of 10

SECTION §: ACCUMULATION OF SOLID WASTE. LITTER, AND C&D DEBRIS: REMOVAL;:

PENALTY

No person shall permit to accumulate any solid waste on property owned, leased or occupied by
that person within two hundred (200) feet of another occupied premises, except in covered water—
tight containers made of metal or plastic.

No person shall throw, place, dump, or dispose of any solid waste, litter, or C&D debris on any
road, street, gutter, sidewalk or alley, or on any public property or another’s private property.

No person (whether owner, tenant, lessee, manager or other person) shall permit any solid waste,
litter, or C&D debris or any composition or residue thereof which is in an unsanitary condition or
hazardous to public health to remain upon the property.

No person shall cast, place, sweep or deposit any solid waste, litter, or C&D debris in such a
manner that it may be carried or deposited by the elements upon any road, street, sidewalk, alley,
sewer, parkway or other public place or private property within the County.

Any accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris in violation of the terms of this Ordinance
is hereby declared to be a nuisance and is unlawful.

Subject to any limitations or otherwise provided by law, the Sheriff, his Deputy, the Zoning
Director, or his designated Zoning Officer is authorized, upon issuance of a warrant, to inspect and
enter any property where he has reasonable cause to suspect that unlawful accumulations of solid waste,
refuse, litter, or C&D debris may exist.

1 If, upon the basis of such inspection, the Sheriff, his Deputy, the Zoning Director, or his
Zoning Enforcement Officer finds that a violation of Subsections A-E
of this Section exists, he shall notify in writing the owner or any other person with an
interest in or control of the property (whether, tenant, lessee, manager or other person) to
correct such violation within a designated period of time, from ten (10) daysup to thirty (30)
days.

2) Upon the failure, neglect or refusal of any person, owner, tenant, lessee, manager or
occupant to properly correct any such violations within the time prescribed (or within
five [5] days of the return of such prescribed notice as undeliverable if the notice is
served by mail), the County Commission may contract for the correction of the unlawful
accumulation, or order its correction by the County, at the expense of the person, owner,
tenant, lessee, manager or occupant in charge of the property,

G. If the Sheriff his Deputy, the Zoning Director, or his Zoning Enforcement Officer finds that the

unlawful accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris presents a clear and present danger to
the public health, safety and welfare, and immediate measures are required to alleviate this clear
and present danger, the County Manager may waive the ten (10) day notification period.

H. Costs for correction of an unlawful accumulation of solid waste, litter, or C&D debris shall be

determined on the basis of man-hours worked, equipment utilized in the clean-up at a customary
rental rate per day, plus any direct costs paid by the County to correct the violation. The cost of
correction shall be a lien upon the property and shall remain in full force and effect for the amount
due plus other costs and attorney fees.

The County Manager or her designee shall maintain files of the inspections, notices and actions
taken pursuant to this Section. Costs incurred by the County in undertaking corrective actions
shall be documented. The files shall be considered public records.



SECTION 6: SOLID WASTE. LITTER AND C&D DEBRIS PRE-COLLECTION PRACTICES

A. Solid waste and recyclables are to be properly stored on the premises where they are generated, or
shall be placed and maintained in County containers at a Torrance County Collection Station or
other refuse and solid waste disposal facility(ies) franchised, licensed and/or permitted in
conformance with applicable state law, state regulations, and this Ordinance.

B. Solid waste transported for disposal at a Torrance County Collection Station shall be secured in
garbage bags, with tarps, or straps as necessary to prevent fugitive waste.

C. Hazardous waste may, at the sole discretion of the solid waste authority, be accepted for disposal
at Torrance County collection stations only in household quantities, and only in secure containers.

D. Wood ash which has not cooled or which may otherwise be capable of rekindling or igniting a fire
if brought in contact with combustible materials may not be disposed at Torrance County
collection stations.

E. No garbage, solid waste, or debris shall be burned within the county.

SECTION 7: SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. Haulers are expressly prohibited from ﬁsing County solid waste containers for the disposal of solid
waste and C&D debris.

B. The owner of every mobile home park shall provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic
yards of solid waste weekly per mobile home space. If the County Manager or her designee
determines that additional containers are necessary, she may order such additional containers as
may be required to prevent the accumulation of solid waste or litter.

C. The owner of every multi-family residential development consisting of five (5) or more units shall
provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic yards of solid waste weekly per residential unit,
If the County Manager or her designee determines that additional containers are necessary, she
may order such additional containers as may be required to prevent accumulation of solid waste or
litter,

D. Any person using a County solid waste container shall comply with the rules and regulations
established from time to time by the County Commission for the use, care and location of such
containers and shall keep the lids and covers furnished for such containers closed at all times
except when they are being filled or emptied.

E. Any solid waste, litter or C&D debris deposited in the County solid waste containers shall be
reduced in size to no more than four (4°) feet in length.

F. In the event that the County solid waste container is full, solid waste shall not be placed on the
ground or in proximity to the containers so as to constitute a litter or health hazard or become
blown and scattered.

G. No person shall impede access to a County solid waste container other than when necessary to
remove and deposit solid waste.

SECTION 8: DAMAGE TO SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

Page 5 of 10



A. No person, including children, shall be on top of or inside the County solid waste containers.
B. No person shall intentionally damage any County solid waste container.

C. Any person who damages a County solid waste container shall be liable to the County for the cost,
repair, or replacement of such container, in addition to the penalties provided in Section 16 of this
Ordinance.

SECTION 9: HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GREENWASTB

A. Hazardous wastes in greater than household quantities shall not be disposed at Torrance County
collection stations. Such waste shall be disposed of in accordance with any applicable county,
state and federal laws or regulations, at the expense of the person accumulating such waste.

B. Greenwaste shall only be disposed at designated Torrance County collection stations.

SECTION 10: CONSTRUCTION SITES AND TRANSFORATION OF MATERIALS

A. Any person who has secured a state building permit shall, prior to commencement of any
construction activity in the County, furnish or place on that property a container or fenced area of
suitable size and design to contain all solid waste, litter, or C&D debris which may be disturbed or
removed from the premises or property by the wind or elements.

B. No person generating solid waste or C&D debris shall allow solid waste or litter of any kind to be
blown or be carried by the elements from the premises or property for which the building permit
was secured.

C. Any person engaged in construction or demolition shall remove the solid waste, litter, and C&D
debris, including structural parts, from the construction site and contain their elements from
scattering in the same manner as set out above. C&D debris or solid waste shall be removed and
disposed on within five (5) days of completion to an approved solid waste or C&D debris facility.

SECTION 11:  SCAVENGING PROHIBITED

A. No person shall remove, collect, or disturb solid waste or C&D debris stored in or disposed in a
solid waste facility or solid waste container unless authorized by the County.

B. No person shall remove any solid waste or C&D debris from a solid waste container and scatter
the same upon any public or private property.

C. The owner of every multi-family residential development consisting of five (5) or more units shall
provide for the collection of not less than .5 cubic yards of solid waste weekly per residential unit.
If the County Manager or her designee determines that additional containers are necessary, she
may order such additional containers as may be required to prevent accumulation of solid waste or
litter.

D. Any person using a County solid waste container shall comply with the rules and regulations
established from time to time by the County Commission for the use, care and location of such
containers and shall keep the lids and covers furnished for such containers closed at all times
except when they are being filled or emptied.

E. Any solid waste, litter or C&D debris deposited in the County solid waste containers shall be
reduced in size to no more than four (4°) feet in length.

Page 6 of 10



F. In the event that the County solid waste container is full, solid waste shall not be placed on the
ground or in proximity to the containers so as to constitute a litter or health hazard or become
blown and scattered.

G. No person shall impede access to a County solid waste container other than when necessary to
remove and deposit solid waste.

SECTION 8: DAMAGE TO SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

A. No person, including children, shall be on top of or inside the County solid waste containers.

B. No person shall intentionally damage any County solid waste container.

C. Any person who damages a County solid waste container shall be liable to the County for the cost,
repair, or replacement of such container, in addition to the penalties provided in Section 16 of this

Ordinance.

SECTION 9: HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GREENWASTB

A. Hazardous wastes in greater than household quantities shall not be disposed at Torrance County
collection stations. Such waste shall be disposed of in accordance with any applicable county,
state and federal laws or regulations, at the expense of the person accumulating such waste.

B. Greenwaste shall only be disposed at designated Torrance County collection stations.

SECTION 10: CONSTRUCTION SITES AND TRANSFORATION OF MATERIALS

A. Any person who has secured a state building permit shall, prior to commencement of any
construction activity in the County, furnish or place on that property a container or fenced area of
suitable size and design to contain all solid waste, litter, or C&D debris which may be disturbed or
removed from the premises or property by the wind or clements,

B. No person generating solid waste or C&D debris shall allow solid waste or litter of any kind to be
blown or be carried by the elements from the premises or property for which the building permit
was secured.

C. Any person engaged in construction or demolition shall remove the solid waste, litter, and C&D
debris, including structural parts, from the construction site and contain their elements from
scattering in the same manner as set out above., C&D debris or solid waste shall be removed and
disposed on within five (5) days of completion to an approved solid waste or C&D debris facility.

SECTION 11:  SCAVENGING PROHIBITED

A. No person shall remove, collect, or disturb solid waste or C&D debris stored in or disposed in a
solid waste facility or solid waste container unless authorized by the County.

B. No person shall remove any solid waste or C&D debris from a solid waste container and scatter
the same upon any public or private property.

Page 7 of 10



SECTION 12: REGULATIONS ADOPTED

The laws of the State of New Mexico dealing with solid waste management and all regulations
promulgated and published pursuant to those laws for the New Mexico Environment Department or
any division thereof, (or any successor department, agency or division), along with any subsequent
revisions or amendments to such laws or regulations, are hereby adopted and incorporated herein by
reference and made a part of this Ordinance; provided, however, the penalty provisions herein shall
apply to violations prosecuted under this Ordinance.

SECTION 13:  SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FEE

A. Payment of the solid waste management fee shall be the obligation of the responsible party for
each residence located in the unincorporated area of Torrance County.

B. The County Commission shall set fees for solid waste management based on the actual or
projected cost to collect, transport and recycle or dispose of such solid waste. Unmet actual costs
resulting from unpaid fees or certain discounts defined and approved by the County Commission
shall be the responsibility of the County Commission.

C. If there are multiple residences on a property, the solid waste management fee shall be assessed on
each such residence.

D. The solid waste management fee, and any subsequent modification thereof, shall be established
and adopted through resolution by the County Commission.

E. Any responsible party owning or possessing a vacant residence may be entitled to a reduction of
the solid waste management fee, according to administrative guidelines established and adopted
through resolution by the County Commission. Any property owner falsely certifying that a
residence is vacant is in violation of this Ordinance, and is subject to penalties set forth in Section
16. A.

SECTION 14: LIENS

A. All fees arising under this Ordinance shall be payable by the responsible party of the residence
being served at the time the rate or charge accrues and becomes due. The County of Torrance
shall be entitled to a lien upon the residence and upon the tract or parcel of land being served for
failure to pay such fees pursuant to the authority granted under Section 3-36-1 et seq. NMSA
1978, which lien shall be a first and prior lien on the property coequal with municipal liens
pursuant to Section 3-36-2 NMSA 1978, but subject only to the lien of general state and county
taxes.

B. The hen provided for in this section shall be enforced in the manner prescribed in Sections 3-36-7
NMSA 1978. For purposes of this section, such action shall be taken by the Torrance County
Clerk. In any proceedings where pleadings are required, it shall be sufficient to declare that the
general purpose of said lien is for the service supplied for the collection, transportation and
disposal of solid waste.

C. The charges and fees imposed herein are the obligation of the responsible party of the premises,
regardless of whether occupied by an owner, tenants or others, and the County may file a lien
against the property for such charges, penalties, costs of enforcement, including attorney’s fees
incurred in filing the lien,

Page 8 of 10



SECTION 15:  POWERS OF THE COUNTY

In connection with the operation of a solid waste collection system, the Torrance County Board of
Commissioners may:

A. Execute contracts on behalf of the County, with any municipality, county, or other unit of
government, including the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, or any private entity for the
collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste generated in the unincorporated
areas of Torrance County.

B. Regulate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C&D debris by
any person within the unincorporated areas of Torrance County.

C. Establish, assess and collect fees directly or through its authorized agent from responsible parties
in amounts designated herein;

D. Coordinate the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste and C&D debris
in consultation with the New Mexico Department of Environment.

E. Develop, or authorize any contractor, including the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, for the
collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of solid waste generated in the unincorporated
areas of Torrance County, to develop, operating policies and procedures for the implementation of
the provisions of this Ordinance.

SECTION 16: PENALTIES

A. Persons violating the Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed THREE
HUNDRED ($300.00) DOLLARS and/or NINETY (90) days in jail for each separate offense,
except as set forth in Paragraphs B and C below.

B. Persons violating this Ordinance by discarding or disposing of solid waste or litter on public or
private property in any manner other than by disposing of it in an authorized container,
convenience center, or landfill shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed ONE
THOUSAND ($1,000.00) DOLLARS.

C. Each violation shall constitute a separate offense. Each day an offense continues shall also
constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 17: SEVERABILITY

If any article, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, provision or portion of any article, section,
subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or provision in this Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be
unconstitutional, invalid or void, the remaining portions shall not be affected since it is the express intention of the
Torrance County Board of Commissioners to pass such article, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase
or provision and every part thereof separately and independently from every other part.

SECTION 18:  EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall be recorded and authenticated by the County Clerk following adoption by the Board of County
Commissioners. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be thirty days after the Ordinance has been recorded.

Page 9 of 10



ORIGINALLY PASSED APPROVED AND SIGNED the _'ll;day of DEC,, 1994, by the Board of County
Commissioners of Torrance County, New Mexico.

AMENDED on the __13th _ day of April, __ 2016, by the Board of County Commissioners of
Torrance County, New Mexico.

AMENDED on the 25" day of August 2021, by the Board of County Commissioners of Torrance County,
New Mexico.

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

County Attorney Date Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Vice Chair

Leroy Candelaria, Member

ATTEST:

Yvonne Otero, County Clerk

Date:

Page 10 0of 10



Agenda Item
No. 13-B



00077 .ﬂUm\bﬁ:cU DUBLIOY,

0707 ‘L 190120 ‘Aepsaupapp

Lxewrumg 199fo1g

AJuno)) DUBILIO],

jonuo)
sof  009'8Z 009°8C 0 0 0 009'8T 0 0 Iojep SoBNS/ULOIS - 1Rle,  UODESHIN WIB(] TOAISSSY OI[EISON  [00 £20C 8699¢
) I=Ys
S9X 000°03¢  000°08¥ 0 0 0 0 000°08¢  000°001 ISTQ - SIUIIOL] pue A[Ioe, JuSwaSeuRIA £LouSIoWy  ¢10 TTO0T STOLE
SOF 000°0¥I‘T 0000VI'T O 0 000086 000011  000°0S 0 A1ddng Ioepm - oTEM . 1mowdojaas( WRISAS JareM 0QY 210 ZT0T HZOLE
ON 00S° 1L 00S°1L 0 0 0 0 00S°1L 0 SOHI[IOB,] SATJRNSIUNUPY - SR uorswedxy IONSYS [FWINY 110 70T 9S0SE
ON 000°005°T  000°0T9°T 0 0 0 0 000°00S‘T  000°0T1 Ajddng 1s1ep - 10BN stuswaAoidur] welsAS 1ele M wemd 010 20T 8¥H8T
SpI0Y9Y
ON 000°19T  000°191 0 0 000°9T 000°SL 00009 .0 1RE - 1910 [BOHOISTH JO UCHRAIOSIE PUB UOLRIOSY 600 Z70T [S99E
$9X 00S°8IT  LSE'SpI 0 0 000°0v 000°0¥ 005°'8¢ L589T IaIQ - seniIoRy Sunsprey] 19818, / SUUS] AIHN0SS 800 ZTOZ 9P99E
ON 00S°SL oomhm,h 0 0 0 0 00§°SL 0 SOUIIoE] SARENSIUNWPY - SoNIoe] 121U YoIedsI(T ] 16 10J WOISAS ANMOSS 700 TTOT $TILE
sax . "S9T'TTE  S9TLOO'L ESFPOT  ESHYOT  €SPWOT  €SH'V9T €CHP9T  000°S8T AOIYRA £30JRS OHAN - SI[OIRA SO A [0NEq HURYS ¥Xi 900 TTOT LSIST
's9x 000°0S€  000°80S 0 0 000°00T  000'00I  000°0ST  000°SSI 19y3Q - uowdmbyg wuowdimby juouwnreda peoy  S00 70T £089T
sa8pug/speoy/sfemySiy .
oN  000°000°T 000°0SO°T O 0 0 0 000°000°T  000°0S - noneyodsuely, stuowaaordwy peoy AIMOD  ¥00 70T TLOVI
s38pLg/speoy/skemySig . . .
ON 000°006°T  000°006°1 0 0 0 0 000°006'T 0 ~ vogelrodsuely, swotoaoxdury peoy LI €00 70T 1799¢
£ 000°0ST°0T 008°09%'0L O 0 0 000°0ST  000°000°01 008°01Z SORLIOR SANBISIUIWPY - SSHIIoR] SOOI WSUNIIOACS) £1Uno) Buz 700 TT0Z +790¢C
S 00T'9TT'L 00TI8E'L  000°0ST  000°0STT 00T'S68  000°SZIY 000°308 000°6ST ISP - SSUI[IOR] sjueuroaoxduy punoiny Ireg A1no0) 100 7707 L7897
Sdseyq  papuny 150D WNQN. [54174 74174 (%4174 0T aep oy .%.5&8«0 apL], 3eloag yuey Ieax ai
12X 10N Palog pIpung
junowry 210,

970T-720T7 Ad uelq yusuwascadury fejde)) sanjonyseayuy




00077 JIDY/Auno)) adueLiof,

0707 ‘L 1940120 ‘Kepsoupasy

¥95°069°9C 0TT969°LT £5¥'65S £SH°659°1 . £59'8¥7°C £50°6T8°S £S6°L61°91 LS9°500°1 S[e10 ], puern
:papuny 19X 10N [B101, 1350 100l0ag JeI0], HSR(:=) § P B2 X H1:2) 4 AR HE )4 :3)ep 0} papung

. 0C spaford jo quny

1uewidmbg SS[OIYRA

ON 000°62C  000°SCT 0 000°sTc 0 0 fareg ofqng - wewdmbyg  9suodsoy reoIpejy dmbg pue sseyomng  £00 €207 0£89T
oN  000°ZET  000'ZET 0 000'Z€ET 0 0 A1ddag sorep, - 101ep opeiddp) waisAg 197RM 900 £20T 61681
oN 000°SS 000°SS 0 000°SS 0 0 _ IO ~ SIBIIOR] STONUSLIUT $301ALeg AoweSIowy GO0 £70T TI00T
S 000°08¥  000°08Y 000021 000'0TI O 0 12430 - Juswudinby SOPPIYSA PBOY P00 €20T €VIvI
ON 00000  000°00T 0 00000 0O 0 SRIPA KIRJES Oqng - soporge  STieTeddy ooegielu] weq) ¢ 2dAL mON €00 £0T LISSI
sox  000°GLS  000°SLS 000°6ZT 00000 O 0 SR 211 - SAL[IoR wowdmby 1deq a1 1093UmM[0A  ZO0 £20T $9SOT

9702-7707 A4 ueld 1wsunacaduy] ejide)) saanjonijsexjuy




$T0TT JIDY/(SINJ) 197U JOIUSS BIOUE]SH

0T0T ‘61 1990120 “AEPUOy

00S°8+¢C £€8°C6T

00001 000°01 000°C9 ‘0600°0T1 005°951

:papuny 19X JON {210 1350 afoag [e10], H-R (=3 § . pdedx ok 1=} § g aeax HE =) ¢

:3JBp 03 popuny

s[eio], pue.is

:s309f0ad jo ToquunN

S[oye A uoteptodsuely /KISAT[a

oN 000°Z8 €eeiLTI 0 0 000z 0 000°0€ £EE°CY . S[OIYBA AI[IOE,] JOTUDS - SOTOTYIA dinby pue eseyoing 700 7Z0T 60695
ON 005991 005991 00001 -000°01 00001 00001 005921 0 SOUIIO., JOTUSS - SSMIIOB] SUCTIEAOUSY FUa]) JOTUag BIOURISH 100 2¢0C T169€
(Sseyd  pIpuny 350D 920C ST 14174 {4174 (44 ANEY X . £Kx03a123 anL], Poloag yuey Ieax ax

19X 10N 19lo1g
junoury [ejo],

popuny

Axreurmng 3o3foxg
(SINQ) 19109)) I01UdS BIURISH

9707-7707 A uB[d Jusmeaoaduy feyide)) sangongjsexyuy




ST0TT dID1/193UR)) J01Udg bhﬁt@g

0707 ‘9€ Tequidydag ..%mkunvwg

oomrgh €E8TI 0 0 0002709 ooodm 005°691 £EESy | S[ejo], pueln
:papuny 19X 10N [BI0], :350)) 309foig B30, H :=3 § H7 =) § Holk :=3 § 17 JBdX H =) ¢ :3Jep 03 popunyg

€ :spoofoad Jo Jaqumy

SPIYa A uogeodsuel] /AIDANS(]
oN 0008 €eeiLTl 0 000°CS 0 000°0¢ XXM 4 SMRA Ao JOIUSS - SSOIYSA dmby pue sseyoing . €00 7707 0£69€
ON 005°09 00509 0 0 0 005°09 0 SOUI[IOL,] JOIDAG - SSMI[IOR,]  SUONEAOUSY ISIUS)) JOTUS AMBLIOIN 700 Z20T €ITLE
sax  000°GS9  000°SS9 0 000°0SS  000°0¢ 000°SL 0 SONI[IOE,] JOTHSS - SSOIIOR] Suprmg 1) 10MeS AN 100 TZ0T LG9S
75%Ug  pepung 15 . 90C S207 [ Z4114 ST 0L wwepoy £363372) aPLL 199101g NUBy Teax a1
X 1K JI0N 1afoag papuny
[e10],

junowry

Arewuing Bw_.o..ﬂ
IUI)) JOIUSS A)IBLIOTA

9207-770T XA uel] jusuwpaciduy rejide)) saanjonyseayuy




9202T dXD¥/491U37) 109G AAeUTRIUNO

020¢ ‘o€ 1dquidydag ‘Aepsoupapy

000°85C £EE°C0E 0 0 000°CS 0 000°90T £EE Sy sfero], puern
:pepuny 39X jON IBI01L 1150 39aforj [ei0], Huh 1:2) § W JB K Hyh :=) § 1T IBIX i Xesx :95ep 03 papuny .

. z :spafoad jo Jequin)]
oN 000°Z8 £EELTT 0 0 000°CS 0 000°0¢ £eESh SPMEA KNIOR] JOMDS - SIOIYaA S[OTSA uonemodsuei)/AIsatlod 700 70T OF69E
SOX 000°9LT  000°9LI 0 0 0 0 0009LT O SOWIIoR,] IOMUS - SSUI[IOR SUOLEAOUSY IUS)) IOTSS  [00 20T TH69€
(SIsely  papunyg 150D 970C ST0T j 74114 [%4 174 T eEp o3 K10dage) ETTAR uuw_.o.ﬂ Yuey JIB9X a1

PXIN  ofoig , papung .
junomy e10L,

Lrewrwng 19foad
J91U3)) IOIUSS I[BUTBJUNOA]

9707-7207 A A uelq jusumdsoxduy _SE&U JanPNISeIuy




Agenda Item
No. 13-C



Agenda Item
No. 14-4



Agenda Item
No. 14-B



Agenda Item
No. 14-C



Agenda Item
No. 15



Agenda Item
No. 16



Agenda Item
No. 17



